LTDs

Ref. VTM /AR.20 13.07.2020

Corporate Relationship Dept - CRD
Bombay Stock Exchange Limited

Regd. Office: Floor 25, PJ Towers

Dalal Street.,

MUMBAI - 400 001.

Dear Sirs

Sub: Listing agreement — Sending Scan copy of Annual report for Year ended 31.3.2020 -reg.

Ref: Our Scrip code: 532893.

~~~~~

With reference to the above, we enclose herewith the Physical copy—in Scan form of our
Annual report for the year ended 31.03.2020. This is for your records. The Form A is enclosed
herewith.

This is for your records please

Thanking you, '
Yours faithfully,

o xm mﬁ%

’/3'\ PARAMA"‘%‘W\M
Company Secratary

Chairman’s Office : Thiagarajar Mills Premises, KAPPALUR - 625 008. Madurai, India.
Regd. Office : SULAKARAI, Virudhunagar - 626 003.

CIN No. - L17111TN1946PLC003270 Phone : 91-452-2482595 (4 lines)
TIN No. : 33495800034 91-4549-280591 / 280620
CST No. : 453901 Dt. 05.10.1857 Fax :91-452-2482580 / 2488085
PAN No. : AAACV3T75E Email  office@tmills.com

viac@vimill.com
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FORM A

Format of covering letter of the annual audit report to be

Filed with the stock exchanges:

Name of the Company

VTM LIMITED

o Annual financial

statements for
the year ended ]

31% March 2020

Type of Audit observation

Un modified & Unqualified opinion.

4. Frequency of observation

Whether appeared first time . /
repetitive. - No  Qualificatory
remarks in Audit Report,

5 To be signed by-

» Chairman & Managing
Director .
« CFO

e Auditor of the Company *

¢ Audit Committee

/£

Chairman

pe 1 ; T VR T
/.-' VBpr \Fi o A LM J"L—&)
e aaanll

{T. Kannan)
Chairman & Managing Directer

Form LIMITED

M. Ramanathan
chief Financial pfficer

CNGSN & ASSOCIATES, LLp
fchartered Accountants)

[k

Chinnpzmy Ganssan

pagtner
MeM0.027501

o VI naeo

£ e

Fis Somasundaram
Audit Committes Chairmman

fice : Thiagarajar Milis Premises, KAPPALUR - 6825 003. Madurai, india.
Regd. Cfifice : SULAKARAL, Virudhunagar - 628 0023,

L1711 TH1846PLC 003270
1 33AAACV3TT5E1ZG
: AAACV3TTSE

Phone : 91-452-2482595 (4 lines}
: 91-4549-280591 / 280820
Fax  :91-452-2482590/ 2485035

E-mail : office@tmilis.com
tvtac@vimill.com
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NOVPHUE OF aNNUAL CENERAL MEETIRG

NOTICE is hereby given that the Seventy third Annual General Meeting of the Members of the
Company will be held at the Registered Office of the Company at Sulakarai, Virudhunagar on
Wednesday, the 5" day of August, 2020 at 11,30 a.m. to transact the following business.

AT ENDA
ASTIRBINARY BUSINESK:
o Nod - Adeption of Flnencial Singtemests

To receive, consider and adopt the audited Balance Sheet of the Company as at 31" March, 2020 and the
Profit & Loss Statement for the year ended on that date and the reports of the Directors and the Auditors

thereon.
forn Mol - He-appolntinent of SmtUhna Kansen, Divecior

To appoint a Director in the place of Dr. (Smit) Uma Kannan, who retires by retation and being eligible

offers herself for re-appointiment.

Ak RPEOEAT BURINESS -

Pieng Mol - Resaponintmeni of 8¢ T Kanngn gy Chalrman and Mavasing [Hreot

Ll LR I TP R
perbed af Dve veart:

To censider and §¥ thoughs 0 1o pass with or withou! medification{s), the follovwing

resclation as Special resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196,197 and 203 read with Schedule V and
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder {(inchuding any
statutory modification{s) or re-enactrment thereof for the time being in force) approval of the company
be and is hercby accorded w the Reappointment of 8¢ T.Kannan (DIN 00040674) as Chairman and
Managing Director of the Company, for a period of 5 years with effect from 07.05.2020, on a
remuneration payable by way of commission and other perquisites as stated in the explanatory
statement attached to this Notice, not exceeding 3% of the net profits of the Company, computed in
accordance with the provisions of Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013 and as recommended by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and as determined by the Board of Directors of the
Company, for each financial year, within the maximum permissible limit, notwithstanding his holding
the posttion of Chairman and Managing Director in the Company M/s Thiagarajar Mills Private
Limited, and drawing remuneration as approved by its shareholders from time to time, provided that
the totat remuncration drawn by him from the Company, and M/s. Thiagarajar Mills Private limited

{10
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MITED

does not exceed the higher maximum limit admissible from any one of these companies, in terms of
Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013,

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company, be and is hereby authorized to
alier and vary the scope and quantum of remuneration specified hereinabove during the tenure of
office, in the light of and in conformity with any amendments to the relevant provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013/ Income-tax Act, 1961 and / or the rules and regulations made there under and /
or such guidelines, as may be notified by the Central Government, from time to thme.,

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT SriTKannan, Chairman and Managing Director shall have
substantial powers of the management of the Company in accordance with the applicable provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 and that may be entrusted upon by the Board of Directors of the Company
from time o time.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provisions of Scction 196 (3) of the act and other
applicable provisions if any, consent of the members be and is hereby further granted to the
comtinuation of Sri. T.Kannan (DN 00040674), under the category of Chairman & Managing Director
of the Company, who will attain the age of 70 vears on $8.03.2023, during his terure on the terms and
conditions duly approved by the sharcholders at this Annual General Mecting.”

Frowy Mo d- Barifioadion of ot Audiier Boipesoratioy

To vensider and ¥ ihonph 0 fo pass with or withpoy modifivations), the fallowing vosslution g

ag oriinary resebulion

RESOLVED that subject to provisions of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 14 of the
Companies {Andit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 and other applicable provisions thergon, the fees of
Rs.40,000/- pavable to the Cost Auditor Mr.M.Kannan for auditing the cost records and furnishing of
Report thereon for the Financial Year 2020-21 as recomumended by the Audit Committes and approved
by the Board of Directors of the Company be and 1s hereby ratified.

MNEFEEM

1. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section {02 of the Companies Act, 2013, which sets ow
details relating to Resolutions at the meeting, is annexed hereto.

2. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitied to appoint 2 Proxy/Proxies to

attend and vote instead of himself. Such a Proxy/ Proxies need not be a member of the Company.

The instrument of Proxy in order to be effective, should be deposited at the Registered Office of
the Company, duly completed and signed, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of
the meeting. A Proxy Form is sent herewith. Proxies submitted on behalf of the companies,

z
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societies etc., must be supported by an appropriate resolution/authority, as applicable,

Electronic copy of the Notice of Annual General Mecting of the Company inter alia indicating
the process and manner of e-voting along with Attendance Slip and Proxy Forin is being sent to
all the members whose email 1Ds are registered with the Company/Depository Participant(s) for
communication purposes unless any member has requested for a hard copy of the same. For
members who have not registered their email address, physical copies of the Notice, indicating
the process and manner of e-voting along with Attendance Slip and Proxy Form is being sent in
the permitted mode.

Members may also note that the Notice of the Annual General Meeting will also be available on
the Company's website www.vtmill.com for their download. The physical copies of the
aforesaid documents will also be available at the Company's Registered Office m Sulakaras,
Virudhunagar for inspection during normal business hours on working days, Even after
registering for e-communication, members are entitled to receive such communication in
physical form, upon making a request for the same, by post free of cost, For any communication,
the shareholders may also send requests to the Company's investor email id:
complianceofficer@vimill.com,

IMPORTANT NOT RS

1. The Register of Members and the Share Transfer books of the Company will remain
closed from 30.07.2020 to 04.08,2020 (both days inclusive) for annual closing.

The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, which

[ ]

sets out details relating Lo Special Business at the meeting, is annexed hereto.

3. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appowt a Proxy/Proxies
to attend and vote instead of himsel. Such a Proxy/Proxies need not be a member of the
Company.

The instrument of Proxy in order to be effective, should be deposited at the Registered
Office of the Company, duly completed and signed, not less than 48 hours before the
commencement of the meeting. A Proxy Form is sent herewith, Proxics submitted on
behalf of the companies, societies etc., must be supported by an appropriate
resolution/authority, as apphicable.

4. Members holding shares in ekectronic form are hereby informed that bank particulars

registered against their respective depository accounts will be used by the Company for
payment of dividend. The Company or its Registrars cannot act on any request received
directly from the Members holding shares in electronic formm for any change of bank
particulars or bank mandates. Such changes are to be advised only to the Depository
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Participant of the Members. Members holding shares in physical form and desirous of
either registering bank particulars or changing bank particulars aiready registered against
theirrespective folios for payment of dividend are requested to write to the Company.

Members are requested to note that the dividends not encashed or remaining unclaimed
for a period of seven years from the date of ransfer {o the Unpaid Dividend Account shall
be wansferred ws, 124 of the Companies Act, 2013 to the Investor Hducation and
Protection Fund (IEPF) established under Section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013
Further, pursuant to the provisions of Section 124 ofthe Actand 1EPF Rules, all shareson
which dividend has not been paid or claimed for seven consecutive years or more shall be
transferred to IEPF Authority as notified by the MCA.

The Members/Claimants whose shares, unclaimed dividend have been transferved ©
IEPF may claim the shares or apply for refund by making an application to 1EPF
Authority in Form IEPT-3 (available on www.iepf.gov.in) along with requisite fee as
decided by it from time fo time. The Member/Claimant can file only one consolidated

claim it a financial year as per the IEPF Rules.

Members who have notencashed their dividend warranis for the earlier financial yearsare
requested to make their claim on or before the due date/s for such transfer. The members
can make a claim with the Cornpany in respect of the dividends of years that are lying in
the Unpaid Dividend Account of the Company.

Members are requested to note thai pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013, SEB1 Listing Regulations and the IEPF Rules, all such shares in respect of which
dividends have not been paid or claimed for scven consecutive years or more are also
required to be transferred to IEPF, The Company is taking steps for sending individual
notices to the concerned sharcholders and for publishing of a public notice to shareholders
under the IEPF Rules in thisregard.

The Securities and Exchange Board of Tndia (SEBI) has mandated the submission of
Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant in securities market, Members
holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit the PAN to their
Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts, Members
holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN details to the Company.

Details required under Regulation 36 of SEBI (Listing Obhgations and Disclosure
Requirements). Regulations, 2015 in respect of the Directors seeking appointment/re-
appointment at the ‘Annual General Meeting, forms integral part of the notice. The
Directors have furmished the requisite declarations for their appointment/re-appointiment.
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15.

Electronic capy of the Annual Report for the year 2019-20 is being sent to all the members
whose email IDs are registered with the Company/Depository Participant(s} for
communication purposes untess any member has requested for a hard copy of the same.

Electronic copy of the Notice of the 73* Annual Generaf Meeting of the Company inter alia
indicating the process and manner of e-voting along with Attendance Slip and Proxy Form
is being sent to all the members whose email IDs are registered with the
Company/Depository Participants{s) for communication purposes unless any member
has requested for a hard copy of the same. For members who have not registered their
email address, physical copies of the Notice of the 73 Annual General Meeting of the
Company inter alia indicating the process and manner of e-voting along with Attendance
Stip and Proxy Form is being sent in the permitted mode,

Members may also note that the Notice of the 73 Annual General Meeting and the Annual
Report for the year 2019-20 will also be available on the Company's website
www.yimill.com for their download.

The physical copies of the aforesaid documents will also be available at the Company's
Registered Office in Sulakarai, Virudhunagar for inspection during normal business hours
on working days. Even after registering for e-communication, members are entitled to
receive such communication in physical form, upon making a request for the same, by
post free of cost. For any communication, the shareholders may also send requests to the
Company's investor email id: complianceefficer@vtmill.com.

Voting through electronic means

I.  Incompliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of the

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Company is pleased to provide
members' facility to exercise their right to vote at the 73rd Annual General Meeting (AGM) by
electronic means and the business may be transacted through e-Voting Services provided by
KFinTechnologies PvtLtd.

Instructions aud ptherinformution relating to covating are as under:

A

In case a Member receives an email from KFin Technologies Pvt Lid {for Members whose
email Ids are registered with the Company/Depository Participant(s)}:

i} Launch internet browser by typing the URL: hitps://evoting karvyv.com in the
address bar and click on “Enter”. The Home sereen will be displayed then click on
sharebolders icon inthe homepage. '
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i1}

V)

v)

vi)

viy)

viif)

ixX)

X

X1}

Enter the login credentials (L.e. User ID and password mentioned overleal). Your
Folio No/DPID - Client 1D will be your User ID. However, if you are alrcady
registered with KFin Technologics Pvt Ltd for E-voting, you can use your
existing User 1D and password for casting your votg.

After entering these details appropriately, click on “LOGIN®.

You will now reach password change Menu wherein you are required to
mandatorily change vour password. The new password shall comprise mintmum
characters with at least one upper case (A-Z}, one lower case (a-z). One numeric
{0-9) and a special character {@#3.etc). The system will prompt you to change
vour password and update your contact details like mobile number, email ID. etc.,
on first login, You may also enter a secret question and answer of your choice fo
retrieve password and that vou take utmost care to keep your password
confidentiai.

Youneed tofogin again with the new credentials.

On successful login, the system will prompt you to select the B-Voting Hvent
Number for VTM Limited,

On the voting page enter the number of shares {which represents the number of
votes) as on the cut-off Date ander each of the heading of the resolution and cast

vour vote by choosing the “FOR/ AGAINST” option or aliernatively, you may

partially enter any number in “FOR™ and partially in “AGAINST™ but the total

number in “FOR/AGAINST™ taken together should not exceed your total

shareholding as mentioned overleaf. You may also choose the option

“ABSTAIN" and the shares held will not be counted under either head. Option
“FOR” implies assent to the resolution and “AGAINST” implies dissent to the

resofution.

Members holding multiple folios/demat accounts shalt choose the voting process
separately for each of the folios/demat accounts,

Voting has {o be done for each item of the Notice scparately. In case you do not
desire to cast your vote on any specific item, it will be freated as abstained.

You may then cast your vote by selecting an appropriate option and click on

“Submit”,

A confirmation box will be displayed Click “OK” to confirm else “CANCEL" to
madify, Once vou confirm, vou will not be allowed to modify your vote, During

6.
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6.

the voting period, Members can legin any number of times till they have voted on
the Resolution(s).

xity  Corporate/Institutional Members {1.¢ other than Individuals, HUF, NRI, etc.} are
also required to send scanned certified true copy {PDF Format) of the Board
Resolution / Authority Letter, ete., together with attested specimen signature(s)
of the duly anthorized representative(s), to the Scrutinizer at e-mail
M vtmlimited scerutinizerf@Karvy.com. They may also upload the same inthe E-
voiing module i their login. The scanned image of the above mentioned
documents should be in the naming format “Corporate Name_EVENTNQ.®

In case a Member receives physical copy of the Annual General Meeting Notice by post
[for members whose email Ids are not registered with the Company/Depository

Participant(s)} can also vote using e~voting method.

1. User 1D and initial password are provided overlcaf,
il. Please follow all steps from St.No.(i) to {(x1i) as mentioned in {A) above, 10 cast
vour vote.

Once the vote on a resolution is cast by a Member, the Member shall not be allowed to
change it subsequently. Further. the Members who have cast their vote electronically shall
notbe allowed to vote again at the Meeting.

in case of any query pertaining to E-voting, please visit Help & FAQ's section available at
K Fin Technologies Pvt Ltd's website https://evoting. karvy.com.

The facility for voting through electronic means (Ballot) shall be made available at the
Annual General Meeting {AGM) and the members attending AGM who have not cast
their vote by remote E-voting shall be able to vote at the AGM through “Ballot”.

The members who have cast their vote by remote E-voting may also attend AGM, but shall
not be entitled to cast their vote again.

The Board of Directors has appointed Mr.LB. Harikrishna, Practising Company Secretary
(Membership No.5302) as a Scrutinizer to scrutinize the E-voting process in a fair and
transparent manner.

The voting rights of the Members shall be in proportion to the paid-up value of their shares
in the equity capital of the Company as on the cut-off date), being, 27 July, 2020,
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1.

8. A person, whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the register of
beneficial owners maintained by the depositories at the close of business hours on 30"
Fuly 2020 shail be entitled to avail the facility of remote E-voting/ballot.

The e-voting period starts on 2™ Aug, 2020 (9:00 am) and ends on 4" August, 2020 (6;00
pin}.

9. Any person who becomes member of the Company after despateh of the Notice of the
meeting and holding shares as on the cut-off date may obtain the User Id and password in
the manner as mentioned below

a.  Ifthe mobile number of the Member is registered against Folio No./ DPID - Client
113, the member may send SMS:

MYEPWD<gpace> E-Voting Event NumbertFolic No. or DPID - Client ID to +91-
9212993399 Example for NSDL: MYEPWD<SPACE>IN12345612345678

Example for CDSL: MYEPWD<SPACE>1402345612345678
Example for Physical: MY EPWD<SPACE> X XXX 1234567890

b. If e~-mail address or mobile number of the Member is registered against Folio
No./DPID-Client 1D, then on the home page of https://evoling karvy.com, the
member may click “Forgot Password” and enter Folio No. or DPID - Client HD and
PAN1o0 generate a password.

c. Member may Call Karvy's Toll free number 1-8(0-3454-001
d. Membermay send an ¢-mail requestto cvoting(@karvy.com

However, if vou are already registered with Karvy for E-voting, you canuse vour existing User
1D and password for casting vour vote,

The Scrutinizer shall within a period not exceeding three (3) working days from the conclusion
of AGM shall unblock the votes cast by remote E-voting and Ballot, in the presence of at feast
two (2) witnesses not in the employment of the Compauny and will make a Consolidated
Scratinizer's Report of the votes cast in favour or against, forthwith to the Chairman of the

meeting.

The Results on resolutions shall be declared at or after the Annual General Meeting of the
Company and the resolutions will be deemed to be passed on the Annual General Meeting date
subject to receipt of the requisite number of votes in favour of the Resolutions,




13, The Results declared along with the Scrutimizer's Report(s) will be available on website of the
Company (www. vtrmill.com) and on Karvy's website Chitps:/fevoting karvv.com). The resulis
shall simultanecusly be communicated to Stock Exchanges.

14, All documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and the Explanatory Statement shall be
open for inspection at the Registered Gifice of the Company during normal business hours (9.00
am o 5.00 prm) on all working days except Sundays, up to and including the date of the Annual
General Meeting of the Company.

o FEPLAN
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Shri. T. Kannan (DIN: Q0040674) aged 67 vears, was first appointed as Managing Director of the
Company on7.05.2015,

Shri. T. Kannan was reappointed as Managing Director of the Company by the Board of Directors at
their meeting held on 29.04.2020, subject to the approval of the Sharcholders at the Annuval General
Meeting, for a further period of 3 years from 07.05.2020 to 06.05.2025 in accordance with the
provisions of Section 197 of Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule V and other applicable
provisions of the Compantes Act, 201 3.

Based on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board o Directors of
the Company in its meeting held on 29.04.2020 has recommended re-appointment of S+i.T.Kannan, as
Chairman & Managing Director of the company for a further period of tive years w.e.f. 07.05.2020,

Further, as per Section 196 (3} of the Company Act, 2013, no company shall appoint or continue the
emplovment of any person as Managing director / whole time director who attain the age of seveny
years except passing of a special resohution in which case the explanatory statement annexed to the
notice for such motion shall indicate the justification for appeinting such person,

Sri.T.Kannan. aged 67 Years (Date of Birth: 09 March 19533} will attain the age of 70 years during his
teniure on 09.03.2023. Hence, the Company proposed special resolution for his re-appointment set out
at [tem no.3 of the Notice Calling Arnnual General Meeting for his continpation as Chairman and
Managing Director of the Board after attaining the age of 70 years.

Save as provided in the foregoing paragraph, Sri.T.Kannan satisfies all other conditions set out in Part-I
of Schedule V to the Act and also conditions set out under sub-section (3) of Section 196 of the Act for
being eligible for his re-appointment,
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METED

Theterms of his appointment briefly are as follows:
(i3 Duration:

§ years from 7° May 2020
(i)  Remuperation:

Commission - By way of Conunission and perquisites as given below notexceeding 3% of the
net profits computed, in accordance with the provisions of S8ection 198 of the Companies Act,
2013, as may be determined by the Board for every financial year, withis the aforesaid Limit,
during the term of his re-appointment.

(i1} Perguisites: Use of Car and Telephone: Car for use of Company's business and telephone at
residence, provided that personal long distance calls, on the telephone and use of car for private
purpose shall be billed by the Company to the Chairman and Managing Director.

During his tenure he shall not be paid any sitling fee for attending meetings of the Board or
Committees thereof,

Sri T. Kanoan, as Chabrman and Managing Director, shall have substantial powers of the
management of the Company inaccordance with the applicable provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and such powers as may be entrusted upon by the Board, from time to time "

He is also the Chairman & Managing Director of the Company viz., M/s Thiagaraiar Miils Private
Limited, drawing remuneration by way of salary, commission and perguisites as approved by 1is
shareholders.

The aggregate of remuneration payable to him in both the companies shall not exceed the higher
maximum Himit admissible from any one of the companies, in terms of Schedule V to the Companies
Act, 2013,

The Board in the event of loss or inadequacy of profits in any financial year, shall revise the
remuneration payable to Chairman and Managing Director during such financial vear, m such manner
as agreed to between him and tiw Board and within the Himits preseribed in this behalt under Schedule
Vto the Companies Act 2013 or any re-enactment there of.




ADDITIONAL INFORMATION REQUIRED TO BE FURNISHED PURSUANT TO SEB!
(LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2815 AND
SECRETARIALSTANDARD-2ONGENERALMEETINGS:

Pursuant to Regulation 36 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 Clause 1.2.5 of Secretartal Standards-2 on (General Meetings, the particutars of Directors
seeking re-appointment:

Other details of Director secking re-appointment af the ensuing Annual General Meeting are as
under: Particulars Shei T.Kansan Terms and conditions of appointment / re-appoinunent Terms and
Conditions of appointment or re-appointment are as per the Nomination and Remuneration Policy of
the Company Directorships of other Boards as on March 31,2020

1. Thiagarajar Mills Private Limited

2. Thiagarajar Telekom Solutions Lud

3. Colour Yams Ltd

4, TVS Motor Company Lid

3. Sundaram Brake Linings Lid

6. Sundaram Textiles Ltd

7. Confederation of Indian Textile Industry

Sri.T.Kannan holds the post of Independent Director in TVS Motor Company Limited, and Sundaram
Brake linings Limited.

He is the Chairman of Audit committes in Sundaram Brake Linings Limited.
He is the Chairman of Risk Mapagement Committee 1n TVS Motor Company Limited,

He is the Chairman of CSR Committees of Thiagarajar Milis Private Limited and VTM Limited, and
member of Sundaram Brake linings Limited.

Sri. T.Kannan 1s also a Member of Nomination and Remuneraiton Committees of VIM limited and in
TVS Motor Company Limited. Besides he 1s also the member of Audit Commitize of TVS Motor
Company Limited.

He holds 5856060 shares in his name in VTM Limited.

Approval of the Members is being sought to the terms, conditions and stipulations for the re-
appointment of Sri. T.Kannan, as Chairman and Managing Director of the Company, for their approval

il
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LIMITED

by way of a Special  resolution, i compliance with the provisions of Sections 196, 197 and 203 read
with Schedule V to the Companies Act 2013 and the rules made thereon, and for the remuneration
payable to lim, as recommended by the Nomination and Resmuneration Commiitee, and as determined
by the Board. The terins and conditions proposed (fixed by the Board of Directors at their meeting held
ont 29" April 2020, based on the recammendation of the Nomination and Remuneration cormmittee)
continue to be in line with the remuneration policy of the Company.

Heelosure ol interests

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel except ShriT. Kannan as an appointee and
Shri. K. Thiagarajan and Smt. Uma Kannan, Directors as relatives to the Chairman and Managing
Director may be deemed to be concerned or interested in the Resolution,

Eregs Mg, i

The Board, at its meeting held on 29" April 2020, appeinted MrM. Kannan, Practising Cost
Accouniant, having Membership No 9167, as Cost Auditer of the Company, In terms of Section 148 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and fixed a sum of Rs.40,000/- as remuneration payable to him, for
the financial year 2020-2021,

The remuneration, as recommended by the Audit Committee and approved by the Board, is reguired to
be ratified by the sharehoiders of the Company, as per the requirements of the Companies {Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 read with Section 148(3) ofthe Act.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives is concerned or
interested, financial or otherwise, in the resolution set outat ltem No 4,

Accordingly, the Board recommends the special resolution, as set out in item No.4, for ratification by
the shareholders ofthe Company.

By order of the Board

Kappalur, Madurai.
June 12, 2020 Chairman
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elegironic means including remoets ¢-Yoting:

In line with the MCA Circulars and SERB! Circular, the Notice of the 73" AGM will be
available on the website of the Company at www.vtmill.com, on the website of BSE
Limited at wwwbseindiacom and alsc on the website of KFIN TECH at
www.evoting karvy.com.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Act read with Rule 20 of the Compan'it:s'

{(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended), Secretarial Standard on
General Meetings {$8-2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India

Enstraetions for Mowbers for parieipafing in the T3rd A0M ¢

d.

Select Even Please note that the Members who do not have the User 1D and Password for
e-Voting or have forgotten the User [D and Password may retrieve the same by following
the remote ¢-Voting instructions mentioned in the Notice of the 73rd AGM to avoid last
minute rush. Further, Members can also use the OTP based login for logging into the e-
Voting system of KFintech.

The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of e-Voting at the 73rd AGM, firstdownload the
votes cast at the AGM and thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-Voting and
shall make a consolidated scrutinizer's report of the total votes cast in favour or against,
invalid votes, if any, and whether the resolution has been carried ot not, and such Report
shall then be sent to the Chairman or a person authorized by him, within 48 (forty eigh()
hours from the conclusion of the 73rd AGM., who shall then countersign and declare the
result of the voting forthwith.

The Results declared along with the report of the Scrutinizer shall be placed on the
website of the Company at www.vtmill.com and on the website of KFIN TECHat.
www.evoting karvy.com immediately after the declaration of Results by the Chairman or
a person authorized by him. The results shall also be immediately forwarded to the BSE
Limited, Mumbat,

Pursuant to the MCA Cireulars and SEBI Circular, in view of the prevailing situation,
owing to the difficulties involved in dispatching of physical copies of the Notice of the
73rd AGM and the Annual Report for the year 2020 including therein the Audited
Financial Statersents for vear 2020, are also being sent by email to the Members.
Therefore, those Members, whose email address is not registered with the Company or
with their respective Depository Participant/s, and who wish to receive the Notice of the
73rd AGM and the Annual Report for the year 2020 and all other communication sent by




LIMITED,

the Corapany, {Tom time to thime, can get their email address registered by following the
steps as given below -

For Members hotding shares in physical form, please send scan copy of a signed reguest
letter mentioning vour folio number, complete address, email address to be registered
along with scanned self attested copy of the PAN and any document (such as Driving
Licence, Passport, Bank Statement, AADHAR) supporting the registered address of the
Member, by email to the Company's email address complianceofficer@vimill.com,

For the Members holding shares in demat form, please apdate vour email address through
vour respective Depository Participant/s.

The Notice of the 73% AGM and the Annual Report for the vear ended 2020 including
therein the Audited Financial Statements for the year 2020, will be available on the
website of the Company at www.vtmillecom and the website of BSE Limited at

i

www.bseindiz.com. The Notice of 73 AGM will alse be available on the websiwe of

KFINTECH atwww KFintech.com.




DIRECTORS BEPORY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31°" MARCH, 202¢

To the Members of VT'M Limited

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their 73" Anoual Report along with the Audited
statement of accounts for the year ended 31" March, 2020

Adoption of Flnancis! Sietements under fad Al

Pursuant to the notification issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated 16" February, 2015
relating to the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Ruleg, 2015 the Company has adopted
“Ind AS™ with effect from 17 April, 2017. Accordingly, the Financial Statements for the year 2019-
2020 have been prepared in compliance with the Compantes {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015,

Cperating & Financial Performanes Profits, Dividends & Roetention
Rs. in Lakhs,

RIS 2018-19
Tarnover PE0AR 15980
Profit before Depreciation 2369 2082
(after interest)
Less: Depreciation 763 6R2
Profit atter Depreciation B
Less: Proviston for Taxation: 1400
Current Year 347
Curvent tax adjusted to earher vears -
Deferved Tax 32
379
Profit after Tax 1021
Add: Amount brought forward 788
Available for appropriation 18G9
Apprepriation:-
Transfer to General Reserve 351 600
{aterim dividend & Re (.90 per chare 7
Dividend @ Re.0.99 per share 302
Income Tax on Dividend 62
#73 364
Transfer from Other
Comprehensive Income . 7
Retained profit carried forward e
to the following year 852




LAVITT

During the year under review, the Company's performance has improved with a higher net profit of
Rs.1636 lakhs against Rs. 1400 lakhs (16% increase) amidst marginal increase in Turnover. The
Company was able to register export turnover of Rs. 4195.58 lakhs representing 26.14% of the 1otal
turnover,

The year 2019-20 was by itself a chailenging year with growth slowing in India and demand was
moderating. On top of this, we witnessed the pandemic break out, which brought the world to a near
standsall. The lockdown in India wag complete.  Both these have adversely affected the business
environment. There is a slowdown in consumption of products across the spectrums. Your Company
is no excepiion.

We are adjusting the Company's strategies to meet this challenge and are confident that demand revival
will be seen fromthe coming months,

Moderpbiaption & Upgradstion

During the vear under review your Company has invested Rs.13.12 Crores for installing new looms
and accessories. The Company's plant and equipment are up-to-date to meet the varied market
requirements.

sppronriarion re Honeval Keserve

Considering the profitability and the available surplus, the Board of Directors desires to appropriate a
sum of Rs.351 takhs to General Reserve,

irividend

The Company paid an Interiin Dividend of Re.0,90 per Share of Equity Share Capital as on record
date fixed for this purpose, ie. 26.02.2020. This isfo be considered as Final Dividend.

ST T 5 S
Poatraot of Supmal Hefers

As per the requiremnents of Section 92 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 12 of the Companies
{Management & Administration) Rules, 2014 the extract of annual return in the prescribed Farm MGT
9 is annexed hereto as Annexwre HE forming part of the report,

s men e T e wnn ww e an s F 0 e Db e e vy i we Bt e st L e et £ Tinaue gy o
Associaie Compsnv/Holding oy Subsidiary Usinpany

The Company does not have any Associate Company as defined under the Companies Act, 2013 and
has notentered into any joint venture agreement during the vear under review,

{hanpe nfbe Monmare ol Hasiness

theh i

There is ne change in the nature of the business ofthe Company.




Cirabers by Bevnlotors or Louris

There were no significant and material orders passed by regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the
going concern status and Company's operations in future,

A ol £ . A FE ey b o B hwesnzyoenes e
Shurpriai CUhaners AfTocimyg the Fhuanoials

There were no material changes and commitments affecting the fmancial position of the Company
occurring between March 31, 2020 and the date of this Report of the Directors.

taterant Oantrel Mystem

The Company has in place an established internal control system designed to ensure proper recording
of financial and operational information and comphiance of varicus internal controls and other
regulatory and statutory complinnces. Code on Internal Control which require that the Directors to
review the effectiveness of internal controls and compliance condrols, financial and operational risks,
risk assessment and management systems and related party transactions, have been complied with, Self
certification exercises are also conducted by which senior management certifies effectivencess of the
internal controd systein, their adherence to Code of Conduct and Company's policies for which they are
responsible, financial or commercial transactions, if any, where they have personal interest or potential
conflictofinterest, Internal Audit has been conducted on periodical basis.

Compuny's Policies

Company's Policies on Corporate Social Responsibility, Remuneration, Employee Coneern {Whistle
Blowing}, the Code of Conduct applicable to Birectors and Employees of the Company and policies
such as Insider Trading Code, instder Trading Fair Disciosure Code and Policy on Materiality of and
dealing with Related Party Transactions required uader SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading} Regulations, 20135 have
been complied with,

These Policies, the Code of Counduct and other policies/codes as referred above are available on the
Company's website www. vimill. com

PR and 58 Cersifioation

The Company's factory  at Sulakarai, Virudbunagar, Tamil Nado has been certified 1SO for Quality
Management Syster Stapdard and also holds a 58 Certificition from AOTS Alumni 38 Forum of tadia
and GOTS Certification for the manufaciure of organic cotton fabrics.




Segmeptwisy performance

The Company is primarily 2 manufacturer of textile products and is managed organizationally as a
single undt. Accordingly, the Company is 2 single business segment company. Geographical
(secondary) segment has been identified as domestic sales and exports as detailed below:

Particulars _ Amount (Rs. lacs) % of Twnover
Export Sales 4195 58 26.14
Domestic Sales TI857.88 73.86

5

bndustry Strworsre & Developments, Gpportunities & Theeats, Outlook, Risks &

Laneerng

The Indian economy and the consumer demand continued 1o be sub-optimal during the year umder
review. The credit cycies have been increasing and liguidity in the markets were very low. During the
vear under review, export of grey fabrics from the country witnessed a declining trend.

The power situation continues to be comfortable.
The Company is taking steps for development and implementation of risk management policies. The

Company sees certain risks due to the low liquidity and extended credit cycles in the domestic and
international markers. Your Company is taking ail steps and precautions to mitigate this,

Further, in the domestic market there is a risk of competition from a large number of textile units and
the uncertainty of monsocon and its conseguential impact on the demand scenario.

The spread of COVID-19 pandenic is a new and unprecedented threat and we are not able to estimate
its imipact during the full year.

Your Directors look forward o the current year with hope and optimism, they expect the reform
process in the economy will be accelerated by the Government which in i will prove positive
for trade & industry.
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The Board consists of & Dhrectors with one Chairman and Managing Director, four Non-Executive
Independemnt Directors. two Non-Executive Directors and one Woman Non-Executive Director.
As on 31st March, 2020, the Beard comprises of 8 Directors out of which 1 Director 1s Executive,

Chairman & Managing Director, 3 Directors are Non ~ Executive including one Woman Director, 4
Directors are Non-Executive Independent. The composition of the Board is in conformity with the



requirements of Regulation 17 of the Listing Regulations. All Directors are competent and experienced
personalities in their respective flelds,

The Board 1s headed by Sri. T.Kannan, Chairman & Managing Director of the Company. During the
year under review, there were changes at the Board level as under:

Appointment of Mr TN . Ramanathan (DIN 02361794} as Non-Executive Independent Director of the
Company for first teem of five consecutive vears w.e.f. 017 Aprif, 2019 was made by the Board pursuant
to the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRCY. The said appointment of
Director was duly approved by the members of the Company at the Annual General Meeting held on
17ih June, 2019,

B g e - i b BE et -
Ponignbieoy oF Basrg Meetipuy

During the vear under review, Seven Board Meetings were held on 22.04.2019, 24.07.2019,
(4.00.2019, 18.10.2019, 23,11 2019, 30.01 2020 & 12.02.2020. The maxonum interval between any
two consecutive Board Meetings did notexcecd 120 days.

Heewarsintment ot U3

Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 requires a listed company to have a Managing
Director/CEG/Whotle Time Director as one of the Key Managerial Personnel, In terms of the
provisions, 511 T. Kannan, the Chairman of the Company has been re-appointed as Chairman and
Managing Director duly recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and
approved by the Board of Directors, He is already the Chainman and Managing Director of Ms.
Thiagarajar Mills Private Limited and accordingly his remuneration is fixed in such a way that the total
remuneration from both companies put together does not exceed the limits as prescribed w/s. 197 of the
Companies Act, 2013,

The details of number and dates of meetings heid by the Board and its Committees, attendance of
Directors and remuneration paid to them is given separately in the attached Corporate Governauce
Report.

The sitting fees paid to the Non-Executive Divectors are within the lmits presernibed under the
Companics Act, 2013 and Rules thereon,

Hetirement of Directors by Retation:

Pr.{Smt.} Uma Kannan, Director of the Company, retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General
Meeting and being eligible has offered herself for reappointment as a Director of the Company. Being
eligible, she is proposed to be re-appointed as Director of the Company. The details of the propeosed
re-appointment of Dr.(Smt.) Uma Kannan are forming part of the Corporate Governance report.
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Sop-Bsecptive Independent Directors

The Non-Executive Independent Directors have confirmed and declared that they are not disqualified
toact as & Non-Executive Independent Director in compliance with the provisions of Section 149 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the §oard is also of the opinion that the Non-Executive Independent
Directors fulfill all the conditions specified in the Companies Act, 2013 making them eligible to act as
Non-Executive Independent Directors. The Non-Executive Independent Directors have convened a
meeting on 30.01 2020

To comply with the amended regulations as provided i Regulation 17(10} of the SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, the Board reviewed the evaluation process by applying the provisions of Section 149 and
Schedule IV to the Companies Act and the regulations as provided under the SEB] Regulations in
respect of the Independent Directors of the Company with the following criteria:

¢ the performance ofthe Independent Directors

» fulfilhment of the independence criteria as specitied under the Companies Act, 2013
and regulationsunder SEB1 Regulations.

e Theprocess of evaluation stating the objectives,oriteria for evaluation.
s periodic review of the evaluation process.

The Independent Directors whao attended the meeting of the Board did not participate in the discussion
in respect of the evaluation of the Independent Director. There was sufficient quorum excluding the
Independent Directors during the time of evaluation,

Proeclrating by Independent Divectors

The Independent Directors have submitied their disclosures to the Board that they fuifill all the
requirements as stipulated in Section 149(6} of the Companics Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(1)(b} of
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 so as fo qualify
themselves 1o act as Independent Directors under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
the relevant rules made thereunder. Further, they have also declared that they are not aware of any
circumstance or situation, which exist or may be reasonably anticipated, that could impair or impact
their ability to discharge their duties with an objective independent judgment and without any external
influence. The Independent Directors have also confirmed that they have complied with the
Company's Code of Business Conduct & Ethics.

ade ol pardast

Al Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management of the Company have confirmed
comphance with the Code of Conduct applicable to the Directors and employees of the Company, The
Code of Conduct is available on the Company's website www.ytmill.com. All Directors have

‘confirmed compliance with provisions of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013,

20




Dperiors’ Hespoosihiliny Satement

The Board of DHrectors acknowledges the responsibility for ensuring compliance with the provisions

of Section 134(3¥¢) read with Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the provisions as

referred in SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 in the

s

preparation of the annual accounts for the vear ended on 317 March, 2020 and state that .

i

i,

Hi.

iv.

v.

vi.

in the preparation of the annwal accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been
followed along with proper explanation relating to materiai departures, if any;

the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonabie and prudent 5o as 1o give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the Corapany
for that period,

the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and forpreventing and detecting frand and other irregularities;

the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that
such internal financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively and the Company has
adopted proper policies and procedures for ensuring orderly and efficient conducting of the
business:

a}  The management designed and impiemented policies with respect to adherence to
accounting standards as a general requirement apphied by a Company in preparing
and preseating financial staternents,

by  The management evelved a sound system for regular evaluation of the nature snd
extent of the risks to which the Company is exposed and to control sk
appropriately.

) The board ensured the effective financial controls, including the maintenance of
proper accounting records and the Company is not unnecessarily exposed to
avoidable financial nisks. They also contribute to the safeguarding of assets.
including the prevention and detection of fraud. The financial information used
within the business and for publication isreliabie.

the Directors had devised proper system to ensure comphianee with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.




Bew Mapagorial Forsonned
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The following persons have been appointed as Key Munagerial Personnel of the Company in
compliance with the provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 201 3:

a) Sri T. Karman, Chairman and Managing Director
) Sri. M Ramanathan, Chief Financial Officer
cl Sri 5. Paramasivam, Company Secretary

i nrnorats Llovernas

The Company has in place the SEB! guidelines pertaining to Corporate Governance. During the year
under consideration, the Company had an Eight members Board of Directors consisting of one
Chairman and Managing Director. four Non-Executive Independent Directors, three Non-Executive
Directors of which one is 2 Woman Director,

The Corporate Governance Report giving the details as reguired under Regulation 34(3) read with
Schedule V to SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Regquirements) Regulations, 2015 15 given
separately as Annexure T and forms part of this Report of the Directors. The Corporate Governance
Certificate for the year ended on March 31, 2020 issued by M/s. CNGSN & Asscciates LLP, Auditors of
the Company, is also attached as part of Aunexure Tand forms a part of this Report of the Directors.

The Company has formulated Insider Trading Code and Insider Trading Fair Disclosure Code in terms
of Regulation 9 read with Schedule B and Regulation 8 read with Schedule A of SEBI (Prohibition of
Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 respectively and provided in the company’s websile at
www.vtmill.com. Mr.$. Paramasivam, Company Secretary, is the Compliance Officer responsible for
compliance with the Insider Trading procedures. As there was no ingider trading in the securities of the
company, the company has ot reported any Insider Trading details to the Stock Exchange.

Sri T. Kannan, Chairman and Managing Dircctor of the Company has  given his certificate under
Regulation 17(8) read with part D of Schedule I of SEBI {Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Reguirementst Regulations, 20135 regarding the annual financial statements for the vearended on 3 1st
March, 2020 to the Board of Directors which is attached as Annexure [X. The Chairman has given his
certificate under Regulation 34(3) read with Part D of Schedule V of the above said Regulations in
compliance with the Code of Conduct of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2620, which s
attached as Annexure Vi and forms a part of this Report of the Directors.

Aty Conmiliss

The Audit Committee consists of three Independent Directors and satisfies the provisions of Section
177(2) of the Companics Act, 2013, The Committee now comprises MrRM. Somasundaram as
Chairmoan and Mr.A. Mariappan and MrM.Murugesan as Members,




The Company Secretary s the Secretary of the Committee, The defails of all related party iransactions
are placed periodically before the Audit Committer. During the year there were no instances where the
Board had net accepted the recommendations of the Audit Committee, The Company has i place a
vigil mechanisim, details of which are available on the Company's website www.vimill.com

The Audit Committee has also been delegated the responsibility for monitoring and reviewing risk
management assessment and minimization procedures, implementing and monitoring the risk
management plan and identifying, reviewing and mitigating all elements of risks which the Company
may be exposed to,

The Audit Committee is empowered with menitoring the appointment of Key Managerial Personnel.

The details of terms of reference of the Audit Committee, number and dates of meetings held,
attendance of the Directors and remuneration paid to them are given separately in the attached
Corporate (Governance Repott.

e Bhwor Podivy / Vig

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 22 of Listing
Regulations, the Company has formulated Vigil Mechamsm / Whistle Blower Policy to enable
Directors and employees of the Company to report concerns about unethical behavior, actual or
suspecied fraud or violation of Code of Conduct, that could adversely impact the Company’s
operations, business performance and / or reputation, in a secure and confidential manner. The said
policy provides adequate safeguards against victimization of Directors/femployees and direct aceess to
Chairman of Audit Committee, in exceptional cases. The Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy is
available on the website of the Company under the web-link hitps://www.vtmill.com/investor/ Vigil
Mechanism-Whistle-Blower-Policy.pdf Your Company atfirms that no personnei of the Company has
been denied access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee and no complaint has been received during
the yearunder review.

Cvalnntion of the Board of i own performance, Committees of the Board  and

astivictunl drectors:

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act and the Listing Regulations, the Board has carried out the annual
evaluation of its own performance, the individual Directors (including the Chairman)} as well as an
evaluation of the working of all Board Committees.

The Board reviewed and evaluated its own performance from the following angles:
. Company Performance
. Strategy and Implementation

® Risk Management
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® Corporate sthics
* Performance of the Individual Directors
* Pertormance of the:Cﬂmmiuess viz,, Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration

Commifiee, Stakeholders Relationship Conuittee and Corporate Soctal Responsibility
Commitiee

The Board also evaluated the performance of the above referred Committees and concluded that the
Cormitiees continued to operate effectively, with full participation from all members and executive
management of the Company.

The Board upon evaluation considered that the Board is well balanced in terms of diversity of
experience. The Board noted that all Directors have understood the opportunities and risks to the
Company's strategy, and are supbortive of the direction articulated by the management teamn towards
improvement. Corporate responsibility, ethics and compliance are taken seriously, and there is a good
balance between the core values of the Company and the interests of shareholders.

The Directors also expressed their satisfaction in ail the above areas considering the Company's
performance in all fronts vie,, New Product Development, Sales and Marketing, International
business, Employee relations and compliance with statotory requirements.

Allthe results of evaluation have been communicated to the Chairman of the Board of Directors,
Helated Porty Transacilons:

During the year 2018-19, the company has entered into contracts or arrangements for a period of five
years from 01.04.2019 10 31.03.2024 with such number of related parties with the approval by the
Board of Directors and the members of the company at the Annual General Meeting wherever
necessary inrespect of the following:

1. Sale, purchase or supply of any goods or materials

2. Selling or otherwise disposing of, or buying, property of any kind

Led

. Leasing of property of any kind
4. Availing or rendering of any services
3. Obligations

The details in respect of the material contracts or arrangements or transactions on arm's length
basis carried on with the related parties have been furnished in Annexure V.
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A Corporate Social Responsibility Committee was constituted on April 24, 2014 with Sn'T. Kannan as
Chairman and M/s, K. Thiagarajan and RM. Somasundaram, Directors of the Company as Members.

The Committee met on 30.01.2020 during the vear, to review the CSR policies, recommend for
contributions for CSR Activities carried out during the year and recommmend for accumulation of
baltance amount to be spent In subsequent years in view of the larger projects to be undertaken by the
educational institution to which the company is contributing for CER activities.

The Committee considered the social activities as referred in Schedule V11 to the Companies Act and
recognizes that its operations impact a wide community of the public for promoting health care
inchuding preventive health care and imparting education foruplifting the social status of the public. In
structuring its approach to various aspects of Corporate Social Responsinlity, the Company takes
account of guidetines and statements issued by various regulatory bodies. Social, environment and
ethical matters are reviewed by the Commitiee including the impact of such matters that may have on
the Company's management of risk.

The Company finalized the manner of implementation of the CSR Policy and spent a sum of Rs, 0,75
lakhs towards conducting eyve camp for the pubtic, nearby the mills, as a preventive heaith care activity
and accumulated a sum of Rs.52.51 lakhs as unspent m view of undertaking infrastructure
enhancement projects by the educational institution to which the company is contributing for CSR
activities. The details of the project, amount of estimates and the amount spent for the projects
undertaken and the unspent amounts has been shown in Anmexure VL

The CSR policy is available on the Company's website www.vtmiil.com

The terms of reference of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee, number and dates of
meetings held, attendance of the Directors and remumeration paid to them are given separately in the
attached Corporate Governance Report,

Provention ol Sesual Harasaments

In compliance with the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2613, the Company has constituted an Internal Complaints Committee with three
emplovees and a NGO representative and Smt. Uma Kannan, Director of the Company is the Adviser
to the Commitree. The Board also has approved the prevention of Sexual Harassment Policy and alj
emplovees especially women employees were made aware of the Policy and the manner i which
complaints conld be lodged. The Committee has submitted its Annual Report and the same has been
approved by the Board.




The following is reported pursuant to Section 22 of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
{Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal} Act, 201 3:

1. | No. of Complaints of sexual harassment received NIL

2. | No. ef Complaints disposed off during the vear NIL

3.} No.of cases pending for more than ninety days NIL

4. | No. of awareness programme conducted t

5. Nature of action taken by the employer Not Applicable

YLONHBEUGD S ROD I Rersinn Latnnitee

A Nomination and Remuneration Committee was constituted on April 24, 2014 and as on 31st March,
2020, Sri RM. Somasundaram is the Chairman, an Independent Director and M/s. T, Kannan,
K. Thiagarajan and A. Mariappan arc Members of the Committee. The constitution satisfies the
provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 as well as the SEBI Regulations. The Company
Secretary is the Secretary of this Committee.

During the year, the Cominitiee met once on 30.04.2019, for reviewing the Nomunation and
Remuneration Policy.

The Company’s Remuneration Policy is available on the Company's website www. vtmill.com and
annexed as forming part ofthis report as Annexure X.

The details of terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. number and dates
of meetings held. attendance of' the Directors and remuneration paid to them are given separately in the
attached Corporate GovernanceReport.

Stakeholders Relationship Committes

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee now consist of St TN Ramanathan as Chatrman and Sri
T. Kannan, and K Vethachalam as Members. The Company Secretary is the Secretary of the
Committee as per the Regulation 20 of the SEBI(LODR) Regulations, 2015, o have three Directors as
Members of the Committee with one Independent Director Member. The Committee met once during
the year on 30.01.2020. ' '

The Committee has delepated the responsibility for share transfers and other routine share
maintenance work to the Company Secretary and to M/s KFin Technologies Private Limited,
{formerly known as Karvy Fintech Private Limited) the Registrars and Share Transfer Agents of the
Company. All requests for demateriatisation and rematerialisation of shaves, transfer or transmission of
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shares and other share mainfenance matters are completed within 30 days of receipt of valid and
complete documnents. The Comnuttee approved all activities through Circular Resolutions and all
those Circular Resolutions were placed and discussed at the Board mectings. The Committee also
reports to the Board on matters relating o the shareholding pattern, shareholding of major
sharcholders, insider trading compliances, movement of share prices, redressal of complaints, Reports
on SCORES of SEBI and alf compliances under the Compamnies Act, 2013 and the listing agreement
with Stock Exchanges,

The shares of the Company are listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange. The Company's shares are
compulsorily traded in the dematerialized form. The ISIN number allotted is INE222F01029. The
details of sharehoiding pattern, distribution of shareholding and share prices are mentioned separately
w1 the attached Corporate Governance Report.

Transfer (o investor Bdueathen & prodection Tund:
Fransiorai shares:

During the year the Stake holder relationship committee has transmitted 654800 equity shares of the
company into DEMAT account of the JEPF Authosity held with NSDL (DP ID Client id IN200708
10656671 in terms of Provisions of Section 124(6) of the companies Act 2013, and the related Rules.
These equity shares were the shares of 118 shareholders whose unclaimed dividend pertaining to the
year 201112 had been transferred to IEPF and who had not encashed their dividends for seven
subsequent financial vears,

Individual reminders were sent to concerned share holders advising them to encash their dividend and
the complete lst of such shareholders , whose shares were due for transfer to FEPF was also placed in
the website of company.

Audditars

In terms of Section 139 of the Companies Act and the rules made thereon, M/s CNGSN & Associates
LLP, Chartered Accountants, Chennat (Firm Regn. No, 0049158/8200036) have been appointed as
Auditors of the Company by the members at their mesting held on 23 June, 2017 and the Auditors
have been appointed for a period of five vears from the conclusion of 70" Annual General Meeting 6ili
the conclusion of the 75" Annual General Meeting. The Auditors have already submitted certification

ws, 14} of the Companies Act andd Peer Review Certificate in respect of their appointment as Auditors
ofthe Company,

AUBHTORS
Seatutory Auditors

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules made thereunder,
M/s CNGSN & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants, Chennai (Firm Regi, No, 0049158/5200036
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were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold offiee till conclusion of the 75" Annual
General Meeting {AGM) of the Company. M/zx CNGSN & Asscciates LLP, Chartered Accountants,
Chennai, with 8ri. Chinnsamy Ganesan as signing partner have consented and confirmed their
eligibility and desire to continne as Statutory Audstors of the Company for the Financial Year 2020-21.
Thie Auditors have already submitted certification w/s. 141 of the Companies Act and Peer Review
Centificate in respect of their appointment as Auditors of the Company.

Sutors” Repoars:

Thie Notes to the financial statements referred in the Auditors Report are self-explanatory. There are no
qualifications or reservations or adverse remarks or disclaimers given by Statwtory Auditors’ of the
Company and therefore do not call for any comments under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013,
The Auditors' Report is enclosed with the financial staterents in this Annual Report.

sepretarvis Andi

A Secretarial Audit was conducted during the vear by the Secretarial Auditor, MrMLK. Bashyam,
Practicing Company Secretary, i accordance with the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies
Act, 2013, The Secretarial Auditor's Report along with Secretarial Compliance Report {as reqguired
under the amended SEBI Regulations) is attached as Annexure 1 and forms a part of this Report of the
Dirveetors. There are no qualifications or observations or romarks made by the Secretarial Auditor inhis
Report.

§ PR FLg e
Poternnd Aud it

Pursuant to Provision of Section 38 of Companies Act, 2013, read with Companies {Accounts) Rules,
2014, the Board of Directors on recommendation of Audit Committee has appointed M/s. Sundaram &
Srinivasan., Chartered Accountants, as an Internal Auditors of the Company, Intemal Auditors submits
their reports on quarterly basis to the Audit Commitice. Based on the report of Internal Audit functon,
corrective actions in the respective area are undertaken & controls are strengthened. Sigmificant audit
observations and corrective actions thercon are presented 1o the Audit Committee of the Board, The
internal audit for the Q4 2019-20 was not completed due to lockdown and the same will be completed
indue course,

{pnt Auditor amd osf Heenpds

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies {Cost
Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, the Company was required to maintain cost records. Accordingty, the
Company bas duly made and maintained the Cost Records as mandated by the Central Government.

The Board of Directors had approved the appointment of Shri M. Kannan, Cost Accountant as the Cost
Auditor of the Company to audit the Company's Cost Records for the year 2020-21, at a remuneration
of R5.40,000/- plus applicable taxes and out-of-pocket expenses.
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The remuneration of the cost auditor is required to be ratified by the members in accordance with the
provisions of Section 148(3} of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 14 of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, Accordingly, the matter is being placed before the Members For ratification at
the ensuing Anmual General Meeting,

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and as such, there are no cuistanding
deposits in terms of the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits Rules, 2014,

The company does nothave any depositwhich is not in compliance with the Companies Act, 201 3.

Loans, puaranices and investmenis

The Company has not granted any inter-corporate foan, given guarantee or provided security for
availing loan by any other company. However the company has invested its funds m such number of
companies and in such number of shares and securities in other bodies corporate as referred to in Notes
Mo. 06 and 10 of the Balance Sheet.

In compliance with Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, loans to employees bear interest at
applicable rates.

Censervation of Enerey, Technolory Absorption and Vorelpn Exehrnge Darsisgs sad

Lhuipn

The prescribed particulars of Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange
Earnings and Outgo required under section 134(3)m) read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies
{ Accounts) Rules, 2014 is attached as Annexure [V and forms a part of this Report of the Directors.

Fartivnlarsof Bmplovess

The prescribed particulars of Employees required under Section 134(3)q) read with Rule 5 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel} Rules, 2014 is attached as
Annexure VI and forms a part of this Report of the Directors. There are no emplovees drawing
remuneration more than Rs. 102 Lakhs per annum or Rs.8,50,000/- per month.

Statemant Un Complinnes With Seoretarial Mandards

The Directors have devised systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
Secretarial Standards and that such systems are adequate, and operating effectively. The Company is
incompliance with the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries
of India and approved by the Central Government under Section 115(10) of the Act.
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Anneveres onmtog g pavi of Uus Heporiof the hveciors

The Annexures referred to in this Report and other information which are required to be disclosed are
annexed herewith and forms a part of this Report of the Directors

L

H.
HE.
V.

VI
VI

VHL

IX.

X.

Appreciation

Corporate Governance Report along with Certificate on Corporate Governance by
the Auditor of the Company.

Secretarial Audii Report
Extract of the Annual Returnin Form MGTE-9.

Particulars on Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign
Exchange Earnings and Qutgo.

Form AOC-2 for materiai contracts with Related Parties.
Ratio of remuneration and Particufars of Employees.
Annual Report on CSR spending,

Chainman & Managing Director's Certificate under Regulation 34(3) read
with Part I of Schedule V to SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 on compliance of Code of Conduct.

Certificate by Chairman and Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer
under Regulation 17(8), of the SEB! (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 on Financial Statements.

Remuneration Policy.

Your Directors record their sincere appreciation of the dedication and commitment of all employees in

achieving and sustaining excellence i all arcas of the business. Your Directors thank the Shareholders,

customers, suppliers and Bankers and other stakehelders for their continuous support to the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,

Kappalur, Madurai.

June 12, 2020,

CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR
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Mlanssement Biscussion & Ansbysis:
Figancial Porformanes

The company's Sales Turnover has margally increased by 73 lakhs  from Rs. 15,980 Lakhs fo
Rs.16,053 Lakhs registering an increase of 0.46%. The Profit after depreciation has increased by
R%.236 lakhs from Rs.1.400 Lakhs to Rs 1,636 Lakhs. Though the total current tax provision
(including deferred tax liabilityt has increased from 379 lakhs to 426 lakhs, the tax provision has come
down due to capex n the form of machinery additions. The Profitafter tax has increased from Rs. 1,021
iakhs ta 1,210 lakhs as set out in the Directors' Report.

Kev Financial Rattos:

Ratios 2018-19 2015-2020 % Change
Debtors Turnover 113 days 44 days (-} 61%
Inventory Turnover 7% 52% (-} 28%
Interest Coverage Ratio 13.33 13.91 4%
Current Ratio 13.64 4.77 (-} 50%
Debt Equity Ratio 0.04 0.05 25%
Operating Margin 9.48 16.19 7.49%
Net Profit Margin 6.13 7.59 23.82%
Return on Net Worth 418 3.03 (-3 7.51%

Prduetyy BMructure snd Developimenis:

Industry structare and developments has been elaborately stated in the Director’s Report,
Poceenal Onantral Systems and their Adeguosey:

Internal Control Systems has been elaborately stated in the Director's Repont.

Human Besources

The Company has a recruitment and training policy to meet its HR needs. The Company's performance
onthe Industrial Relations front continues to be quite satisfactory.

aeptionary Siniement:

Certain statements in the “Management Discussion and Analysis Report” may be forward looking and
are as required by applicable laws and regulations. Many factors may affect the actual results, which
could be different from what the Directors envisage in terms of the future performance and outlook —
the ever present risk factors,




Annexure 1: Corporate Governance Report 2019-20

THE COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE;

The Company believes that Good Corporate Governance is essential for achieving Long term
corporate goals, besides following highest standards of ethics, ransparency and integrity to improve
the performance at all levels and enhancing stakeholder's value,

The company's business objective and that of its Management and Employees is to manufacture and
market the products in such a way so as to create value that can be sustained on a long term basis for all
its stakeholders.

The Company in addition to compliance with regulatory requiremenis,also endeavours to ensure high
standards of ethical conduct in the organization.

1. AReport on Corporate Governance is given below and Auditors certificate in compliance with
the provisions of Corporate Governance is enclosed separately.

2. BOARDOFDIRECTORS
2.1. Composition and Category of Directors

The Board of Directors as on 12th June 2020 consists of Eight Directors of which there are One
Executive Director, Three Non-Executive Directors and Four Independent Directors, and thus it s in
compiiance with SEBI Reguiations. The details of the composition of the Board of Directors are as

follows:
Name of the Director Category Particulars
Sri T.Kannan Chairman and Executive Director
Managing Director
Dr. (Smt.) Uma Kannan | Director MNon-Executive Woman
Director

Sri K. Thiagarajan Director Non-Executive Director
Sri RM.Somasundaram | Director Independent Director
S5ri A. Mariappan Director Independent Director
Sri M. Murugesan Director Independent Director
Sri T.N.Ramanathan Director Independent Director
Sri K, Vethachalam Director Non-Executive Director

2.2, Details of the Directors

The current composition of the Board of Directors complies with the provisions of SEBI (Listing
Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the provistons of Companies Act,
2013,

in the present Board, Sri T. Kannan, Chairman & Managing Director, Dr.(Smt.) Uma Kannan and 5S¢t
K. Thiagarajan are related to each other,

e
e
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None of the Directors on the Board is a member on more than 10 Commitiees as per the requirements of
Regulation 26 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015,
Necessary disclosures have been made by the Directors in this regard.

The Board meets at least once in a guarter to review the performance of the Company, and also meets as
and when to transact any special business that may arise,

Dr.(Smt.) Uma Kannan Director of the Company, retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General
Meeting and being eligible has offered herself for reappointment as a Director of the Company. She 1s
proposed to be re-appointed as a Director of the Company. The personal information abowt Dr.{Smt.)
Uma Kannanis given as below:

D (Smt.)y Uma Kamman was appointed as Woman Director of the Company on 25th March, 2015, She s
Doctorate in Sociotogy from Madural Kamaraj University. She is the Director of M/s. Thiagarajar
Mills Pvt Limited,M/s. Thiagarajar Telekom Solutions Limited and Colour Yarns Limited. Assuchshe
possesses knowledge and experience in corporate affhairs.

Dr. (Smt.} Uma Kannan does nothold any equity shares in the Company.

Al Directors have certified that the disqualitications mentioned under sections 164, 167 and 169 of the
Compames Act, 2013 do not apply to them. Independent Directors have confirmed that they have
complied with the Code for Independent Directors mentioned in Schedule IV of the Companies Act,
2013 and that they are not disqualified to act as an Independent Directors in compliance with the

provisions of section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Independent Direetors' Criteria:

The Board of Directors confirms that the Independent Directors fulfill the criteria in respect of their
independency as referved under the provisions of Section 149 and Schedule [V to the Companies Act,
2013 and under the regulations referred in the SEBIH{LODR) Regulations as amended from time @
titne,

Familiarization Programme: At the time of induction, the Company familiarizes the Independent
Directors with regard to their role & responsibilities, industry outlook, business strategy, Company's
operations etc. Thereafier, the Independent Directors are provided with necessary documents, reports,
mternal policies and updates to familiarise them with the Company's business, policies, procedures
and practices at various Meetings held during the year.

2.3 CodeofConduct

The Code of Conduct laid down by the company, which has been adopted by the Board of Directars, is
applicable to the Directors and all employees of the Company. This Code of Conduct emphasizes the
Company's commitment to compliance with the highest standards of legal and ethical behaviour. The
Code of Conduct is available on the website of the Company www.vtmill.com under heading Investor
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Information’. All Directors and senior management have adhered fo the Code of Conduct of the

Company during the year and have signed declarations of compliance to the Code of Conduct. The

declaration signed by Chairman and Managing Director, is given sgparately in the Annual Report.

2.4. Listofskills/expertise or competence of Board of Directors:

The Board comprises of Members who have varied skills, experience and knowledge 1o effectively

govern and direct the organisation. The skills and attiributes of the Board can be broadly categorised as

follows:

+  Governance skills (skills directly relevant to performing the Board's key functions);

« Industry skills (skills relevant to the textile industry);

+  Financial skills (Skills relevantto Treasury and Banking Management)

= Accounting skilis (Skills relevant to Accounting Functions)

+  Administrative skills (Skills relevant to Administrative functions)

Details of listed entities where the Directors of the Company are Directors and category of

Directorship:

Directors

Listed Entities

Category of Directorship

Sri.T.Kannan TVS Motor Company Limited

Independent Director

Sri.T.Kannan Sundaram Brake Linings Limited

Independent Director

2.5 Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

Ason March 31, 2020 following shares of the Company were held by Directors:

Name Designation | No. of shares
Sri.T. Kannan CMD 585600
Sri.K. Thiagarajan Director 153600
Sri RM. Sormasundaram Director 60000

No other Director or Key Managerial Personnel holds any shares in the Company.
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2.6 Board Mectings, Annoal General Meeting and Attendance

During the vear under review six Board Meetings were held and sitting fees have been paid to the
Directors as detailed herein:-

) 22,04,19 | 24,07,19 | 04.09.19 | 18,10, | 23,11,19 | 30,0120 | 12,02,20 | Total
Director Name {Rs.) {Rs.) (Rs.) 18 (Rs} (R} {(Rs}) . {(Rs}
{Rs.)
Uma Kannan 5000 5000 5000 5000 5000 5000 36000
K. Thiagarajan 5000 5300 Z000 5000 5000 5000 5080 35000
/M.Somasundaram 5000 5000 - - 5000 5000 5000 25000
A. Mariappan 5000 5000 5000 5000 5600 5000 5000 35000
M. Murugesan 5000 5004 5000 15000
T.N.Ramanathan ne - - - -- -- -- ~-
K.Vethachalam S000 SB00 S000 5000 P 5000 - ....30000
TOTAL 25006 30000 15000 25000 25000 | 25000 20060 | 170000

Nositting fees pard to Sri T. Kannan as he is the Chatrman and Managing Director.

The Company Secretary,S. Paramasivam,is the Secretary to the Board of Diirectors and has attended all
meetings of the Board of Directors,

2.7. Board Committees

In linc with the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 17 of the SEB! Listing Regulations (LODR)
2013, the Company has constituted Audit Commitice, Corporate Social Responsibility Committee,
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee.

The composition, terms of reference, attendance and other details of these Committees are mentioned
later inthis Report.

2.8. Directorships and Committee membership in other companies

None of the Directors on the Board is a member of more than 10 Committees and Chairman of more
than 5 Commiitees [as specified in Regulation 26 of the SEB] (Listing Obligations & Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations 201 5] across all listed companies in India of which he is a Director,

Independent Directors do not serve in more than 7 listed companies. Mone of the Independent
Directors are whole-time directors in any listed Company.




Directorships and Membership of Committees in other companies held by Directors as on March, 31,
2019 and the Attendance of the Directors at the Board meetings and the Annual General Meeting is

¥ LiMTTED

given below:
Names of the Cate | No. of Attend- No. of No. of Whether
Directors gury { Board ance at Other member | Chairman/
Meetings | the fast Diractor- ships in | Member
attended | AGM held | ships in Board
on companies | Commit |
17.6.2019 | other than | “tees |
VTM

; Thiru T, Kannan ED & a* 4 Chairman
j 5 Mermber

Thiru K.Thiagarajan | NED 7 Y 3* 3 Member

Dr.{Smt.} Uma NED 6 3 -

Kannan

Thiru &M, NEID 5 v 3 2 Chairman

Sormasundaram i Member

Thiru A. Mariappan NEID 7 - 1 Chairman

. 1 Member

i Thiru M, Murugesan | NEID 3 i 7 1 Chairman
? 3 Member
i Thiry MNELD | 2 1 - -
| T.N.Ramanathan _ :
| Thiru K. Vethachalam | NED 5 6 - -

1D: independent Director VIM~VTMLIMITED
NED-Non Executive Director. NEID-»Noﬁ Executive Independent Director.
Note: * includes Directorship in | Company coming under Section § of the Companies Act, 2013,

Thiru K.Thiagarajan Divector and Thiru. RM. Somasundaram, Director have attended the Annual
General Meeting held on 17.06.2019,

JAUDITCOMMITTEE

3.1 Constitution and Composition: The Audit Committee was constituted  during the financial year
2001-2002, and reconstituted in view of the retirement of a director in 2019-20. Accordingly.

the Audit Committee consists of following Directors as the members

Director Category
Thira RM. Soinasundaram Chairman
‘Fhire M. Murogesan Member
Thiru A, Mariappan Membeor
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3.2

33

14

The Chairman and Managing Director is permanent invitee in all meetings. The Company
Secretary is the Secretary to the Audit Committee. All Directors are financially literate and
Mr.A. Mariappan has accounting and related financial management expertise. Besides, Mr.RM.
Somasundaram also has sound technical knowledge and has finance expertise, The Statuiory
Auditors are invited to the meetings to discuss with the Directors the scope of audit, their
comments and recommendation on the accounts, records, risks, internal procedures and internal
controls of the Company.

Terms of Reference: The terms of reference of the Audit Committee cover all the areas
mentioned under Part C of the Schedule T to the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Board has
also inchuded in the termws of reference of the Audit Commitiee, the monitoring, implementing
and review of risk management plan as required under Regulation 18 and as per Part C (Role of
Audit committee) of Schedule ITof the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, The broad terms of reference of the Audit Committee therefore include
review of financial reporting process and all financial results, statements and disclosures and
recommending the same to the Board, reviewing the tnternal audit reports and discussing the
same with the internal auditors, reviewing internal control systems and procedures, to mect the
statutory auditors and discuss their findings, their scope of audit, post audit discussion,
adequacy of internal audit functions, audil qualifications, if any, appointment / removal and
remuneration of auditors, changes in accounting policies and practices, reviewing approval and
disclosure of all related party transactions, reviewing with the management, the performance of
the statutory and internal anditors and their remuneration, coraphance with listing agreements/
SEBI{LCDR)Regulations, and other legal requirements and the Company’s financial and risk
management plan and policies and its implementation, disaster recovery policies and
compliance with statutory requirements.

Internal Audit: The Internal Audit Department of the Company is carrying the mternal audit
periodically.

Attendance: During the financial year ended March 31, 2020, five meetings of the Audit
Committee were held

Date of Meeting

Director Name

22.4.19
(Rs.)

24.07.19
(Rs.)

18.10.19 |

{Rs.)

30.01.20
{Rs)

12.02.20
{Rs.}

Total
{Rs.)

RM.Somasundaram

5000

5060

5000

5000

20800

A. Mariappan

5000

5000

5000

5000

5060

25006

M.Murugesan

5000

5000

5000

15006

TOTAL

10060

15000

10000

15000

10000

60000

tad
~1
SU—




4, Remuneration to Directors:

Total Remuneration paid o Non-Executive Directors for attending meetings of the Board and
Committees during the year ended March 31, 2020 (s givenbelow

Sitting Fees
Name of the Director {For Board & Committee

Meetings)
Thiru T. Kannan (Chairman and -
Managing Director)
Thiru K.Thiagarajan Rs.45000/-
Thiry RM. Somasundaram Rs.60000/-
Thiru T.N.Ramanathan ) i
Thiru A, Mariappan Rs, 70000/~
Thiru M. Murugesan Rs.35000/-
Dr.{Smt.) Uma Kannan Rs.30000/-
Thiru K.Vethachalam Rs.30000/-

5a. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Constitation and Composition: The Nomination and Remuncration Committee was constituted on
Apiil 25, 2014 in compliance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Regulation 19 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Reguiations, 2015,

Sri.RM. Somasundaram an Independent Director, is the Chairman of the Committee. The other
members are Sri. T.Kannan, Sri. K. Thiagarajan, and Sri. A Mariappan.

Terms of Reference: The terins of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee cover all
the areas mentioned under Schedule 11 Part D of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, The broad terns of
reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Commitice therefore include recommending a policy
relating to remuneration and employment, terms of Whole Time Directors and senior management
personnel, adherence 1o the remuneration/employment policy as finally approved by the Board of
Directors, preparing the criteria and identify persons who may be appointed as Directors or Senior
Management of the Company, preliminary evaluation of every Director’s performance. Board
diversity, compliance of the Code for Independent Directors referred to in Schedute IV of the
Companies Act, 2013, compliance with the Company’s Code of Conduct by Directors and employees
of the Company, reporting non-compliances o the Board of Dircctors, recommending draft of the
report required under Rule 3 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 which will form part of the Directors Report to Shareholders, monitor loans to
employees and any other matters which the Board of Directors may direct from time 1o time.

Attendance: During the financial year ended March 31, 2020, one meeting of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee was held on 22.04,2019 which were attended by all members. The sitting

fee has been paid 10 the members of the Committes as under: T




The Attendance of the Dircetors at the Commitiee meetings and remuneration paid to them are as

under:
Sitting Fees 5
Name of the Director (Committee Meeting)
Thiru RM.Somasundaram-Chairman Rs.5,000
Thiru T.Kannan-Member -
Thiru A Mariappan-Member Rs.5,000
Thiru K, Thiagarajan - Member Rs,5,000

Remuneration Policy: During the year, the Committee reviewed the Nomination and Remuneration
Policy and as recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Comunittee, the policy has been
approved by the Board of Directors.

The terms of reference of the Committee inter alia, include the following:
Succession planning ofthe Board of Directors, and Senior Management Emplovees;

Identifving and selection of candidates for appointment as Directors/ Independent Directors based on
certain laid down criteria; identifying potential individuals for appointment as Key Managerial
Personnel, and to other Senior Management positions;

Formulate and review from time to time, the policy for selection and  appointment of Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel and senior management employees and their remuneration;

Review the performance of the Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel based on certain
criteria as approved by the Board. In reviewing the overall remuneration of the Board of Directors and
Senior Management, the Committee ensures that the remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to
attract, retain and motivate the best managerial talent, the relationship of remuneration to performance
is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks and that the remuneration involves a balance
between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short termn and long term objectives of the Corpany,

Remumneration o Directors:

Sri T. Kannan, the Chairman and Managing Director of the company is entitled to a remuneration not
exceeding 5% of the Net Profits as computed u/s. 198 of the Companies Act, 2013 and accordingly a
sumof Rs.56,00 lakhs has been provided as remuneration for the year 2019-20.

The Non-Executive Directors are entitled to sitting fees for every meeting of the Board or Committee
thereof attended by them. They are also entitled to commission not exceeding 1% of the net profits of
the Company,

5b. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee:

As required under section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee was constituted on April 25, 2014 with Sri T.Kannan as Chairman and Sri. K. Thiagarajan
and Sri. RM. Somasundaram as Members.
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The terms of reference of this Committec is to comply with the requirements of Section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013, the Companies {Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and ali
other relevant compliances.

The Comumnittee met once during the vear on 30th January 2020, which was attended by S T.Kannan,
CMD, 8ri. K. Thiagarajan and RM. Somasundaram, Divectors of the Company, for approval of the CSR
spending  and excepting Sri.T.Kannan, other Directors received a sitting fee of Rs. 5,000/~ for the
meeting.

The C8R Policy, which was approved by the Board, is available on the Company's website.

The Board has accepted all the recommendations of all Commitices,

Separate Meeting of Independent Directors;

The Independent Directors of the company M/s. RM. Scmasundaram, A.Mariappan and
M. Murugesan meton 3ist  January 2020 without the attendance of Non-Independent Directors and
members of management. They deliberated and reviewed the performance of the Non-Independent
Directors and the Board as a whele. Besides they assessed the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow
of information between the Company management and the Board members that is necessary and
essential for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties,

SHARES:
6. STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The Commnittee considered and reviewed the Terms of Reference of the Committee taking into account
the additional role of SRC as amended vnder Schedule I Part DY B ofthe SEBIHLODR) Regulations

Constitution and Composition: The Stakeholders Relationship Commitiee has been reconstituted in
terms of Regulation 20 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations duly amended consisting of Sri T.N.
Ramanathan an Independens Director as Chairman and 8 T Kanpanr and Sri . Vethachalam as
Members of the Comumittee, The commiitee met ones during the year.

The Stakeholders’ Retationship Committee has through Circular resolutions, approved during the year
Jthe transfers, transmissions and demat requests. Mr.S. Paramasivam, Secretary of the Company, who
is also the Secretary and Compliance Gfficer for the Committee.

During the year Nine grievances (including one outstanding at the beginning of yearjregarding hon-
receipt of shares applied for transfer/transmission, non-receipt of dividend, Balance Shect and related
matters were received from the shareholders and all were redressed. There was no shares pending for
transfer atthe close ofthe year,

Information on Unclaimed Dividend:

During the year the Stake holder relationship committee of directors has transmitted 634800 equity
shares of the company into DEMAT account of the IEPF Authority held with NSDL (DP [D Chentid
IN3OO708 106566713 in terms of Provisions of Section 124(63 of the companies Act 2013, and the
related IEPF Rules. These equity shares were the shares of 118 shareholders whose unclaimed
dividend pertaining to the year 2011-12 had been transferred to IEPF and who had not encashed their
dividends for seven subsequent financial years.




Individual reminders were sent to concerned share holders advising them to encash their dividend and
the complete list of such shareholders . whose shares were due for transfer to TEPF was also placed

the website of company.

Pursuant to provisions of the Companies Act 2013, Company is committed in making timely payvment

of dividend.

Distribution of Sharcholding as on 31.03.2028:
No. of Shares No, of % of No. of % of

held Shareholders | Sharehoiders | Shares | Shareholding

Up to 5000 2769 90.52 | 2459227 6.11
5001 - 10000 116 3.79 784639 1.95
10001 - 20000 77 2.52 1117651 2.78
20001 - 30000 36 i.18 924997 2.30
30001 - 40000 i6 6.52 582380 1.45
40001 - 50000 4 G.13 180374 0.45
50001 -
100000 18 0.59 1388531 3.45
100001 -
above 23 0.75} 32789801 81.51
Total 3059 100,00 1 40227600 100.00

Shareholding pattern as on31st March 2020;

Shareholders No. of Shares held % of toial shares
heid
Promoters 30169700 75.00
Corporate Bodies 384397 .96
Public 9439100 23.46
NRI's 234403 0.58
Total 40227600 100.00

The Company has not issued any ESOP to its Employees / Directors.




Dematerialisation of shares:

The shares of the Company have been dematerialized and the unique ISIN number allotted for the

Company as under:
ISIN @ INE222F01929

Currently 94.96% of the toial shares have been dematerialised.

The Shares held by Promoters have all been dematerialised.

Listing at Stock Exchanges:

S1.No ; Name of the Exchange Code Address
1 Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd 532893 Regd. Office: Floor |
25, P3 Towers Dalal |
Street, E
MUMBAI - 400 001 |
TRADING SYMBOL AT BSE : YTM
Demat ISIN No, : INEZ22F01029
Share Price movements:
Market price data : Exchange : BSE
Month HIGH LOW
Rs, Rs.
APRIL "19 28.90 24,00
MAY 19 30.00 27.50
JUNE "19 28.35 25.00
JULY 19 26.75 23.00
AUGUST "19 25.00 23.00
SEPTEMBER 19 28.00 24.10
OCTOBER 19 26.45 24,20
NOVEMBER 19 26.90 2430
DECEMBER '19 25.90 24.00
JANUARY 72020 25.00 23.10
FEBRUARY ‘20 26.00 22.00
MARCH ‘20 23.80 18.00

The share quotations are stated for the Re 1/- Face value of the company’s equity share.

Stock Options:- Nil

Plant Location:  Sutakarai, Virudhunagar, Pin: 626003




6.2

6.1

7.2

VT

Compliance Officer : Mr. S, Paramasivam Company Secretary, is the Secretary of this
Commitiee and the Compliance Officer and bis contact details are given below

Mr. 5. Paramasivam,

Company Secretary

VTM Limited

Sulakarai, Virudhunagar, INDIA

Phone : 0452 -2482595-Ext 549

Email : complianceofficer@vimitl.com

Details of Complaints from Sharcholders:

No. of compiaints remaining unresobved ason 31.03.2019 . H
No. of complamts/Requests received during the year 8
No. of complaints/Requests resobved during the year : 9
No, of complaints unresolved as on 31.03.2020 : 0
GENERALBODYMEETINGS
Particulars of last three Annual General Meetings are given below
Details of the last three Annual General Meetings {AGM).
AGM for the Financial Date & Time of AGM
Year erided
31 March, 2019 17" June 2019 at 12.00 Noon
31% March, 2018 22™ June 2018 at 3.00 pm
31% March, 2017 23" June 2017 at 12.00
Noon

EGM/ Postal Batlot meetings:

There was no EGM conducted during the financial vearended 31.3.2020

All the resolutions set ouf in the AGM Notice was passed by the Shareholders (e-voting).
The Annual General Meeting, was held at the Registered Office of the Company.

Pledge of shares held by Promoters: No pledge has been created by the Promoters on the equity
shares held as on March 31, 2020,

Specialresolutions:

The company has neither passed special resolution nor resolution requiring postal ballot in the
Annual General Meeting held on fune 17, 2019,

At the ensuing 73rd Annual General Meeting to be held on 5th August 2020 no resolution is
proposed to be passed by postal ballot,




7.2.1

7.2.2

8.4

8.6
8.7
8.8
Y

Pursuant to section 108 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 and other applicable
requirements. voting at the 73rd Annual General Meeting will be made through electronic
voting. The electronic voting period commences on 31st July, 2020 (8:00 am) and ends on
J3rd August, 2020 {6:60 pm) both days inclusive.

Scrutinizer for electronic voting : Mr. LB, Harikrishna, of Akshaya Corporate Solutions Private
Limited, Practising Company Secretaries {C.F No 5302) has been appointed as the Scrutinizer
to scrutinize the electronic voting process in a fair and transparent manner and to give his report
to the Chairman.

DISCLOSURES:

Details of transactions with related parties have been reported in the Notes to Accounts. All the
transactions with related parties are at arm’s length basis. Al transactions entered into with
Related Parties as defined under the Comparies Act, 2013 and as per Regulation 23 of the SEB
{Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 during the financial year
were in the ordinary course of business and on ar arm’s length pricing basis.

There were no materially significant transactions with the related parties during the year, which
were in conflict with the interests of the company and that require approval of the company in
terms of SEBH{LODR) Regulations.

The Transactions with the related parties of routine nature have been reported as per Ind AS 24
notified under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 201 5.

Disclosure of Accounting Treatment: Pursuant to the notification issued by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs dated 16th February, 2015 relating to the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 the Company has adopted “Ind AS” with effect from st April, 2017.
Accordingly, the Financial Statements for the year 2018-19 have been prepared in compliance
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 201 5.

Suitable disclosure as required by the Accounting Standards (AS18) has been made in the notes
to the lnd AS Financial Statements.

There were no instances of non-compliance by the Company or any penaities or strictures
imposed on the Company by stock exchanges or SEBI or any statutory authority on any matter
related to capital markets during the last three years.

The Company has in place an Employee Concern (Whistle Blower) which is also avaitable on
the Company’s website. No personnel has been denied access to the Audit Committee to lodge
thetr grievances,

All mandatory requirements have been appropriately complied with.

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms a part of the Directors’ Report.

No presentations were made (o institutional investors and analysts during the year.

The Company does not have any Subsidiary or Associate.




3.10 There have been no public issues, rights issues or other public offerings during the past five
vears. The Company hasnot issued any GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any convertible instruraents,

8.11 Disclosures
a)  Related Party Transactions

All transactions entered into with Related Parties as defined under the Compardes Act, 2013, and the
Listing Regidations during the financial vear 2019-20 were in the ordinary course of business and arms
length basis and approval of the Agdit Committes was also obtained, Necessary disclosures regarding
Related Party Transactions are given in the notes to the Financial Statements.

The Board has approved a policy for Related Party Transactions and the same bas been uploaded onthe
website of the Company. The web-link thereto is as under hitps//www ovimltd.com/
imagesfinvestor/Policy on_Related Party Transactions.pdf

by Compliance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind-AS)

In the preparation of the financial statements, the Company has followed the accounting policies and
practices as prescribed in the Indian Accounting Standards (IndAS). The significant accounting
policies which are consistently applied bave been set out in the Notes to the Financial Statements.
There 15 no deviation in following the treatments presciibed in IndAS in preparation of financial
statements for the year 2019-20.

¢y Statutory Comphance, Strictures and Penaltics

The Company has complied with ali the requirements of the Stock Exchanges as well as the regulations
and guidelines prescribed by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI). There were no
penalties or strictures imposed on the Comparny by Stock Exchanges or SEBT or any statutory authority
on any matter related to capital markets during the last three vears,

The Company has obtained Annual Compliance Certificate for the year ended 3 1st March, 2020 as per
SEBI Circular from Mr. Bhasyam, Practicing Company Secretary confirming compliance with SEBI
regulations.

dy  CEO & CFO Certification

The CMD Sri.T.Kannan and CFO $ri.M.Ramanathan have certified to the board with regard to the
financial statements and other mateers as required by the SEBI Listing Regulations. The certificate is
appended as an Annexure to this report. They have also provided cuarterly certificates on financial
results while placing the same before the Board pursuant to Regulation 33 of the SEBI Listing
Regulations,

e} Vigil Mechanism/ Whistle Blower Policy

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 22 of Listing
Regulations, the Company has formulated Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy to enable
Directors and employees of the Company to report concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or
suspected fraud or violation of Code of Conduct, that could adversely impact the Company’s
operations, business performance, in a secure and confidential manner. The said policy provides
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adequate safeguards against victimization of Directors/employees. The Vigil Mechanism / Whistle
Blower Policy is available on the website of the Company under the web-iink
htips://www.vtmlid.com/images/investor/Whistie-Blower-Policy-Vigil-Mechanism.pdf. The
Company affirms that no personnel of the Company has been denied access to the Audit Commiittee to
lodge their grievances.

fy  Certificate on Non-disqualification of Directors

The Company has obtained certificate from Mr. M. Bhasyam, Practising Company Secretary
confinming that none of the Directors of the Company have been debarred or disqualified by the
Securities and Exchange Board of India / Ministry of Corporate Affairs or ary such authority from
being appointed or continuing as Director of the Company and the same is also atfached to this Report,

£) Subsidiaries
The Company does not have subsidiary or Associate.
9. MEANSOFCOMMUNICATION

9.1 Quarterly results are published in the Business Standard and the Tamil version thereof in Mala
Malar, the day after the Board Meeting where the results are approved. These financial results
and quarterly shareholding pattern are electronically transmitted to the stock exchanges and are
also uploaded on the Company’s website www. vimill.com.

0.2 Shareholder communication including Notices and Annual Reports are being sent to the email
addresses of Members available with the Company and the Depositories. Annual Accounts are
sent to Members at least 25 days before the date of Annual General Meeting.

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report forming part of the Annual Report is

enclosed. {Regulation 34 and Schedule V of'the Listing SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure
Requirements) Regalations, 2(:15.]

9.3 TheCompany’s website:
www vtmill.com makes online announcements of Board Meeting results of the guarterly
financial results, aunouncement of the date of Annual General Meeting and proposed dividend,
and other announcements. Copies of Notices sent to Shareholders are also available on the
website.

9.4 Address for communication :

All communication regarding share transactions, change of address, bank mandates,
nominations ete. should be addressed to the Regisrars and Share Transfer Agents of the
Company at the following address

Registrar & Transfer Agent:

KFin Technologies Pwvt. Ltd.

{Unit: VTM LIMITED)

Karvy Selenium Tower B, Plot No 31 & 32,
Financial District, Nanakramguda,




Serilingampally Mandal, Hyderabad — 500 032,
Ph 491 D40 67161518
Contact Person: Mr.D.SURESH BABU- Manager — RIS.

The sharcholders may also address their correspondence 1o~
VTIM LIMITED

sulakaral

Virndhunagar-626 003,

Phone: 04562-234801

VTM LIMITED
Chairman’s Office:
Thiagarajar Mills Premises
Kappalur

Madura-623 008,

Phone; 0452-2482595

Grievances, if any. may also be addressed to the Company Secretary at emaii at
complianceofficer@vimill.com

Sharcholders are requested to mention their Folio Nos., DP-1D and Client ID in case of demat shares,
phone and mobile nos. and their Email 11 so that the Company/Compliance Gfficer can contact them
and redress their complaints immediately. However, for instructions like change of bank mandate,
change of address, transfers & transmission of shares etc. letters duly signed by the Sharcholders
coneerned should be sent, otherwise such requests cannot be processed by the Registrars, Email 1D of
Shareholders will have to be registered with the Company to enable the Company or the Registrars to
commuiticate eleetronically.

General Shareholders Information

1. Date, Time and Venue of the : | Through Video Conferencing, or |

Anrat Generatl Meeting. Other Audio Visual
Means{OAVMIon 5% August,2020
at 12.00 NOON,

2. Dates of Book Closure/Record : i Register of Members will be
date for Financial Year 2019-20 ctased from 30.7.2020 to 4.8,2020
3. Results for Quarter ending . 145 Week of July, 2020,
June 38, 2020 (Provisional)
Resuits for Quarter ending : | 3" Week of October, 2020,

September 30, 2020
{Provisional}

Results for Quarter ending : | 3% Week of January, 2021.
December 31, 2020 {Provisional)
Financial Calendar - 1% April 2020 : 147 Week of Aprif, 2021,

To 31% March 2021 {Audited)
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Annexure i

M.K.BASHYAM 43 {9A), Palmal Cross Street
Company Secretary in Practice Madurai - 623001,
FCS 600 - CPNo, 3837 Phone : 9994110512

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31" March, 2020

[Pursnand to section 20411} of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No 9 of the Companies
{Appointment and Remuneration of Manageriaf Personnel) Rules, 2014]

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2020

To,

The Members,
VIM LIMITED,
Virudhunagar,

{ have conducted the Secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
the adherence to good corporate practices by VIM LIMITED (hercinafter calied the company).
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the

corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Bascd on my verification of VM LIMITED's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, [
hereby report that in my opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year
ended on 31.03.2020 complied with the statutory provisions hsted hereunder and also that the
Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place w the extent, in the
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

{ have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by VIM LIMITED (*the Company™} for




M.K.BASHYAM 43 (9A), Palmal Cross Street
Companry Secretary in Practice Madurai - 625001,
FCS 604 - CP.No. 3837 Phone : 2994110512

the financial year ended on 31" March, 2020 according to the provisious of:

(i

(i)
(iii)
{iv)

v}

(a3
(b}

3

(v)

()
(i)

The Companies Act, 2613 (the Act} and the niles made there under;
The Securities Contracts {Regulation) Acy, 1936 "SCRA" and the rules made there under;
The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder
to the extent of Foreign Direet Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and Extemal
Cominercial Borrowings;

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (SEBL At~

SEBI(LODR) Regulations, 2015 & 2018.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
1962: '

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Repulations, 2009,

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

The Securities and Fxchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2009; and

The Securitivs and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,
1998,

Taxation Laws, Labour Laws and Environmental Lawa,
[ have alse examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure chuiremﬁnts} Regulations, 2015 read with the

Listing A greements entered into by the Company with Bombay Stock Exchange




M.K.BASHYAM 43 (9A), Palmal Cross Street
Company Secretary i Practice Madurai - 625601,
FUS 600 - CENo. 3837 Phone : 9994110512

(111} SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 and all other regulations of SEBI as
applicable to the Company.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards. etc., mentioned above,

I further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Managing Director,
Non-Executive Directors, Independent Directors and a Woman Director. The changes in the
composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out
in compliance with the provisions ofthe Act.

Adequate notices were given fo all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed
noles on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining
further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful
participation at the meebing,

The decisions of the Board have been unanimously passed.
[ further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the

size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines.

I further report that during the audit period the company has convened the Annual General Meeting
along with e-voting facility after giving required notices to the members of the Company duly
cotmplied with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

MK BASHYAM 43 (9AY, Palmal Cross Street
Company Secretary in Practice Madurai ~ 625001,
FC8 600 - CPNo. 3837 Phene : 9994110512

This report is to be read with my letier of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an
integral part of this report.

Signatare; Sd/- M.K.Bashyam

Mame of Company Secretary

in practice / Firm

ACS 3837/FCS Ne.600 C P No.3837
18.015.2020
Madurai -623 001.
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MEK.BASHYAM 43 (9A), Pahmal Cross Strect
Company Secretary in Practice Madural — 625001,
FCS - CPN0.3837 Phone : 9994110512

‘Annexure A
{To the Secretarial Audit Report of M/s, VTM Limited for the financial
vear ended 31/03/202G)

To

The Members,
VTM Limited,
Sulakarai,

Virudhunagar.

My Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended 31/03/2020 of even date is to be read along
with this letter,

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the
Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on
ny audit.

2. I have followed the audit practices and the processes as were appropriate 1o obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The
verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial
records, We believe that the processes and practices, | followed provide a reasonable basis
for my opinion.

3 I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the Company.

4. Wherever required, | have obtamed the Management representation about the compliance
oflaws, rules and regulation and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards is the responsibility of Masagement. My examination was limited
to the verification of procedure on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Caompany nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted
the affairs of the Company.

Signature: Sd/- M.K.Bashyam
Name of Company Sccretary

in practice / Firnn: '

ACS 3837/FCS No.o00 C P Ne.:3837

18.05.2020
Madurai 625 001,




MEK.BASHYAM 43 (A}, Palmal Cross Street
Company Secretary in Practice Madurat - 625001,
FCS 600 - CPNo. 3837 Phone : 9994110312

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

{pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause {10){i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations

and Disclosure Requirements) Regolations, 2015)
To

The Members,
VTM Limited,
Sulakarai.

[ have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the
Directors of VIM LIMITED having CIN : L17111TN1946PLCO003270 and having registered office
at Sulakarai, Virudhunagar-626003 (hereinafter referred to as 'the Company”), produced before me by
the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with
Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India { Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. In my opinion and to the best of my information and
according to the verifications {including Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal
www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to me by the Company & its
officers, I hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the
Financial Year ending on 3 tst March 2020 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or
continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of
Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory Authoniey.

St.Ne | Nume of Director DIN Duate of appointment in Company
1 Sri. T.Kannan (CMD) 00040674 23.03.1973
2. Smt.Uma Kannan 0467461 25.03.2013
3. Sri.K Thiagarajan (13638370 20.04.2016
4, Sri. RM. Somuasundaram 00071510 O1.12.1984
3. Sri.M Murugesan 06711683 11162013
6. Sri.TN.Ramanathan 02561794 01.04.2019
7. Sri. A Mariappan BOO5E3TO 01451999
& Sri K. Vethachalam 60381667 15002815

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the
responsibility of the management of the Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these
based on my verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs
ofthe Company.

Signatare: M. K. Bashyam
Name of Company Secretary in practice:

14.05.2020 FCS No.600 C P No.:3837

Madurai - 625 001,




Annexure — Il
Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as on the financial year ended on 31" March, 2020

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule [2(1) of the Companies
Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILLS:

i CIN ; PE17111TRI946PLCO0AZT0

i) Registration Date o 1 27-07-1946

ili) Mame of the Company ;I VTM LIMETED

v} Category / Sub-Category of the Company :

v} Address of the Registered office and contact | : | SULAKARAL VIRUDHUNAGAR
details

vi} Whether listed company Yes / No ;1 Yes

vii) | Name, Address and Contact details of 1 | KFin Technologies Pyviitd.,
Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any Karvy Selenium, Tower B,

Plot No 31 & 32,

Financial District,
Nanakramguda,
Serilingampally Mandal,
Hyderabad -- 500 032.
Phone : 91 040 67161518
Fax : 9140 23420814

ft. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contribuung 10% or more of the total turnover of the company
shall be stated:-

Sl.No. Name and NIC Code of the % to total turnover
Dascription of main product / service of the Company
products / services

1 Fabrics 17115 100.00%

HI. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

S.N¢ | Name and Address CIN / GLN Holding / % of Applicabla
of the Company Subsidiary /| shares Saction
Associate held

NIL




IV,  SHARE HOLDING PATTERN {Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

1) Category-wise Share Holding

Category of
Shareholders

Mo, of Shares held at the beginning of the year
fas on 31" March 2019)

Ne. of Shareg heid at the end of the year
{as on 3ist March 2020}

Demat

Physical

Totai

% of fotat
shares

Demat

Priyaicat

Totat

% of total
i ghates

% change in
shareholding
during the
year

H

!

A. Promoters

{1} Indian

- Individuals ¥/
HUF

585500

585600

145

585600

585600

!
i
!
H
1
i
i
1
i
S
i
H

- Gertral Gow
State Gowl..

- Bodies Lorp.

5518300

5548300

13.72

5518300

S518300

1372

- BanksiFils

- Ay olher
{spacify)
Pannership
Firng

4

23038000

QIR0

5127

2303800G

23038060

57.27

Ebdotat AT

29141900

25141800

7245

29141500

Z4ip0e

7245

(2] Foreign

- ingividuals
{Mon Resident)

Y400

B74200

247 !

874200

874200 1

~ bndividuals
Forgign
individuals)

153600

153600

FEE

153600

163860 |

- Bodies
Corpyrale

« bstibuliong

- Any other
{Specify}

Subniotal (A}
12

H27R00

1627800

1027800

TosTeas

Total

Sharsholding of

Promoter (A} =
AAHIHANY

169700

188700

30169706

30169700 ¢

8. Puliic
Shaseholding

i

1, Jnstiigions

&) Mutyal Funds

) Banks / FI

£} surance Cos

) Fiis

Sub-intal
i)

2. Non-
Institutions

#) Bodigs
Corp,

i} Indian

124826

ATI00

172126

043

337037

47300

384387

it} Oversgas

by Individuals

i} indivichaal
shareholders

H

holding nominzi H

shate napital
upto Rs 1 faxh

5688651

2325¢

01371

19,92

5908578

1587910 |

7564488

18.80

~112




Category of No, of Shares held at the baginning of the year Na, of Shares held af the end of the year ¢ % zhasgein @

5 Shareholdets {as on 31° March 2019} {as on 34st March 2020; | shareholding :
i ¢ duringthe
| : year
] Demat Physical Total % of total Demat | Physical Totat % of total :
i shares ; shares ;
#) individual 1289181 2880GD 1577181 182 1505672 1 303000 1808872 450 | 0.58 !
shareholdars i i :
nolding rominal
share capitat in i
axcasy of Re !
fakh : i
£} Others 248122 12800 2287122 057 221803 12600 234403 058 - 0.61
{spetify) NRis :
Firmg. - 6000 BE000 (.18 - 85000 86000 016 ¢
Sub-totat 7318790 2738140 10087900 28,80 8031090 | 2026010 10057900 25.00 ¢
(B)(2):- i
Totat Public 7348786 2739110 10057900 25.00 8031090 | 2026810 18057800 2500 ¢ -
Shareholding
{B=(Bl1+ '
B2} ;
C. Sharas hetd - - - - - - - - E
by Custodian for
G{Rs & ADRs :
Grand Total 37488480 | 2738110 40227600 104.60 3R20079C | 2026810 | 40227800 10000 :
{A+84C) i
{il)Shareholding of Promoters
: !
51 Shareholder's Name Shareholding at the heginding Bhareholding at the end of the year :
No. (Mis.) of the year !
i |
Ko, % of total | %of | No. % of fotal | % of Shares | % change in
of 8hares | Shares of | Shares | of Shares of | Pledyed ! 1 shareholding
the Pledged | Shaves the entumbered to | during  the
company i company | tofal year
encimb | sharas
ared to |
total ;
sharas z
1 [f. Kannan 585600 1.46 - ¢ 585600 1.4 - -
7 Radha Kannan B74200| 2.17 - BY4200 2.17 - -
3 K.Thiagarajan 153600 0.38 - i 153600 0.38 - -
4 ([Thiagarajar Mills Pvt, Lid 2678000 5.66 - 2678000 6.66 - -
5 (T.Kannan, Partner, 7520000 18869 - 7520000 18.69% - -
Guruvayoorappar : { :
Investments : :
& T.Kannan, Partner, Aviltam 7500000 18,64 - 7500000 18.647 - Lo
dnvestments : {
7 [T.Kannan, Partner, 5150000 1538 - ¢ 6190000 15.3% - , -
Karumutty Investments P i
8 [T.Kannan, Partner, 1828000, 454 - | 1838000 4,54 - -
Thirumagatl Investments ?
9 Sree Thiagaraja Finance Pyt 1504069 374 - 1 1504000 3.74) . -
Ltc j
10 Sree Devi Karumari Finance 1336300, 3.3z - ! 1336300 3.32 - -
Py, Ltd ;
30169700 ?5.601 o 30169700 75.00 0 -
i
i
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(i)

{iv)

Change in Promoters’ Sharcholding (please specify, if there is no change)— There is no change

in prometers’ Sharcholding

Sharcholding Pattern of top ten Sharcholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of

GDRsand ADRs):
Sl No, Share. Cumulative
hoiding share
at holding
beginning during the
Year
No. of | % of Total | No. of | % of Total
shares Sh capital | shares Sh capital
of of
company company
1. Anit Kumar Goel
At the beginning of year 400443 1.00
Date wise Inc/Dec during the vear - -
Al the end of the year 400443 1.00
2. L.RM.K, Valliappan
At the beginning of yvear ) 183000 0.45
Date wise Inc/Dec during the vear
At the end of the year 183000 0.45
3. Vinay Kumar Gupta 165000 0.41
At the beginning of year
Date wise Inc/Dec during the year
At the end of the year 165000 0.41
4, D.P. Vora Securities Pvt, Ltd,
At the beginning of vear 10191 0.02
Date wise Inc/Dec during the year
Date Buy/(Seil}
10.05.2019 Buy 2896 0.01 13087 .00
17.05.2019 Buy 2324 Q.01 15411 0.04
24.05.2019 Buy 5170 0.01 20581 0.05
28.05.201% Buy 6023 | 0.01 26604 0.07
14.06.2019 | Buy 4700 | 0.01 33933 0.08
21.06.2019 Buy 3181 | 0.01 37114 0.09
29.06.2019 Buy 9266 | 0.02 46380 0.12
13.07.2019 Buy 13705 0.02 60085 0.15 :
19.07.2019 Buy 5030 0.01 65115 0.16 |
26.07.2019 Buy 3400 | 0.01 | 68515 a.17
02.08.2019 Buy 6407 0.02 74522 0.1
09.08.2019 Buy 3311 ¢ 0.01 78233 0.1%
16.08.2019 Buy 1800 0.00 80033 0.20
24,08.2019 Buy 2350 0.01 82383 Q.20
30.08.2019 Buy 4010 0.01 86393 0.21
14.09.2019 Buy 2350 0.01 20993 0.23
21.09.2019 Buy 2959 0.01 93952 0.23
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(4.10.2019 Buy 2949 .01 104407 .26
11.10.201% Buy 2740 0.01 107147 0.27
18.10.2019 Buy 3158 .01 110305 0.27
24.10.2019 Buy 4950 0.01 115255 0.29
01.11.2019 Buy 4641 0.01 119896 .30
08.11.2019 Buy 4405 0.01 124301 0.31
15.11.201¢ Buy 3631 0.01 127932 0.32
22.11.2019 Buy -648 -0.00 127234 (.32
06.12.2019 Buy -148 -0.00 127048 0.32
13.12.201%8 Buy 1692 0.00 128740 0.32
20.12,201% Buy 2650 (.01 131390 0.33
27.12.2019 Buy 1613 0.00 133603 0.33
03.01.2020 Buy 3064 0.01 136067 0.34
10.01.2020 Buy 5234 0.01 141301 0.35
17.01.2020 Buy 4344 0.01 145645 0.36
24.01.2020 {Selly -4855 -0.01 140790 0.35
31.01.2020 Buy 1650 0.00 142480 (.35
(8.02.2020 {Selt} -3758 -0.01 138722 0.34
14.02.2020 Buy 3811 0.01 142533 0.35
21.02.2020 Buy 2526 0.01 145059 0.38
28.02,2020 Buy 4551 0.01 149610 0.37
07.03.2020 Buy 5932 0.01 155542 0.39
13.03.2020 Buy 2376 0.01 157918 0.39
20.03.2020 Buy 5553 0.01 163471 0.41
27.03.2020 Buy 1076 0.00 164547 0.41
At the end of the year 164547 0.41
5.1 alitha Narayanan

At the beginning of year 158500 0.40

Date wise Inc/Dec during the year

At the end of the year 159500 0.40
6.K.5.Gopalaswamy &  Ranjani

Gopalswamy

At the beginning of year 150000 0.37

Date wise In¢/Dec during the year

At the end of the year 1500600 0.37
7. 5.Kasi Viswanathan

At the beginning of year 150009 0.37

Date wise Inc/Dec during the year

Date Buy/{(Sell)

20.09.201% (Selt) -207%9 0.01 147921 0.37
27.09.2019 ~ {Sell} -11006 0.00 146821 .36
01.11.2019 (Seil} ~1794 0.00 145027 0.36
15.11.2019 {Sell} -1000 0.00 144027 G.36
22.11.2019 {Sell} ~2099 0.01 141928 0.35

At the end of the year
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LIMITED]

8. 5.N. Rajan
At the beginning of year 139467 0.28
Date wise Inc/Dec during the vear
Date Buy/(Seil
20.05.2019 Buy 2673 g.01 142140
19.07.2019 Buy 603 0.00 142743 .30
26.07.2019 Buy 2060 0.60 144743
27.09.2019 {Sall} -F70 0.00 143973 0,36
At the end of the vear 143973 0.35
g9, t.R.M.K.Subramanian :
Al the beginning of the year 120000 5.30
Date wise Inc/Dec during the year _
AL the end of the year 120060 0.30
10, Amit Aravind Gunderia T
Ab the beginning of year 106418 | 0.26
Bate wise Ing/Dec during the year !
Date Buy/(Sell) !
20.03.2019 106418 (.26
03.05.2019 (Seil) -1006 0.00 105418 0.27
29.06,2019 (Sell) ~2250 0.00 103168 0,26
07.07.2019 Buy 3476 0.01 106644 0,27
30.08.2019 Buy 1390 0.00 108034 0.27
01.11.2019 Buy 2239 0.01 110273 0,27
10.01.2020 Buy 1923 0.01 112196 0.28
17,01.2020 {Seil) -2500 ¢.01 169696 0.27
CGB.02.2020 Buy 1704 .00 111400 0,28
At the end of the vear 111400 0.28
{v}  Sharcholding of Directors and Kev Managerial Personnel:
Openin | | Cumulative Closing Balance
Batgnce ] ; % of >
Name of the | total | % of total % of total |
Directo: ] kmp (f;,sf g:;fi of Z‘?g?&? ’ :::;fg shares of No.of | sharesof | No.of | sharesof |
(M/s. total s h ’ the shares the shares the |
share ! | Company Company Company
capital) ! ; :
T, KANNAN 585800 - ‘ - 585600 146
¥, THIAGARAJAN 153500 - 153600 0.38
UMA KANNAN - - - - .
Red, SOMASUNDARAM | 60000 - - - BO000 £.15
LMY, SUBRAMANIAN - -
4. MARIAPPAN - - ) .
. MURLIGESAN - - -
¥ VETHACHALAM .
S, PARAMASIVAM-CS -
M RAMANATHAR-CFO - -
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V.

INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding / accrued but not due for payment

Rs.

Satured Loans
excluding
deposits

Unsecured
Loans

Deposits

Total
Indebtedness :

Indebtedness at
the beginning of
the financial
year

i} Principal
Amount

if} Interest due
but not paid

#) Interest
| accrued but not
| due

76983030

76983030

Total (i+ii+iil)

76983030

76983030

Change in
Indebtedness
during the
financial year
* Addition

* Reduction

54378642
31032381

54378642
31032381

Net Change

23346261

Indebtedness
at the

end of the
financiai year
1 Principal
Amount

i} Interest due
but not paid

iiiy Interest
accrued but not
due

100329291

23346261

100329291

Total {i-+ii+iil)

100329291

100329291
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Vi

Remuneration of Directors and key managerial personnal

A, Rewuneration to Managing Director:

'

SLNO

Particulars of
Ramuneration

Mame of Kanaging Director” ©

L
Total ;
| Amount |

¥ Kannan

Gross salaty

{3} Salary
propdisions  contzined o
section  17{1} aof the
Incoma-{ax Act, 1961

(i} WValue of perguisites
u/s 17(2} ncorme-tax Act,
1961

&5 per

{C) Profits in eu of satary
under sechian 17(3}
Incorne taw Act, 1963

Stook Qprion

Swent Equity

EL Y

U srmrnission
|- as % of profic

-~ others, specify

BE,00,000

o

Orhers, please specify

TR

“S8.06, 000

Ceiling as per the Act

63,585,008

56,003,000

EH S 000

B. Remuneration (6 other Director:

Particulars of
Remuneration

H

Hame of Directors

RM.Somasundaram

AMariappan TRAR

MMy

b

Total
Amount

1, Indeperdant
Diraiors

* Fee for attending
Board magting

. Committee
Meetings

* Camnission

* (thers, pleass
specify

25004
5000

35000
35000

13060

Hi

Totat {1)

60000

70800

35000

T.Kannan

K.Thiagarajan .

Ursa Hannan

K.Vethachalam

2. Other Mo
Exective
Directors

* Fop for attending

Boars meeting

+ Lomrrites

Mestings

T Lominission

- {thers, please

spedify

35060

e

25000

5008

Total (23

45080

30000

30000

105000

Fotal (Bj={1+2}

0000

115000

30000

5000

0000

Totat Managenat
Remuneration

58,20,000

Overalt Ceiling as
ey the Act

H

£3,8500¢ ‘




(. Remuneration io Key Managerial Personnel other than M/ Maneger/WTD

SINo

Farticuiars of I A

Ramuneration

CEG

Compary
Secretary

e

1.

Gross salary

{a) Salary as per
provisions
contained in

section 17¢{1) of the

Income-tax Act,
1961

(b} value of
perguisites u/s
17{2) Income-tax
Act, 1961

() Profits in lieu of

salary under
section 17(3)
Income-tax Act,
1961

BH5564

439173

1304737

Stock Option

Sweat Equity

Commission
-~ as % of profit
- others, specify

Gthers,
spacify

please

Total

865564

439173

T T1304737

VIL. PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type

Section of
the
Companies
Act

Brief

. Details of Penaity

Description | Punishment/

| Compounding

| feas imposed

| Authority
VERD

| NCLT /

| COURT]

;

Appest

made,
if any
{give
Details)

A. Company

Penalty

il

i

Punishment Nil

Compounding | Nil

B. Directors

Penalty il

Punishment Nil 5

Compounding | Nil ] E
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty Nil

Punishment Nil

Compounding | Nil i 5




ANNEXURE-IV TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT

Particulars furnished pursuant to the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

mard

P
e
5,’«”‘
iy
et
e
i
e
.
N,
il
et

CONMBRAVATION OF EMNEHGY:

Instatfation of Low Pressure compressors:

Low Pressure compressors have been installed with 2206 CFM production capacity, which is
connected with 71 numbers of Narrow width Toyote Air jet weaving machines. This has resulted
inconsiderable Power savings.

Investment Cost- Rs 112 Lakhs.

Inorder to save power, the company instatied inverters in Kaeser Compressor at atotal cost of
Rs.3.83 lakhs which considerably reduced unit consumption per day, in power.

& ]

STEPR TAREN FOR OALTERNATE SOURCER OF ENERGY &
CONRERVATH N OF EGUHPMENTS,

A} Alternate Source of energy:
The company has installed 500 KW Solar power plants on the roof top of the Preparatory
and Toyota- A department buildings. It is expected to generate around 2200 units/ day on
an average, This investment in Solar is also  likely to reduce our power cost in coming
years.
Investment Cost- Rs 178 Lakhs.

B.)  Savingin Compressed air Consumption by resorting to E-reeds instead of Normal reeds.

Considerable savings effected in Compressed air Consumption, per day due to reeds
replacernent.

Investment Cost- Rs,: 22 Lakhs.
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A,

POWER AND FUEL CONSUMPTION

Electricity

a} Purchased:
Linits
Total Amount 5,1 5
Rate Per Unit
{Inciuding Maximum
demand charges}

b} Own Generation:

Through Diesel Genegrator
Units
Units per litre of oll |
Cost Per Unit ’

c) Through Windmill:
Produced Units
Availed Units

d} Through Solar Power:
Produced Units
Availed Units

a) Through Independent
Power Producers and
through Power exchange:

Units

Rate per Unit

CONSUMPTION PER UNIT OF
PRODUCTION OF CLOTH:

Electricity per Metre ‘ o
of production of cioth S P

31.3.2019

21,80,234

Rs.3,13,55,544

Rs.14.61

4,80,575

3.29!

Rs.21.42 |

62.19,473

62,19,473

78,25,507

Rs.5.58

SUTURRUSUBUIUA:Hivtrost 00 s S |

Note:

1. No standard rate of consumption is available.
2. As the company is producing numerous varieties or sorts of cloth,
separate detalls for each variety or sort are not given.
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B, RN OGUVABRGRPTION ARNDRESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT,
As part of better utilization of latest technology. 36 numbers of slow speed old model weaving
machines were replaced with 28 numbers of technologically upgraded Toyota §10 model
weaving machines. These machines are having features like higher speed, fesser compressed air
requirement, and the possibility of weaving difficult itemns ete., Out of 28 upgraded Looms, 8
numbers of 280cm Toyota §10 machines have been instafled , which are having superior
efficieney and offer considerable savings in manpower, cnergy.
Investment cost—Rs 13,18 Crores

I FORPIGNEXCHANGE EARNINGSAND OL TR

The company has carned during the year under report, foreign exchange equivalent to
Rs.4195.38 Lakhs (FOB value of exports) through direct exports.

The foreign exchange outgo during the period is Rs. 1150.32 Lakhs,

The company is striving to expand the export market segment by broadening its geographical
sweep,

For and onbehalf of the Board of Directors,

Kappalur, Madurai
12" June, 2020, CHAIRMAN

Remaoved portion; As part of better utilization of latest technology,36 numbers of stow speed old
model weaving machines were replaced with 28 numbers of technologically upgraded Toyota 810
model weaving machines, These machines are having features Hke higher speed, lesser compressed air
requirement, and the possibility of weaving difficult items etc., Out of 28 upgraded Looms, 8 numbers
of 280¢m Toyota 810 machines have been installed , which are can weave minimum width of 787 and
maximum width of 105” with considerable savings in manpower, energy.

So far we were not having the facility to weave fabric width ranging from 74" to 927, Also, weaving
double fabric up 1o 527 hereafier, will give more economy compared to weaving it as single fabricin
Toyota 190cm tooms as well as three fabrics in Sulzer looms,
So far we were not having the facility to weave tabric width ranging from 74" to 927, Also, weaving
double fabric up 10 32" hereafter, will give morc economy compared to weaving i as single fabric,in
Toyota 190cm looms as well as three fabrics in Sulzer looms,

investment cost~Rs 13,18 Crores
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ANNENURE v

PARTICULARS OF REMUNERATION TO DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL
PERSONNEL IN TERMS OF RULE 3 OF COMPANIES {APPOINTMENT & REMUNERATION
OF MANAGERIALPERSONNEL)RULES, 2014

S.No Pasticulars Details
1. The ratic of the remuneration of each Director to Rs. in lakhs
the median remuneration of the employees ofthe | .
company for the Bnancial vear; Name of the Designation Remunerstion Ratioto 1}
Director ; Madian ‘
Remuneration
Sri 7. Kapnan Chairman & 56.00 53.80
Managing
Director
2, The percentage increase in remuneration of each S
Directar, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Exenutive Name of the Designation Remuneration Percentage
Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, If any, in Chrector increase in
the financial year, Remuneration :
e ooy 2UEE-18 | 2016-20 N
s T, Kannan Chalrman & | 56.00 56,00 . ;
Managing i
Dirgctor i
fAr. M. Chief 1.32 865 | 9.2%{armualised | |
: Famanathan Financial nerease)
: (from {Jfficer
03.02,2089 For
: finyear 2018-19)
5 5. Campany 4,24 439 1.53%
: Paramasivam Secretary
i3 The percentage  ingrease  In e median e
: remunierstion of employees in the financial yaar; | fear 2018-1¢ 2018-20 Increase
Madian
: femuneration 104 104 4%
4. The number of permanent employees on the rofls )
of Compary; 550
5. Average percentile Increase alreddy made in the
salaries of employees other than the Manggerial | | Detaiis 2618-1% 201920 1 Twrease |
Personnel in the st Bnandal year and its| | Emploves ost
comparison with the percentile increase in the | | {Excluding 1130.36 118477 451%
roanagerial remuneration and justification thersof | | TOITRnesation to ‘
and point out it there are any exceptional| | DIeEOnS] :
circumstances for ltwrease in the manageris Rew : e s
- SIRUNSralion o
remungration; Directors 56,00 { se.0 NiL
6. | Adfirmation that the remumerabion i 8% per e | Yes at @l imas,
remuneration policy of the company,

Particulars of employees as per Rule 3(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. '

NIL




ARNENIRE V1

1 I

Parvidars of Corporaly Roclal Hespundbiiioy selivities corvied out by the Cempomy

fren 330 of rhe Aeg, 2832

¥ SR me B g CET g
S LETINE OF i

1. Abnefoutline of the Company's CSR policy:
This policy encompasses the Company's philosophy for giving back to society as a corporate
citizen and lays down the guidelines and mechanism for undertaking socially useful programs
for the transformation and sustamable development of the rural communities at large,
2. Overview of projects or programs proposed to be undertaken:
Focus areas relating to eradication of hunger and poverty, economic development, quality
educatton, health care, conservation of environment and the creation, mamtenance of
infrastructure.
3. ‘Web-link to the CSR policy and projects or programs - Mtp/iwww.vimill.com/CSR-Policy. pdf
4, Composition of the CSR Commitiee.
# Name of the Director Designation Status
1. | Sri T. Kannan Chairman and Managing Chairman
Director
2. | Sri K. Thiagaraian Non-Executive Director Member
3. | Sri RM. Somasundaram Independent Director Member
5. Average net profit of the Company for last three financial years Rs.1237.67 lakhs
6. Preseribed CSR Expenditure (2% of the amount as in item 3 above) Rs. 24.75 lakhs

=3

Details of CSR spent during the financial year
{ay Total amount to be spent for the financial year Rs.24.75 lakhs
(b}  Amount unspent, if any Rs.24.25 lakhs
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(c)

Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below:

5.No. | Name of the Implementing Agency:
1. Project No.l Direct - Public eye camp at Sulakarai,
Virudhunagar.
1 CSR Project or activity identified - {H Eradicating hunger, poverty,
Reference to Item No, to Schedule VII | promoting preventive health  care and
sanitation and making available safe
drirking water;
{1y Promotion of Education, induding
special education and employment
enhancing vocation al skills especially
armong children, women and livelihood
enhancement projects;
iy Promoting gender equality,
empawering women and measures for
reducing inegqualities face d by socially
and economically backward groups,;
{iv} ensuring environment sustainability,
ecological balance, animal welfare,
agroforestry, conservation of natural
resources and roaintain quality of soll, air
and water;
(v} rural development projects.
i Sector in which the Pl’ﬁjec’t is covered PI’O}EC{ I - .Promgn’ng pre\gentgve Heaith
Care by conducting Eye Camp near Mills
Premises.
3 Areas in which Projects / Programmes
undertaken:
4 Local Area / Others: Project [ - Local Area
State & district Project I - Tamil Nadu: Virudhunagar DL
Amount outlay (budget) project or Project I - Rs. 0.74 lakh
program-wise;
5 Amount spent on the projects or Project I - Rs, 0.79 lakh
programmes:
G Sub-heads:
Direct expenses On projects / Project 1 - Rs, 0,74 lakh
programs:
Overheads:
7 Cumulative expenditure upto the Project T - Rs. 0.74 lakh

reparting period:




In case the company has fadled to spend the 2% of the average net profif of the last three financial
years of any part thereof. the company shall provide the reasons for net spending the amount in
its Board report.

The company already appropriated the funds of #5.28.26 Lakhs fo M/s. Thiagarajar College of
Engincering, an cducational institution for undertaking infrastructure enhancement projects
with a projected cost of Rs. 700 Lakhs in the CSR Meeting held on 30.01.2020. Forthe financial
yvear 2019-2020, the company has an unspent amount of Rs.24.25 Lakhs totally amounung 1o
Rs.52.51 Lalkhs which will be used for projects undertaken.

The Company has decided to contribute to M/s. Thiagarajar College of Engineering, an
educational institution, which has proposed to undertake infrastructure enhancement projects
with a projected cost of Rs. 700 lakhs for which the funds have to be accumulated. {n order 1o
accumulate the funds for the above project, the Company has not spent a sum of Rs.24.75 lakhs

during the vear.
A responsibility statement of the C8R Committes that the implementation and monitoring of
CSR Policy, is in compliance with CSR objectives and Policy ofthe Company,

Todischarge the duties cast under provisions of the Act, members of the CSR Committea vigit the
place where the project is underiaken. Chairman also has regular reviews of the progress made
amd the work done.

For and on behalf of the Board

Chairman & Managing Director and
Chairman of CSR Committee
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Appexsurs YiH
Chalvman & Managiog Birector's Certifionte

Annual Certificate under Regulation 34(3) read with Part D of Schedule V to the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

DECLARATION

As required under Regulation 34(3) read with Part D of Scheduie V fo the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2013, I hereby declare that all the Board Members and
Senior Management Personnel of the Company have complied with the Code of Conduct of the

Company for the year ended March 31, 2020,

T. Kannan
Chairman & Managing Director

7 i




Annexugre 1X
Compliance Certificate under Repulation 17(8) of SEBI {Listing Obligations & Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015

We, T. Kannan, Chairman and Managing Director and M, Ramanathan, Chief Financral Officer of the
Company certify that -
A.  Wehavereviewed Financial Statements and Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31.3.202¢,

and that to the best of our knowledge and belief:

{iy  these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any materizh fact
or contain statements that mightbe misleading;

(it} these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in
comphiance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regutations.

B.  Thereare, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no tranisactions entered into by the company
during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company's code of conduct,

o]

We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal conirols for financial
reporting and we have gvaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systeras of the
Company pertaining to fnancial reporting and we have disclosed to the Auditors and the Audst
Committec, deficiencies in the design or eperation of internal controls, f any, of which they are
awareand the steps they have taken or propose to take to rectify those deficiencies.

3. Wehave indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Conumnittee that:
(1) thereare nosignificant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the vear,

(i1} the company has adopted ndian Accounting Standards (ind AS) in terms of Companies
{Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2013 for the current financial year and the same
have been disclosed in the notes to the Anancial statements; and

{(itty there are no instances of fraud of which we became aware and the involvement therein if
any of the managemeni or an employee having a signifieant rale in the Company's infernal
control system over financial reporting.

T. Kannan
Chatrman & Managing Director

Date: 12.06.2020 M. Ramanathan
Place: Madurat Chief Financial Oificer
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Anpeiury K Romuneraion Poliey

Mominaime and Hemuenoraston Commitiee

The Nomination and Remuneration Commitice consists of four Directors of which two are
Independent Directors and one Non-Executive Director and Chairperson (Executive} as the Members
of the Committec and as such complies with the obligations of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
corporate governance requirements of the Listing Agreement with stock exchanges. The Chairperson
of this Commiitee is an Independent Director. The Chatrperson of the Board of Directors is a member
of this Committee but will not Chair this Committes.

The Commiittee operates under formal terms of reference which were approved by the Board on April
29, 2014, These tenms of reference have been prepared in a manner o generally maintain overall
continuity with the nomination and remuneration policies of the company while complying with the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Agreements with stoek exchanges.

Hode wnd Henpansibilities

The Commitice's foremost priorities are to ensure that the Company has the best possible leadership
and maiatains a clear plan for both Fxecutive and  Non-Executive Director succession. The
Commitiee also reviews Senior Management succession. lts prime focus is therefore on the strength of
the Board and the Senior Management team and ensuring that appointments are made on merit, against
abjective criteria, selecting the best candidate for the post. The Committee advises the Board on the
appointments, retirements and resignations from the Board and its Commitiees. It also advises the
Board on similar changes to the Sentor Management ofthe Company.

The Committee and its members are empowered to obtain outside legal or other independent
professional advice, at the cost of the Company, in relation to its deliberations and to secure the
attendance at its meetings of any employee or other parties it considers necessary.

Cratevin for appointuments g independencs of Uireainry

When considering appointments to the Board and its Commistees, the Nomination and Remuneration
Commitiee will draw up a specification for the role taking into constderation the balance of skills,
knowledge and experience of its existing members, the diversity of the Board and the Company's
ongoing requirements, The Company believes that diversity underpins the successful operation of un
effective Board and embraces diversity as a means of enhancing the business,

The recruitment process then focuses on appointing candidates who meet the criteria, who have the
relevant professional knowledge, professional qualifications and experience. Successful candidates
are likely to have demonstrable leadership qualities and interpersonal communication skills, act with
integrity and have international bgsiness gXposure.




Care is taken to ensure that all proposed appointees have sufficient time available to devote to the role,
are compliant with the rules, policies and values of cur Company and do not have any conflicts of

interest,

On appointments or promaotions. the Commatiee will typleally use the Remuneration Policy of the
Company to determine ongoing remuneration. However, the Comumittee retains the discretion to make
appropriate rermuneration decistons outside the Standard Policy to meet specific circumstances.-2-

Bemuneration Policy

The overarching philosophy for remuneration within the company (s to attract, retain and motivate
individunls of the caliber necessary to successfully implement the Company's business strategy. in
particular, this means ensuring that incentive plans are appropriate o encourage ephanced
performance and 1o avoid rewarding underperformance. In viewing and setting Company's
remuneration policy, the Committee seeks to balance the inferests of ity employees and those of s
stakeholders, to support Company strategy and foster a high performance culture, where a meaningful
portion of remuneration is performance linked.

[T [RTTETITR TSR 5PN LUV RN 0 : Gwkiy B OBE ysegetage -
Herapperation Poelivy for Mlanasing Dlirectas

An appropriate level of remuneration may be set to ensure that the Company can appoint Managing
Director of the necessary skill and experience by offering him market competitive remuneration
reflecting his individual experience, role and contribution. The appointment may be for 4 tenure of
such years from the date of his appointment not exeeeding the period in terms of Section 196 and as
prescribed under Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013, The individual's performance will be
reviewed annually by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and recommended to the Board
enabling it to decide the remuneration payable o the Managing Director.

The total remuneration package may be designed to provide an annual remuneration pavable by way of
commission and other perquisites as decided by the Board of Directors however, not exceeding 3% of
the net profits of the company computed in accordance with the provisions of Section 198 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and as determined by the Board of Direciors of the Company for each financial
year within the maximum permissible limit. Further, in the event of his being Managing Director inany
other company, such renmuneration shall not exceed the higher maximum limit admissibie from any
one of these companies, i terms of Schedule V to the Compandes Act, 2013,

The Managing Director is not entitled to sitting fees for attending meetings of the Board or the
Committees where he will be the Chairman/Member. He is entitled to have Chairman's Office at his
convenience at Company's exponses,




semuneration Pelivy for Non-Exevutive Diroctors

Non-Executive Directors are entitled to sitting fees for attending meetings of the Board or i3
Committees at rates which are within the limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013, They are
also entitled to commission on net profits, as detenmined by the Board from time to ime, not exceeding
1% of the net profits of the Company for that vear. The level of remuneration is set to attract and retain
Non-Executive Directors of the necessary skill and experience by offering them market competitive
remuneration.

Non-Executive Directors do not participate in Board discussions which relate to their own
remuneration. They receive reimbursement of reasonable expenses incurred in attending the Board,
Committee and other ad hoc meetings.

None of the Non-Executive Directors is entitled to receive compensation for loss of office at any time
of participate in any retirement plans. -3~

Non-Executive Independent Directors are appointed in compliance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and must adhere to the Code for Independent Directors laid down under
Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013 and retain their independence during the entive tenure of
appointiment as an Independent Director. The terms of service of Non-Executive Independent
Direciors are contained in letters of appointment issued to them after their appointment at a general
meeting of the Company. The current policy for Non-Executive Independent Directors of the
Company is to serve for a maximum period of two terms of [ive years each, withreview at the end ofthe
first five year term, subject afways to mutual agreement and annual performance evaluation.

Remuneration is paid subject to deduction of Income Tax at source and payment of applicable Service
Tax,

Hemuaneratdan o Sealor Managoment Porsomng

Senior Management Personne! include one level below the Managing Director. Accordingly, the
Personnel such as Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary, Vice President / General Manager /
Deputy General Manager but ot including Administrative Staff. An appropriate level of remuneration
is set to ensure that the Company is able o recruit and retain Senior Management with the necessary
skilfs, professional qualifications, experience, international exposure and compliance with the rules
and policies of the Company. Market competitive remuneration is offered to individuals reflecting
their experience. role and contribution within the Company. The individual's performance is reviewed
from time to time with changes in remuneration normally. In considering any incresse in base salary,
the Comnuittee will mainly consider the role, changes in job scope, responsibitity and complexity and
the need to maintain market competitiveness, Total remuneration package is designed to provide an
appropriate balance between fixed and variable components with a focus on long term variable pay so
that strong performance is incentivised but without encouraging excessive risk taking.

()




Remuneration arrangements of Senior Management Personnel consistof the same elements as those of
other employees i.e. Baste Salary, HRA and other sllowances, retirement benefits (5.e. Provident Fund
and Gratuity as per the Company's Schemes applicable to all employees) and perquisites as por Rufes
of the Company applicable to all employees according to their seniority including corporate club
membership, insurance, car and fuel perquisites,

As applicable to all emplovees, Senior Management Personnel are entitled 1o avail themselves of 30
days leave in a year and unavailed ieave can be accumulated as per the rules of the Company up to a
maximumof 30 days.




INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
To the Members of VTM Limited

Reporton the audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited thefinancial statements of VTM Limited (“the Company”). which comprise the
balance sheet as at March 31, 2020, and the statement of profit and loss(including other comprehensive
income}, the statement of changes in equity and the statemnent of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesatdfinancial statements give the information required by the Companies Act 2013 (YAct”) inthe
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules.
2015, as amended, {“Ind AS™) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state
of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020, and its profit, total comprehensive income, the changes
in equity and its cash flows for the year ended as on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards on auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Owr responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor's
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report, We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the code of ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (ICAD) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
cthical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAL's code of ethics. We believe
that the avdit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the financial statements as a whele, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters,

Covid'19 Impact

In our opinion and based on the information and explanations given to us, there are no other key audit
matters 1o be communicated in our report, other than those morefully described in the Emphasis of
Matters paragraph of our report which describes the uncertainties andthe impact of Covid- 19 pandemic
on the Company's operations and results as assessed by themanagetnent. i
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Principal Aundit Procedures

We assessed the Company's process to identify, assess, and respond to risks of material
misstatement considering the uncertainties and the impact of Covid-19 pandemic on the
Company's operations and results for the year under consideration

As part of the evalvation of whether sufficient appropriate audit evidence has been
obtained, we have evaluated the appropriatencss of our initial risk assessments and
revises previous risk assessments in light of the COVID-1Y erists for certain financial
staterment areas, including disclozures

We have considered the impact on the processes and controls that may be affected by
necessary changes te business processes m light of circumstances such ay travel
resirictions, oras avesult of remote working arrangements.

We have designed, performed new proceduores and modified previously planned audit
procedures as a result of the necessity for carrying out the audit procedures remotely,
including verification of the source and completeness of data provided for audin. This
includes performing alternative audit procedures to obmin audit comfort in respect of
significant account balances for recognition, measurement and disclosures.

We have audited the management's estimates required in the financial statements,
including, but not limited to, estimates related to expected credit loss. inventory
obsolescence, impairment analyses by checking the reasonableness of underlying
assumptions in making those key estimates. We specifically discussed the bmpact of
COVID-19 with the management and critically challenged the key assumptions and their
reasonableness in making such key accounting estimates

We have considered the basis of management judgment in determining impact on the
financial statements of any subsequent events related to the COVID-19 pandemic, taking
into consideration the date of the financial statements, the facts and circumstances
pertatning to the eniity, and the conditions that exasted at, or arose after, that date. As the
impacts of the COVID-19 outbreak continue to evoive, including regulatory restrictions/
conditions, capturing events that relate specifically to conditions that existed at the date of
the financial statements, or after the date of the financial statements, we have considered
all subscquent ovents and transactions to substantiate our conclusions on the
appropriateness of management's assessment of the Covid'] 9 impact.

We have carried out a detailed analysis of data and performed additional analytical
procedures for validating the management's assessment of impact due to covid'] 9 refated
uncertamties
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&  Wehave considered management’s adjustments or disclosures which includes the impact
of the changes in the environment on the recognition and measurement of account
batances and transactions in the financial statements or other specific disclosures.

Emphasis of Matter

The Company has made a detatled assessment of its liguidity position for the next year and the
recoverability and carrying value of its assets comprising property, plant and equipment, invesiments,
inventory and trade receivables. Based on current indicators of future economic conditions, the
Company expects to recover the carrying amount of these assets, The Company continues to evaluate
them as highly probable considering the orders in hand, The situation is changing rapidly giving rise to
inherent uncertainty arcund the extent and timing of the potential future impact of the COVID-19
pandemic which may be different from that estimated as at the date of approval of the financial results.
The Company will continue to closely monitor any material changes arising of future economic
conditions and impact on its business.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
Information other than the financial statements and auditors'report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis,
Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate
Covernance and Sharcholder's Information, but does not inciude the firancial statements and our
auditor's report thercon.

Our opinton on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In comnection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconststent with the
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise

appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's responsibility for the financial statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the masters stated in section 134(5)of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performanceinciuding other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in
equity of the Company in accordénce with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended from time to time, and other accounting principies generally accepted in India.




Thas responsibility alse includes maintenance of adequate accounting records i accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
matntenance of adequate intermal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic altemative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financiai statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements asa whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
inciudes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it oxists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected fo influence the economic decistons of users taken on the
basts of these financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,
The risk of not detecting a material nusstatemnent resulting from frand is higher than For
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, Under section 143(3Xi) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls

L] Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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L) Conclude on the apprapriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability 1o continue as a going concern. 1f we conclude that a niaterial uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures i the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate. to moedify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease {o continue as a
2OIBg Concern,

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structnure and content of the financial siatements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
rransactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

Materwality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in
(i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work: and (i) to evaluate the
effect of any identificd musstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we ideniify during our audis.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with refevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters conmmunicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most signiticance in the audit of the financial staternents of the current period and are theretore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation
reciudes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

1. As required by the Companics (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”™), issued by the
Central Government of India in ferms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013, we give inAnnexure “A™ 4 statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the
Order.
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Asrequired by Section 143{3) of the Act, we report that:

(a)

i

(h

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the bestof our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

In our opimion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so {ar as i€ appears from our examination of those books;

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss including other comprehensive incone,
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flow dealt with by this report are
in agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounring
Standards specified under Seetion 133 of the Act;

On the basis of the writfen represeniations received from the divectors as on March 31,
2020 taken on record by the Board of Diirectors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2020 from being appointed s a director fiz ferms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adeqnacy of the internal financiai controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, referto our separate report
in “Anpexure B".Ouwr report expresses an unmodified opimion on the adequacy and
operating effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls vver financial
reporting;

With respect to the other matters 10 be included in the Auditor's Report i accordance with
the requirements of section 197(16} of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid
by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of
section 197 ofthe Act; and

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule H of the Companies { Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

a8, The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its financial statemenis — Refer Note 43 to the financial statements;
b, The Coinpany has made provision, as required under the applicable law or

accounting standards, for material foresecable losses, if any, on long-term
coniracts including detivative contracts; and

¢.  There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.




Other Matters

Further to the continuous spreading of COVID -19 across India, the Indian Government announced a
striet 21-day lockdown on March 24, 2020, which was further extended till June 30, 2020 across the
India to contain the spread of the virus. This has resulted in restriction on physical visit to the client
iocations and the need for carrying out alternative audit procedures as per the Standards on Auditing
prescribed by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Indin (ICAD.

As a result of the above, the entire audit was carried out based on remote access of the data as provided
the management. This has been carrted out based on the advisory on “Specific Considerations while
conducting Distance Audit/Remote Audit/ Online Audit under current Covid-19 situation” issued by
the Auditing and Assurance Standards Board of ICAL We have been represented by the management
that the data provided for our audit purposes is correct, complete, reliable and are directly generated by
the accounting system of the Company without any further manual modifications.

We bring to the attention of the users that the audit of the financial statements has been performed in the
aforesaid conditions.

Our audit opinton s notmodified inrespect of the above.

For UNGSN & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountanis
Firm's Registration No.0049155/ 52006036

(CHINNSAMY GANESAN)
Partner

Membership No. 02751

UDIN: 20027301 AAAABF6624

Place: Chennal
Date June 12,2020



Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditor's Report
{Referred to in paragraph | under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirernents’ section of

our report to the members of VTM Limited of even date)

R

Inrespect ofthe Company's fixed assets:

{a} The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

{by The Company has a program of verification to cover atl the items of fixed assets inz
phased manner over a period of three yvears, which in cur opinion is reasonable
havingregard tothe size of the Company and nature of its assets
Pursuant to the program, certain fixed assets were physically verified by the
management during the yvear. According to the information and explanations given
10 us, no material discrepancies were neticed on such verification,

@ According to the information and explanations given to us, the records exammed by
us and based on the examination of the convevance deeds provided to us, we report
that, the title deeds, comprising all the iommovable properties of land and buildings
which are freehold, are held i the name of the Company as at the balance sheel date.

Inrespect of

2

et

The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the vear, based on
planmed cyelical count procedures in our opinion, the frequency of such verification is
reasonable. However, due to the lock down restrictions issued by the Central and State
Government following the Covid'19 pandemic, the Company could not carrvout physical
verification of inventory as at the reporting date. The physical verification of inventory
was done by the management subsequent to the balance sheet date on partial lifting of the
lockdown, We have relied on the management i this regard, since we could not observe
the physical inventory verification because of the travel restrictions imposed due to
Covid'19. We have performed roll backward procedures based on the management
physical verification of inventory subsequent to the balance sheet date to reconcile with
the book stock as at the reporting date. According to the information and explanations
given to us and based on the alternative procedures performed as aforesaid, no material
discrepaneies were noticed on such verification,

According to information and explanation given to us, the company has not granted any
loan, secured or unsecured 1o companies. fums, limited liability partnerships or other
parties covered in the register required under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013,
Accordingly, paragraph 3 (iii) of the order is notapplicable.

In our opinion and according to information and explanation given o us, the company has
not granted any loans or provided any guarantees or given any security to which the
provision of section 185 of the companies Act are applicable. in respect of invesiments
made by the Company, the Company had complied with the provisions of section 186 of
the Companies Act, 2013,

[



in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company has not accepted any deposits during the vear ,and does not have any unclaimed
depostts as at march 31,2020 and accordingly paragraph 3 (v} of the order is not
applicable,

We have broadiy reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuani to
the rules made by the Central Government for the raintenance of cost records under
Section 148 of the Act and are of the opinion that prima facie, the preseribed accounts and
records have been made and maintained. However, we have not carried oul a detailed
examination of the same,

According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

{a}

{b)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted/ncerued in the
books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including provident fund.
employees’ state insurance, mcome tax. goods and service tax, duty of customs,
duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues have been
generally regularly deposited during the vear by the Company with the appropriate
authorities, taking into account the extended due dates notified by the respective
authorities in view of Covid'1 9 impact.

According to the information and explanations given to us. no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, sales
tax, service 1ax, goods and service tax, duty of customs, duty of'excise, value added
tax, cess and other material statutory dues were in arrears as at March 31, 2020 for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable, taking into
account the extended due dates notified by the respective authorities in view of
Covid'19 impact.

Details of dues of Income Tax, Sales Tax. Service Tax, Excise Duty, Value Added
Tax and Goods and Service Tax which have not been deposited as at March 31,
2018 on account of dispute are given below:

Statute ' Mature of dues Amount{Rs.}) | Parfedto : Forum where
' which the | the dispute is

: amount relates | pending
TNVAT Act ! Penalty 1,860,508 | 2001-02 STAT, Tamil
Madu
income lax ;| Paymaent of tax 2,60,13,380 § 201718 CIT (Appeal),
Madurai

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company has not defaulted inrepayment of dues to its bankers during the year. According
tor the information and explanations given to us. the company has ne outstanding dues to
any financial institutions or any government or any debenture holders during the year.
UNGSN & Associates LLP
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1.

i4.

16.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the term
toans taken by the Company have been applied for the purpose for which they were
raised. The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further
public offer {including debt instruments) during the vear,

To the best of our knowledge and aceording to the information and explanations given to
us, no freud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company by its officers or
employees has been noticed or reported during the vear.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has paid/provided managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite
approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3 (xii) of the
Orderis not applicable to the Compuany.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the company. transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
section 177 and 188 of the Act. Where applicable. the details of such transactions have
been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the company, the company has not made any preferential allotment or
private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year,
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xiv) of the orderis not applicable.

According 1o the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the company, the company has not entered into non-cash transactions
with directors or persons connected with them. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the order
is notapplicable,

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the company, the company is not required to be registered under section
45-]Aofthe Reserve Bank of India Act 1934,

For UNGSN & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Frrm Registration No 0049158/ 8200036

{CHINNSAMY GANESAN)
Partner

Membership No. 02750}

UDIN 20027501 AAAABF6624

Place: Kappalur, Madurai
Bate: Jupe 12, 2020
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Annexure “B” to the Independent Auditor's Report
(Referred to in paragraph 2 {f) under 'Report on other legal and regulatory requirements’ section of
our report to the Members of VIM Limited of even date)

Report on the internal financial controls ever financial reporting under clause (I} of sub- section
Jotsection 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over tfinancial reporting of VTM Limited (“the
Company™} as at March 31, 2020, in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the
Company for the yearended on that date,

Managemen{’'s responsibility for internal financial controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of intornal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Aceountants of Tndia. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
rehable financial information, 25 required under the Companies Act, 2413,

Auditors’ responsibility

Qur responsibility is (o express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Nofe”} issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the standards on auditing prescribed under Section
143{10) of the Companies Act, 2013, 1o the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls,
Those stapdards and the guidance note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance sbout whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting were established and mainained and if such controls operated effectively inall
material respects.

Our audit involves pertforming procedures 1o obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial conirols system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness, Qur audit of
internal {inancizl controls over financial reporting included obtalning an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectivencss of internal control based on the assessed




risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstaternent in the financial statements, whether due to fraud orerror,

We helieve that the audit evidence we have obmined, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial control systein over financial reporting.

Meaning of internal financial controls over financial reporting

A company's internal financial control over {inancial reporting = a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (i} pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company: (il) provide reusonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements m accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and divectors of the company; and (iif)
provide reasonabie assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthonsed acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management of override of controls, material misstatements due
o error of fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any cvaluation of the interal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject 1o the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

{n our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has, in all
material respects, an adequate imernal financial control system over financial reporting and such
internai financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020,
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
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Other matters

We bring to the attention of the users that the audit of the imernal financial control system over
financial reporting and the opérating sfiectiveness of such internal financial controls over financial
reporting has been performed remotely in the conditionsmorefully explained in the Other Matters
Paragraph of our Independent Audit Report on the audit of the Financial Statements,

Our apinion on the internal financial control system over financial reporting is not modified in respect
of the above.

For UNGSN & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.0049155/ 5200036

{(CHINNSAMY GANESAN)
Partner

Membership No, 027501

UDIN: 20027501 AAAABF6624

Place: Chennai
Date: June 12, 2620
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Hatonoe Sheet av af Maoreh 31, 2020

{All amounts arc in lakhs of Indian Rupees, untess otherwise stated)

Ag at
Motas Mmron 31 March 31, 2018
ASBETS
Non-current assels
Property, plant and sguipment 4 8.759.96
Capital work in progress 5 24.43
Financial assets
vestimants € 1B22.42
Loans 7 A446.58
Other financial assets 8 11103
Fotal non-current assets 11,164.42
Currant assets
inventories Q ERHCH S 2.804.48
Financial assets
invesimenis G 4,681,731
Trade receivabies 11 240414
Cash and cash sguivalents 12 274.89
Barik balances other than above 13 FH26
Loans and advances ; 14 47334.98
T fingnoisl assets 15 7.25
Other currgnt assets 16 158.61
Current tax assels (MNet) 17 34,047
Total current assels 19, 6888.29
Total Assets 2205371
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Egulty
Equity share capital 18 S2.28
Other squity 18 19,347 .77
Total eguity 19, 750.05
tiabifities
Mon«current liabilities
Financial Habilities
Borowings 20 a5.76
Crther timgncial liabilitieg 7 21 268
Defarred Tax Liabilites (net) 22 816,53
Other non current labibittes 23 o 90.62
‘Total non-current Habilities 1,413.59
Current Babilities
Financial fabilities
Trade payables
{a} tptat oulstanding dues of micro enterprises and Py .
smalt enterprises ’
b totad outstanding duss of credilors other than micro 24 18213
enterprises and small anfemrises
Onher fingncial liabiltties 5 213
Other current liabiiities 26 554,34
Shert Tarm Provisions 27 121.47

Tetal carrent flabliities
Total liabilities

Total BEquity and Liabilities

2,303.66

22,053 71

The accompanying nates jorm an integral part of the fnancial statements

For arnd on behalf of the Buérd of Directors of VTM Limited

M. Somasundaram
" Director

T, Kannan
Chairman & Managing Director

M Ramanathan
Chief Financial Officer

Place ; Kappatur, Madurai
Date  June 12, 2020

8. Paramasivam
Company Secretary

Aa per our report of aven dale aftached
For CNGSN & Associates LLF

Charteted Accountants

{Firm Registration No.0G48785/ SZ00036;

Chinnsamy Ganssan
Partiher

Membership No.d27501

LUDIN: 20027501 AANARF 8624




Statement of prafit aud loss for the venr emibed Wareh 31, 21020

{All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, uniess otherwise stated)

Notes Porthe yeir amded Far the year ended
Bargh 31, p02g March 31, 2018
Continuing Operations
A income
Revenue from operations 28 15,979.84
Other income 29 682.79
Totaf income . 16,602.63
8 Expenses
Cost of materials consumed ki 11.247.76
Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock in trade
and work ¥ prograss 31 {395.74)
Employee Benefits Expsnse a2 1.130.36
Finance cosls X! 113,58
Dlepreciation and amaortization expense 34 681.85
{Jther expenses : 5 248449
Total expanses ) 15,262.11
¢ Proft before exceptional items and tax LHIGTE 1,400.52
Exceptional tems -
o Profit before tax from confinuing operations 1400752
incomme tax expense : 38
Current {ax 34710
Current Tax adjustment o earfier years -
Disfarred tax charge! {tredif) 31.89
Profit for the year 1,021.53
E Other comprehensive income
Hems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasuremeant of post employment benefit obligations .00
Fair value gain on equity instruments 285.28
Income tax adjustmeant relating to these tems {51.22}
Dther comprehensive income for the year, net of tax B 245.96
Total comprehensive income for the year ‘ TAGLEY 1,262.49
Earnings per share a7
Hasic sarnings per share 2.54
Oifuted aarnings per shars 254

The accompanying notes farm an integral part of the financial stalements

For and on behalf of the Board of Diractors of VTM Limited

T. Kannan
Chalrrman & Managing Direstor

¥ Ramanathan
Chiaf Financial Officer

Place : Kappalur, Madural
Date - June 12, 2020

RM, Somasundaram
Director

S, Paramasivam
Company Secretary

As per our report of aven date attached
For CRGSN & Associates LLP

Charterad Accountants

{Firm Registrafion No.0049158/ S200036)

Chinnsamy Ganesan
Partnar
Mambership No.027501

UDIN 2002750 TAAAABFE624
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Staterment of cash fows Tor the vear ended March 3, 26209
{All amounts are in Jakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Faoy the yonr erded For the year ended
Eaprgiy Bt 3G8E March 31, 2018

Cash Flow From Operating Activitles
Profit petore income (ax : TALETS 1.400.52
Adjustments for

Depreciation ard armortisation expanse &81.65
{Profily Loss on sale of fixed asset {133.37)
(Profity Loss on sale of investment (134 .44)
Ineore frorm governmsnt grard -
Finance costs 113.5%
Fair vaiue changes of investmenia cohsidered to profit and loss (52,23}
Interest incoms : {263.88)
Dividend incoma . {44.203
Mark ic market gain on forsards contracts (728}
: 1.587 .41
Change in operating assets and Habilities
{Increase)/ decreass in ivans and advances 263.54
{Increase)/ decrease in other financial asseds {32.8%)
{increase)/ decrease in other assels {34.03;
{Increasey decrease in inventories {476.38)
{increasey decrease In trads receivablag 156.47
Increase/ (decreasa) in provigions and other liabilitles (27.20)
Increase! (decrease) in trade pavables {121.54)
GCash generated from opergtions 1,282.04
Less 1 Income {axes paid (et of refunds) 320.23
Net cash from aperating activities (A} 86881
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Purchase of PPE {inctuding changes in OWIF) (311.68)
Sake proceeds of PPE 204.38
{Purchase)! disposal proceads of Invesimeanis (non-current) (281.56;
{Purchase) disposal proceeds of invesiments (currant) (3,.616.10)
{nvestments inY Maturity of Rxed deposits with banks 3.4G3.47
Dividend income 44.20
fnterest ingome 167,52
Net cash used in invasting activities (B} {299.76)
Cash Flows From Financing Activities
Proceeds from/ (repayment of) long term borrawings {2T2.15;
Proceeds from/ (repayment of) government grants -
Finance costs (113.538)
Dhviderd pad 3 (363.72)
Net cash from/ {used In) financing activitles {C) e Aramy {749.48}
Mot decreasa in cash and cash aquivalents (A<B+(} [ R (BO.471)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year R R 355.30
Cash and cash sguivalents at end of ths year fail 274.89

Notes:
1. The above eash flow stalement has besn prepared under indirect method prascribed in INGAS 7 *Cash Flow Staternenis”,

2. Compongnts of cash and cash eguivalents
Balances with banks

- in current actounts Ty oRE 7224
- in fixed deposit (with original matunity of fess than 3 months} 200.00
Cash on hand . ] 2.68
274,89
The accompanying neotes form an integral part of the fAnancial statements

Ear and on hehalf of the Board of Directors of VIM Limited As per ow report of even date attached
: For CNGSN & Assoclates LLP

Chartered Accountants

{Firm Registration No 0048158 5200036}

7. Kamnah . RM. Somasundaram
[ i i - Direct
Chairman & Managing Direclor irector Chinnsamy Ganesan
. Pattner
M Ramanathan %, Paramasivam Membarship No. 027801
Chiel Finangial Oticer Company Secrelary UDIN: 2002750 1AAAABFB624

Place | Kappahar, Madurst
Date ;. June 12, 2028




{All amounts are it lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

{A} Equity Share Capital

Balance at the end of March 31, 2018 402,28

hanges in equity share capilal during the year -

Balance at the end of March 31, 2019 402,28

Changas in equity sharg capital during the year -

Balance at the end of March 31, 202¢ 402.28
{B) Other Equity
Particulars General Resarve Othsr Retainad] Totai]

Comprehansive Eamings
income

Balance as a April §1, 2018 16,125.86 1,281.22 187.6% 18,194.49
Dividend paid . - (363.72) {383.72)
Charges in deferred tax recognised directly iy equity . 254 51 - 25451
Additions/ Deductions during the vear 600.00 {6.90) (583.40) -
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - 240,96 102153 $,262.49
Balance as at March 31, 2019 16,725.66 1,769.7% 852.32 19,347.77
Dividend paid - - {872.54) {872.94)
Changes in deferred tax reeognised directly in eqully - . - -
Additiensf Deductions dusing the year 351,00 - {351.00) -
Totat Comprehensive Income for the year - 250,92 121038 146131
Balwnes 2 gt Mareh 14, 2820 17 ATE B ER TN 8377 ERERT

The acsompanying notes form an infegral part of the financial siatements

For and on behalf of the Board of Divectors of VTM Limited

T. Kaman
Chairman & Managing Direclor

M Ramanathan
Chief Financial Officer

Place : Kappalur, Madurat
Date . June 13, 2020

RI. Somasundaram
Diracior

B, Paramasivam
Company Secrelary

As par our raport of even date attached
For SNGSN & Associates LLP
Chartered Agcountants

{Firm Registration No.00481557 8200038

Chinnsamy Ganesan

Partner

Membership No.027501

UDHN:



Moes tn Finanond Bupleoendy for the veur ended Mareh 31, 20028

Corporate informemtivn

VTM Limited was established in 1946 with the founding principles of setting standards in
weaving by ensuring that the best of weaving technology was alwayvs available. Today, the
Company is well-established with unique capabilities that allows to cater to exotic constructions
in weaving. it has atso expanded the capabilities to include special weaves and combinations.
248 state-of-the-art looms take pride of place in the manufacturing unit. 80 Sulzer machines, 06
Rapier feno looms, 163 Atr jets and 09 Jacquard machines work in tandem to produce 1,7 mitlion
meters of fabric every month. It is also equipped with adequate equipment to cater to special
fabric manufacturing in fine counts and complex specifications.
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Basty of prepereton of Bnancial statomenis
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These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
ASY under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial
instruments which are measured at fair values, the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the
Act’) (to the extent notified) and guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (SEBI). The Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016,

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (GAAP) requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of accounting policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses and the disclosure of contingent ltabilities on the date of the financial statements.
Actual results could differ from those estimates. Fstimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognised prospectively
in current and future periods.

Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from COVID-19
(COVID-19):

The Company has made detailed assessment of its liquidity position for the next vear and the
recoverability and carrying value of its assets comprising property, plant and equipment,
mvestments. inventory and trade receivables. Based on current indicators of future economic
conditions, the Company expects to recover the carrying amount of these assets. The Company
continues to evaluate them as highly probable considering the orders in hand. The situation is
changing rapidly giving rise to inherent uncertainty around the extent and timing of the potential
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future impact of the COVID-19 which may be different from that estimated as at the date of
approval of the financial results, The Company will continue to closely monitor any material
changes arising of future economic conditions and impact on its business,

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements arg presented in fndian Rupees (INR), which is the Company’s
tunctiontal currency, All financial information presented in INR has been rounded to the nearest
Lakhs {up to two decimals),

‘The financial statements are approved for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on June ,
2020 :

Critiest scvsnating esthasies and manepemont hadvoends

In application of the accounting policies, which are described in note 2, the management of the
Company is required to make indgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
refevant.

Information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgements used in
applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in
the financial statements is inciuded in the following notes:

Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

The residual values and estimated useful life of PPEs. Intangible Assets and Investment
Properties arc assessed by the technical team at cach reporting date by taking into account the
nature of asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating condition of the asset, past history
of replacement and maintenance support. Upon review, the management accepts the assigned
useful life and residual value for computation of depreciation/amortisation. Also, management
iudgement is exercised forclassifying the asset as investment properties or vice versa,

Current tax

Calculations of income taxes for the current period are done based on applicable tax laws and
management’s judgement by evaluating positions taken in tax returns and interpretations of
relevant provisions of law,

Deferred Tax Assets

Significant management judgement is exercised by reviewing the deferred tax assels at each
reporting date 1o determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be retained/ recognised,
based upon the likely tuming and the level of future {axable profits together with futare tax
planning strategies.




Fair vaine

Managemnent uses valuation technigues in measuring the fair value of financial instrumenis
where active market quotes are not available. in applying the valuation rechnigues, management
makes maximum use of merket inpurs and uses estimates and assurpptions that are, as far us
possible, consistent with observable data that market participants would use in pricing the
instrument. Where applicable data is not observable, management uses its best estimate about
the assumptions that market participants would make. These estimates may vary trom the actual
prices that would be achieved in an arm’'s length transaction at the reporting date.

Impairment of Trade Receivables

The impairment assessment for trade recetvables are done based on assumptions about risk of
defanlt and expected loss rates. The assumptions, selection of inputs for calculation of
impairment are based on management jndgement considering the past history, market
canditions and forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting date.

Empairment of Non-financial assets (PPE)

The impairment assessment of non-financial assets is determined based on estimation of
recoverable amount of such assets. The assurnptions used in computing the recoverable
amount are based on management judgement considering the timing of future cash flows,
discount rates and the risks specific to the asset.

Defined Benefit Plans and Other long term emplovee benefits

The cost of the defined benefit plan and other long term employee benefits, and the present value
of such obligation are determined by the independent actuarial valuer. An actuarial valuation
involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in futwre,
Management believes that the assumptions used by the actuary in determination of the discount
rate, futyre salary increascs, mortality rates and attrition rates are reasonable. Bue to the
complexities fnvolved in the valuation and its long term natuve, this obligation is highly
sensitive tochanges inthese assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date,

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial asscts and fmancial habilities could not be measured
based on quoted prices in active markets, management uses valuation techniques inctuding the
Discounted Cash Flow {(DCF) model, to determine ite fair value The inputs o these models
are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of
judgement is exercised in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs
such as lquidity risk, credit risk and volatility,
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Provisions and contingencies

The recognition and measurement of other provisions are based on the assessment of the
prabability of an outflow of resources, and on past experience and circumstances known ai the
reporting date. The actual outflow of resources at a future date may therefore vary from the
figure estimated at end of each reporting period.

Recent accounting pronsuncements
Standards issued but not yet effective

The amendnents are proposed to be effective for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 Apuil
2020

a}) Issue of Ind AS 117 ~ Insurance Contracts

ind AS 117 supersedes iﬁd AS 104 Jusurance contracts. Mt establishes the principles for the
recognition, measurement; presentation and disclosure of insurance contracts within the scope
of the standard. Under the Ind AS 117 model, insurence contract labilities will be calculated as
the present value of fiture insurance cash flows with a provision forrisk,

The Company has evaluated the reguirements of the above standards and considered that it is not
applicable to the company and the effect on the financial statements is considered to be nil.

b} Amendments o existing Standards
Ministry of corporate affairs has carvied out amendments of the following accounting standards:
1. Ind AS 103 — Business Combination

2. Ind AS |, Presentation of Financial Statements and Ind AS 8, Accounting Pelicies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and BErrors

3. Ind AS 40 - Investment Property

The Company is evaluating the requirements of the above standards/ its applicability to the
Company and the effect on the financial statements is alse being evaluated.




3 Significant Accounting Pelicies
a} Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and labilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-
current classification,

An asset 1s treated as current when H is;

it Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating
cyele

iy Held primarily for the purpose of trading

11y Expected 1o be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv} Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to sefile &
lability for at least twelve months afier the reporting peviod

All otherassets are classified as non-current.
Aliability is cutrent when

i) Itis expected to be setiled in normal operating cycle

ity Ttis held primarily for the purpose of trading

i) It s due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv)  There is no unconditional right ta defer the settlement of the Hability for at least
twelve months after the reporting pertod All other liabilities are classified as non-
current.

Deferred tax assets and Habilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash eguivalents. The Company has identified 3 months as its operating
cycle.

b)  Fair value measuremend
The Company has applied the fair value measurement wherever necessitated at cach
reporting period.

Famr value 1s the price that wotld be received 1o sell an asset or paid to transfer a habihity inan
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.  The fair value
measurcment is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
lLiability takes place either:

1} Inthe principal market for the asset or lability;
it} In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
lability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessibie by the Company.
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The fair value of an asset or liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market paticipants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and the best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best
use.

The Company uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, meximizing the use of relevant ohservable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and [iabilities for which fair value is messured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, deseribed as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 : Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active market for identical assets or
lHabilities;

Level 2 : Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable; and

Level 3 : Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair vaiue
measurement is unobservable,

For assets and liabihties that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether wransfers have occurred berween levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Company has designated the respective team keads to determine the policies and procedures
for both recurring and nos - recurring fair value measurement. External valuers are involved,
wherever necessary with the approval of Company’s board of directors. Selection criteria
include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional standards are
maintained.

For the purpose of fair value disclosure, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risk of the asset or hability and the level
of the fair value hierarchy as explained above. The component wise fair value measurement is
disclosed in the relevant notes.




¢y Revenuve Recopnition
Sate of goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised as and when the Company satisfies performance
obligations by trunsferring control of' the promised goods to its customers. The transaction price
15 the amount of consideration to which the company expects to be eatitied in exchange for
transferring goods to the customer. The Company does not have any non-cash
consideration

Revenue ts measured at the ransaction price  received or receivable, taking mto account
contractually defined terms of payment. it comprises of invoice value of goods after deducting
discounts, volume rebates and applicable taxes on sale. It also excludes value of self
consimmption,

Significant financing component - Generally, the Company receives short-term advances from
its customers. Using the practical expedient in Ind AS 115, the Company does not adiust ihe
promised amownt of consideration for the effects of a significant financing component if it
expects, at contract inception, that the period between the transfer of the promised goods or
services to the customer and when the customer pays for that goods or services will be one vear
or less.

Saleof services

Revenue from a contract to provide services is recogmised by reference to the stage of
compiction of the contract

Power Generation

Power generated front windmills that are covered under wheeling and banking arrangement with
the State Electricity Board/ Electricity Distribution Companies are consumead at factories. The
monetary values of such power generated that are captively consamed are not recognised as
revenye.

Export entitlements

Export entitlements from Govermment anthorities are recognised in the statement of profit and
loss when the right to receive creditas per the terms of the scheme is established in respectof the

exports made by the Company, and where there is no significant uncertainty regarding the
ultimate collection of the relevant export proceeds.

Sale of scrap

Scrap sale is recognised at the fair value of consideration received ot receivable upon transfer of
significant risk and rewards. It comprises of invoice value of goods including excise duty
excluding applicable taxes onsale.
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InterestIncome

Interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR)Y method. EIR is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life ol the
financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective
interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual
terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options)
but does not constder the expected credit losses.

Rental Income

Rental income from operating lease is recognised on a straight line basis over the werm of the
relevant leascasper Ind AS 116,

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognized when the company’s right o receive dividend is established by
the reporting date, which is generaily when shareholders approve the dividend.

dy  Property, plant and equipment and capital work in progress
Presentation

Property, plant and equipment and capital work in progress are stated at cost, netof accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, ifany. Such cost includes the cost of replacing
part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs of a qualifying asset, if the recognition
criteria are met. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervais, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Al other
repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Advanees paid towards the acquisition of tangible assets outstanding at each balance sheet date,
are disclosed as capital advances under long term loans and advances and the cost of the tangible
assets not ready for their intended use before such date, are disclosed as capital work i
PrOgress.,

Component Cost

All material’ significant components have been identified for our plant and have been accounted
separately. The uscfut life of such component are analysed independently and wherever
components are having different useful life other than plant they are part of, useful life of
components are considered for caleulation of depreciation.

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the
carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied withm
the part will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured retiably. The costs of repairs and
maintenance are recognised in the statement of profitand loss as incurred.
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Machinery spares/ insurance spares that can be issued only in connection with an item of fixed
assets and their issue 18 expected to be irvegular are capitalised. Replacement of such spares §s
charged to revenue. Other spares are charged ag revenue expenditure as and when
consumed,

Derecognition

Ciatns or logses arising from derecognition of property, plant and equipment are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
reeognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.
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Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

Diepreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over iig
useful ife on a written down value method. The deprecisble amount for assets is the cost
of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less 3% being its residual value,

Diepreciation i3 provided on steaight Hine method, over the useful lives specified in
Schedule H to the Compames Act, 201 3.

Depreciation for PPE on additions is caleulated on pro-rata basis from the date of such
additions. For deletion/ disposals, the depreciation is calculated on pro-rata basts up to the
date on which such assets have been discarded’ sold. Additions to fixed assets, costing
Rs.5,000 each or less are fully depreciated retaining its residual value.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, piant and
equipment are reviewed at each financial vear end and adjusted prospectively, if
appropriate.

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes cost of
purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition. Costs are determined on weighted average method as follows:

(i} Raw materials, packing materials and consumables: At purchase ¢ost including other
costincurred in bringing materitals/consumables to their present location and condition.

(i) Work-in-process and intermediates: At material cost, conversion costs and appropriate
share of production overheads

(111} Finished goods: At material cost, conversion costs and an appropriate shas‘e of
production overheads. Excise Duty is exempted on finished grev goods,

Financial Instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when an entity becomes a party to

the comtractual provisions of the instruments,
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Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value, Hlowever, in the case of financial assets
not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are atributable o the
acquisition of the financial asset are also added to  the cost of the financial asset. Purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade
date, i.¢., the date that the Company commits to purchase or seil the asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, finaneisl assets are classified on the basis of their
contractual cash flow characteristics and the entity’s business model of mapaging
them.

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
® Diebt instruments at amortised cost
&  Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCH)

®  Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss
{(FVTPL}

®  liquity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
{FVTOCT

Debt instruments at amortised cost

The Company classifies a debt instrument as at amortised cost, if both the following conditions
aremet:

a)  The asset is held within a business model whose objective 1s to hold assets for
collecting contractoai cash flows; and

by  Coniractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are Solely
Payments of Principal and Interest (SPP) on the principal amount outstanding.

Such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (BIR) method, Amortised cost is cadeulated by taking into acconnt any
discount or premium on acguisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR.
The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The fosses arising
from impairment are recognised in the profitor loss.




Debt mstrument at FVTOCI

The Company classifies a debt mstrument at FVTOCL, if both of the following critenia are

met:

a)

b)

The objective of the business model 1s achieved both by collecting contraciual cash flows
and selling the financial assets. and

The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPL

Debtinstruments included within the FVTOC T category are measured as at cach reporting
date at fair value. Falr value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive
income {OCT). However, the Company recognizes finance income. impatrinent losses
and reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the profit and loss siatement. On
derecognition of the assct, cumuiative gain or foss previously recognised in OCT 15
reclassified from the equity to profit and loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI
debt ingtrument is reported as interest income using the FIR method.

Debtinstrument at FVTPL

The Company classifies all debt instruments, which do not meet the criteria for
categorization as atamortized costorag FVTOCHL as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at {air value with all
changes recognized in the profitand loss.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measored at fair value. Equity
instruments which are held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. Where the Company
makes an irrevocable election of classifving the equity instruments at FVTOCH, it
recognises all subsequent changes in the fair value in OCI, without any recyching of the
amounts from OCT to profitand loss, even on sale of such investments.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with
all changes recognized in the profitand loss.

Financtal assets are measured at FVTPL except for those financial assets whose
contractual terms give rise to cash flows on specified dates that represents SPPY, are
measured as detailed below depending on the business model:
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Classification Name of the financial asset

Amortised cost Trade receivables, Loans given to emplovees and others, deposits,
interest receivable, unbilied revenue and other advances recoverabie in
cash.

FYTOCH Equity investments in companies other than subsidmarnes and
associates 1 an option exercised at the time of initial recognition,

FVTPL Other investments in equity instrumnents. mutual funds, forward
exchange contracts (to the extent not designated as a hedging
instrument).

Derecognition

A financial asset is primarily derecognised when:
®  The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

®  The Company has transterred its rights to receive cash Hows from the asset or hag assumed
an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material defay to a third party
under a ‘pass-through’ amangement~ and either {a) the Company has transferred
substantiaily all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the ssset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered
into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent 1t has retained the risks and rewards
of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of
the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset
to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transforred asset is measured
atthe lower of the oniginal carrying amount of the asset and the maximurn amount of consideration that
the Company could be reguired to repay,

impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applics expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk
eXposure:

a}  Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost ey, loans,
debi securities, deposits, trade receivabies and bank balance,
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by  Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured at FVTOCT

¢} Trade receivabies or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that
result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 1 Land Ind AS 18,

The Company follows “simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance
on:

®  Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and
®  All lease receivables resulling from (ransactions within the scope of Ind AS 17

The application of simplificd approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit
risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime Expected Credit Loss
{ECL}at each reporting date, vight from its initial recognition,

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company
determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12 months ECL is used to provide for
impairment loss. However, if credif risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECLisused. i, ina
subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising
impairmentloss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible defauit events over the
expected life of a financial instrument, The 12 months BCL is a portion of the lifetime ECL
which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting
date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash
shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, the Company
considers all contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension,
call and similar options) over the expected life of the financial instrument and Cash flows from
the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual
terms.,

ECL allowance (or reversal) recognized during the peried is recognized as income/ expense in
the statement of profit and loss. This amount is reflected under the head “other expenses” in the
profit and loss. The balance sheet presentation of ECL for various financial instruments is
described below:

® Financial assets measured as at amertised cost, contractual revenue receivables and
lease receivables: ECL is presented as an ailowance. which reduces the net carrying
amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce impainment
allowance from the gross carrying amount

1ok
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®  Debtinstruments measured at FVTOUCI: Since financial assets are already reflected at
fair valoe, impainment allowance is not further reduced from its value. Rather, ECL
amount is presented as ‘accumulated impairment amount” in the OCL

For assessing inerease in credit risk and impairment foss, the company combines financial
instruments on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of
facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in credit risk to be
identified on a timely basis,

For impatrment purposes, significant financial assets are tested on individual basis at each
reporting date. Other financial assets are agsessed collectively in groups that share similar
credit risk characteristics. Accordingly, the impairment testing is done on the following
basis:

Name of the financial asset Impairment Testing Methodology

Trade Recetvables Expected Credit Loss model (ECL) is applied. The ECL over
lifetime of the assets are estimated by using & provision matrix
which is based on historical loss rates reflecting current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions which
are grouped on the basis of similar credit characteristics such as
nature of industry, customer segment, past due status and
other factors that are relevant Lo estimate the expected cash loss
from thesc assets.

Other financial assets When the credit risk has not increased sigmificantly, 12 month
ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. When there is
significant change in credit risk since initial recogniton. the
impairment is measured based on probability of defauit over the
life time. If, in a subsequent period. credit quality of the
instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity
reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12
month ECL.

Financial abilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liahilities are classified, at initial recognition. as financial Habilities at FVTPL and as at
amortised cost.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or

costs that are an integeal part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the
statement of profitand loss.
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Al financial labilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of foans and borrowings and
pavables, net of directly attributabie transaction costs,

The Company’s Anancial abilities include rade and other paysbics, loans and borrowings including
bank overdrafts, financial gunarantec contracts and derivative financial instruments.

The measurement of financial Habilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial Habilities at FVTPL include financial habifitics held for trading and financial Habilities
designated upon imtial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial labilities are
rlassified as held for trading, if they are mcwrred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This
citegory also includes derivative financial msiruments entered into by the Company that are not
designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109, Separated
embedded derivatives are also classified as heid for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments,

(iains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profitor loss.

For ltabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk
are recognized in OCIL These gains/ loss are not subsequently fransforred to profit and loss. However,
the company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity, Al other changes in fair value of
such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The company has not designated any
tfinancial Hability as at fair value through profitand loss.

Loans and borrowings

After imtial recognition, witerest-bearing leans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities arc derecopnised as wel as through the FIR amortisation process.

Perivative financial instruments

The Company holds derivative financial instruments such as foreign exchange forward and options
contracts to mitigate the risk of changes in exchange rates on foreign currency exposures. The
caunterparty for these contracts is generally 2 bank,

Derivatives fair valued through profit or loss
This category has derivative financial assets or Habilities which are not designated as hedges.

Although the Company believes that these derivatives constitute hedges from an economic
perspective, they may not qualify for hedge accounting under Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments. Any
derivative that i3 either not designated a hedge, or is so designated but is ineffective as per Ind AS 109,
iscawegorized as a financial asset or financial Hability, at fair value through profit or loss.

Derivatives not designated as hedges are recognized initially at fair value and attributable transaction
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costs are recognized in net profit in the Staterment of Profit and Loss when incurred. Subsequent to
initial recognition, these derivatives are measured at fair value through profit or loss and the resuiting
exchange pains or losses are included in other income, Assets/ liabilities in this category are presented
as currerd assets / current Habilities if they are either held for trading or are expecied to be realized
within 12 months after the Balance Sheet date.

Derecognition of financial labilities

A financial Hability is derecognised when the obligation under the liabifity is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the ferms of an existing Hability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is freated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of'a
pew lability, The difference i the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.

Reclassification of financial assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After
initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and
financial Habilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if
there 1s a change in the business model for managing those assets, Changes to the business modei are
expected to be infrequent. The Company’s sentor management determines change in the business
model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Company’s operations.
Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Company
either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations, If the Company
reclassifies finuncial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date
which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in business model.
The Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or
losses) or interest.

The following table shows various reclassification and how they are accounted for:

8.No | Qriginal Reviged Accounting treatment
slagsification classification
q Amortised cost FYITPL Fair value is measured at reclassification daie, Difference

batwesn previous amortized cost and fair value is recognised n
the profit or 1oss

2 FYTPL Amorised Cost Fair value at reciassification dale becomes S new gross
carrying amouni. EIR is cafculated based on the new gross
CERNYING amepnt

3 Amortised cost FyTOCE Fair value i messursd 2! reclassification date. Difference
notween previous amortised cost and fair valus is recognised fn
QGL o change in BIR due (0 raclagsification

4 FVYTOGCH Amortised cost Fair value at reclassification date becommes its new amortised
cost carrying amount, However, curnuative gain of loss in OClis
adiusted against fair value. Consequently, the ssset is measured
. it} Ll aA=T t ;

& FYTPL FVTOCH Fair value at reclassification dale becomes its new carrying
amount, No other adjustment is reguired.

6 FYTOCI FYTPL Assets continde (o be measured at fair value. Cumudlalive gain or
logs previously recognized in OCH s reclassifiad © P&L al the
reciassification dala,




Financial assets and financial habilities are offiet and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet, if
there 1s a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is ap intention to
settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously,

h} Foreign currency transactions and translations
Transactions and balasces

Transactions in foreign currenciey are initially recorded by the Company at the functional currency
spot rates at the date at which the transaction first qualifies for recognition. However, for practical
reasons, the Company uses an average rate, if the average approximates the actual rate at the date of the
transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated ai the functional
currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. Exchange differences arising on settfement or
transiation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss,

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions, Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is
determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is
treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.c.,
translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCT or profit or loss are
also recognised in OCT or profit or loss, respeciively).

The Company enters into forward exchange contract to hedge its risk associated with Forcign currency
Auctuations. The premium or discount arising at the inception of a forward exchange contract is
amortized as expense or income over the life of the contract. In case of monetary items which are
covered by forward exchange contract, the difference between the yearend rate and rate on the date of
the contract is recognized as exchange difference. Any profit or loss arising on cancellation of a
forward exchange contract is recognized as income or expense for that
year.

1 amm not sure whether this para is appropriate
i) Borrowing Costs

Borrowing cost include interest computed using Effective Interest Rate method, amortisation of
ancillary costs incurred and exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the
extent they areregarded as an adjustment to the interest cost,

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction. production of a
qualifying asset are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset which takes substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use. The Company determines the amount of borrowing cost eligible for
capitalisation by applying capitalisation rate to the expenditure incurred on such cost. The
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capitalisation rate is determined based on the weiglted average rate of borrowing cost applicable to the
borrowings of the Company which are outstanding during the period, other than borrowings made
specifically towards purchase of the qualifying asset. The amount of borrowing cost that the Company
capitalises during the period does not exceed the amount of borrowing cost incurred during that period.
Allother borrowings costs are expensed in the period in which they ocour.

Interest income eamned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. All other
borrowing costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

) Gevernment Grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance
that the grantwill be received and the group witl comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are included in non-
current labilities as deferred income and are credited to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
expected ives of the related assets and presented within other income

K} Taxes
Current income fax

Current income tax asseis and labilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities, The fax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are
enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates
and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in
correfation to the underlying transaction either in OCT or directly in equity. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting
date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against witich the deductible tetmporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax fosses can be utilised, Where there is deferred tax assets arising from carry forward of
unused tax Josses and unused tax created. they are recognised to the extent of deferred tax lability.,
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The carrying amount of deferred 1ax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it 15 no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date
and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered,

Deferred tax assets and labilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year
when the asset 15 realised or the hability is settied, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating 1o items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss
{either imother comprehensive income or inequity). Deferred tax ftems are recognised in correlation to
the underlying transaction either in OCTor directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax labilities are offset i a legally enforceable right exists to set oft
cutrent tax assets against current tax labilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authoriry,

I} Retirement and other employee benefits
Short-term employec benefits

A liability 1s recognised for short-term employee benefit in the pertod the related service 15 rendered at
the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service,

PDefined contribution plans

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has
no obligation, other than the contribution payable o the provident fund. The Company recognizes
coptribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the
related service, If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet
date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability
after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution
due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an assct o the
extent that the pre-payment will iead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash
refund.

Detined benefit plans

The Compuny operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires confributions to be
made to a separately administered fund. The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is
determined using the projected unit credit method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit lability and the retum on plan assets
{excluding amounts included i net interest on the net defined benefit lability), are recognised
immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI




in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods,

Compensated absences

As per the policy of the Company, compensated absences are not entitled o be carried forward 1o the
subsequent financial vear and lapse at the end ofthe reporting period, Accordingly, no Hability towards
compensated absences are recognised i these financial statements.

Other long term employee benefits

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term emplovee benefits are measured at the present
value of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the Company in respect of services
provided by the emplovees up to the reporting date.

m} Leases
Accounting policy applied till March 31,2019
Asalessee

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangetrient at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the
arrangemernt is dependent on the nse of'a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys aright to
use the assetorassels, even ifthatright is not explicitly specified in an arrangement,

A lease that transfers substantially ail the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Company 13
classified as g finance lease, Al other leases are operating leases,

Operating lease payments are recognised on a straight fine basis over the lease term inthe consolidated
statement of profit and loss, unless the lease agreement explicitly states that increase is on account of
inflation,

Finance leases are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the inception date fair value of the
leased property o, if lower, at the present vatue of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are
appottioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate
of interest on the remaining balance of the labilitv. Finance charges are recognised in finance costs in
the statement of profit and loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case
they are eapitalized in accordance with the Compeny’s general policy on the bosrowing costs.
Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred,

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable
certainty that the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated
overthe shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the leasc term.
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Asalessor

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating iease. Contracts in
which all the risks and rewards of the tease are substantially transferred to the lessee are classified as g
{inance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Lease income from operating leases are recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease term

Accounting pelicy applied from April 81,2019

The Company has adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases” as notified by MCA as on March 30, 2019. The MCA
vig this notification requires all entities to apply Ind AS 116 from Accounting period April 01, 2019,
The entity has elected the “modified retrospective” approach for adopting Ind AS 116 and hence the
comparative information relating to prior years will not be restated.

The Company has clected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 Leases to short term leases of all
assets that have a lease term of |2 months or less and leases for which the underlying asset is of low
value. The lease payments associated with these leases are recognised as an expense on a straight-fine
basis over the lease term,

As alessee
a) Initial measurement

Lease Liability is initially recognised and measured af an amount equal to the present value of minirum
lease payments during the lease term that sre not yvet paid. Right-of-use asset is recognized and
measured at cost, consisting of initial measurement of lease Hability plus any lease payments made to
the lessor at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received, nitial estimate of
restoration costs and any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee.

b} Subsequent measurement

The lease Hability s measured in subsequent periods using the effective interest rate method. Right-of-
use asset is depreciated in accordance with requitements in Ind AS 16, Property, Plant and equipment.

The Company has leases that were classified as finance leases applying Ind AS 17, For such leases, the
carrying amourtt of the right-of-use asset and the lease lability at the date of instial application of Ind
AS 116 is the carrying amount of the lease asset and lease Hability on the transition date as measured
applying Ind AS 17, Accordingly, an amount of Rs. 128.14 lakhs has been reclassified from property,
plantand equipment to right-of-use assets.

A% alessor

At the inception of the lease the Company classifies each of its leases as either an operating lease ora
finance lease. The Company recognises iease paymests received under operating leases as income ona
straight-line basis over the lease term. In case of a finance lease, finance income is recognised over the



lease term based on a pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on the lessor’s net investment
inthe lease.

n} Impairment of non financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the
Company ¢stimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher ofan
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value Jess costs of disposal and its value in use
Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying
amount of an asset or OGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is constdered impaired and is
written down to its recoverable amount,

o} Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent asset
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has 2 present obligation {egal or constructive) as a result
ot a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the ghligation.

Provisions are discounted, if the effect of the time value of money is material, using pre-tax rates that
reflects the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, an increase in the provisions due to
the passage of time is recognised as finance cost. These provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet
date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Necessary provision for doubtful debts, claims,
etc., are made, ifrealisation of money is doubifil in the judgement ofthe management.

Contingent linbilities

A contingent Hability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the
control of the company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in
extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannet be recognized because it cannot be measured
reliably. Contingent habilities are disclosed separately.

Show cause notices issued by various Government authorities are considered for evalvation of
contingent Habilities only when converted into demand.

Contingent assets

Where an inflow of economic benefits is probable, the Company discloses a brief description of the
nature of the contingent assets at the end of the reporting period, and, where practicable, an estimate of
their financial effect. Comntingent assets are disclosed burnet recognised in the financial starements.

4t




p) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash eguivalents are short-term
balances with original maturity of less than 3 months, highly liguid investments that are readily
convertible into cash, which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

q) Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are presented using indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) befbre tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts (m;
payments, ?

(Cash flows are presented using indivect method, whereby profit / (loss) before tax is adjusted for the
effecis of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or acoruals of past or future cash receipts ot
payments. '

Bank borrowings are generally considered 1o be financing activities. However, where bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand form an integral part of an entity’s cash management, bank overdrafts
are included as 2 component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of Cash flow
statement.

r) Earnings per share

The basic eamings per share are computed by dividing the netprofit for the period attributable to equify;
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Dijuted
EPS is computed by dividing the net profit afier tax by the weighted average oumber of equity shax‘esé
considered for deriving basic EPS and also weighted average number of equity shares that could have
been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Ditutive potential equity shares arg
deemead converted as of the beginning of the period, unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potem%a!g
equity shares are determined independently for each period presented. The number of equity si@amsg
and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted for bonus shares. as appropriate. ‘
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Notes to Financial Statements for the yvear ended March 31, 2020

{All amounts are m lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Asat As at
March 31, 2028 March 31, 2018
& Capital Work-in-progress
Capial work in progress 288 2443
§.88 2443
& Nop-current investments ;
invastment in other companies at FYTOC!
Guoted H
Mulll Cormmodity Exchange of Indla Lid (82 (previous year 89) euuily shares of Rs.10 g.78 .56 E
each fully paid] !
inquoted ‘
Thisgarajer Mills Private Limited 204274 180141 ¢
(75, 140 {previous year | 70,140) equity shares of Rs, 10 sach fully pai)
Colour Yarns Linited 1468 152 ¢
486,000 {previcus vesy 106,000} equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paxl] 2
Integrated Hi-Tach Limited 020 b e
{1,800 {previous vear 1,800} equily shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid} |
Telesys Software Limiteg 342 108
{19,000 {pravious year 19,600) equity shares of fis. 10 sach fully paid] ;
SiIMA Taxtile Pracessing Centra Lid 1.98 198
{15,840 {19,840} equity shares of Rs.10 each Adly paid}
2.063,45 182247 |
i
* Fair values have been determined 1o the exent of information available with the !
Company in respact of the ivestreents i unlisted companies. It he opinfon of the i
managament, the impact of falr vahie changes | I any, is nol considered o be !
material :
i
Fotal non-curvent investments i
Aggregate amotint of quoted investments .78 0568 ¢
Aggregate marke! value of quoted invesiments 078 158
Aggregate cosi of unqueted investmants 15.83 1983 1
Aggregtte amount of impainment in value of investrments - LR :
% 7 Non<current Loans (#t amortised cost) ( :
% Secured - considered good - - :
Unsecured - congiderad good :
: Capital Advances 758 42,43 ‘
Other Loans 403.39 404.15
Loans which have signficant increase in cradit risk . - g i
E Leans - Credit impaired - . :
e A1098 e SAEED i
8§ Gthsr nop-current financlal assets H
in fixed deposits {Maturing more than 12 months from end of the reporting period} 183 ! '
Secured - considered good -
Unsecured - considered good ;
Security deposits ) 138.21 05
Loans and receivables which have significant ingrease in credif risk . - :
Loang and receivables - Credit impaired - - ;
140,18 11163 :
& i3 :
17




Notes to Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2620
{All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, uniess otherwise stated)

g inventories i

Raw Materials - Yara 92378 84728
Work-in-progress
Yam 500,50 43245
Cloth 32.38 87.63 :
Einishied Products :
: Cloth 1,424.81 1524 i
Wasle 1030 12t :
Stores and spares 141.28 123,75
Loose totls 001 1
| 3.033.38 280448

1 Gurrent Invesiments
Investiments carried at fair value through profit or loss
Tnvestment in Mutust Funds - Quoted

SB1 Magnum nsta Cash Fund 288071 1.527.37
Aditya Birla Surs Life hutual Fund 2.782.18 47585
Hippon India Low Duraton Fund 667 .85 . i

Investmanis carrled at ameorilsed cost
Investments in Debenturay - Unguoted
Pirgmal Enterprises Lid - 1017 58
a4t (Pravious year 110} Unsecured Redeematile Non-convertile Debentures of Rs. 10 lain
aach fully paid up
Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Did - 15T

Nif (Previous year 150} Unsecured Redeamable Non-comvertible Debentures of Rs. 1¢ lakh
eash fully paid up

5830.74 449135,

11 Trade receivables
Secured - considered good .
Unsecured, considared good 1.857.75 2404.14
Trade receivable which have significant increase in cradit risk - -
Trade Reselvables - Cradit impaiced - -

i 1,867.75 240414
t L.ess: Allowance for expected credit loss - : :
12 Cash and cash equiviients
Cash on Hand a.82 2.85
Salances with Banks
- in current acgounts 74.28 7724
! - In fined daposit fwith originat maturity of legs than 3 months) - 200.00
é SR— e AI483.
]
13 Oiher bank balances 33
In fned Gaposits (due to mature within 12 months from end of the reporing perod) - 181 :
I gar-marked aeoounis :
- Unpaid dividand acoounts 10181 1748
N £ 1 1 5 S— L
14  Current financial assets - Loans and Advanges
Sscured - considered good - .
Unsecured - considerad good
Ralances with governinent authonties: 551.58 42313
Leans and advances - other than reiated parthes £.64 185 !
Loans and advances which have significant increase in credl rlsk - .
Loans and advances Creditimpaired 10.52 :
568.74 34.98
Less: Afowance fof expected credit loss (10582 -
S - ¥ 3 P - 1.5

118




Notes to Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2020

! (Al amounts are in lakhs of indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

; 15 Other Current Financiat Assels
; Forward contratt receivable

18 Ciher currant assats
{Unsenured, considered good}
irterss! raceivable
Advarice {0 suppliers
Prepaid expenses

17 Gurrend 1ax assefs
Advance income fax {net of provision for tex}

18 Capital

Authorised Share Capital
10,00.00,008 (Previous year 10,00,000; Equity shares of Re. 1 sach

i issued Share Capital
4,02.27 BUG {Previvus year 402,27 800) Equity shares of Re, 1 each

Subseribed and fully paid up share capital
; 4,02, 27 800 {Pravious year 4 02,27 500 Equily shaves of Re. 1 gach

Notes:

1) Reconsiliation of number of equity shares subscribed
Batance as at ihe beginning of the year
Add isated during the year

Balance at the end of the year

% The Company has ao Holding or Subsidiary Companies.

nor for consideration other than cash and has not bought back aay shares,
The Company had spiit its Rs, 10/ paid up shares into Re. - paid up sharas in Octoper 2012,

Lo

o

Rights, prefarences and restrictions in respect of equily shares issued by the Company

Genaral Mesting.

6 Shareholders hotding mors than 5% of the total share canital

FLIRTTED

)

i
H
H
i

125

: 125 .
- 106876
2514 &7
1099 4754
5613 158,61
258,62 3637
w—mm—“ M-ﬂmﬁﬂaz-l:
100000 10490 g6
40228 400 28
. ) 1 e A02:28,
40228 40258
402,27 660 40227800 |
agiasen 40227800

3 Buring the last five years immediately praceding the dale of Balance Sheet, the Company has neifher issusd any sharas as bonus sharas

a. The company has ssusd only one class of equity shares having 2 par valus of Re. 1 each. The aquity sharas of the company baving par
; vahue of Re. 1/ rank par-passy in aff respects including woling Aghts and enitiement to dividend.

. The Company declares dividend on aquity shares. In the event of dedlaration of intenm dividend, the same is as per the dedision of the
: Board of Direclors, Final dividend s proposed by Board of Direstors and approved by the sharehoiders of the Company af the Anpual

¢, In the event of ligiwdation, sharehoidars. will be entitled (o receive the remaining assets of the company after disirbulion of af preferential
amounts. The distribution will be proporfionats to the number of equily shares bela by the shareholder.

PR

Name of the share holder March 31.2020 1 March 31, 2018 i
Mo, of shares No. of shares % of} ;
id] holding]
E 1.Kannan, Partner, Guriivayoorappan Invesiments 75,20,600 75,20,000f 18.89
E TXannan, Partner, Avittam Invesiments 75,60.000 TE000000 1864
‘ T.Rannan, Partner, Karumutiu investiments £1,90,600 61,890,600 1538
‘ 26.78.000 26780000 666 |

M/s, Thiagaraiar Milis Prvate Limited

NICY
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

(ANl amounts are in fakhs of Indian Rupees, unfess otherwise stated)

i

18 Other Eguity i
General Reserve 17 878,56 18,725.66 |
Other Comprenensive income 280N 1,768.7%
Profif and Loss Account 83877 85232

1993614 19.347.17
a) General reserve
Bafance al the beginning of the year 16,725 56 16,125.68
Additions during the year 31.00 80000
DeductionsiAdiustments during e vear - .
Batance at the end of the year 17,076,685 16,723.66 ;
b} Othes comprehensive income
Balance at the beginring of the year 4.769.78 1.281.22
Addifions during he yaar 260.92 240.96
Changes in deferrad tax recognised dirsclly in equity . 451
Daductions! Adjustmanis during the year - RN
Balarcs at the and of the year 248281 176978 |
¢} Profit and loss account
Batance at the beginting of the year 85232 787 61
Nat profit for the period 1,210.38 102153
Dividend paid and the taxes thereon 187294} {363.72)
Transfer from Other Comgrefiensive Income . 6.80
Transfar to General Reserve (351.00) {E00.00)
Batance at the and of the year BIB.TT 852,32
20 Non-Current Liabilities - Financial Liabilities: Borrowings
Secured |
From Banks ** 64265 55478
e DA2ED . X R
* Torms of foan and secwity defalls
1 Term logn avaled from Exim Bank of India by securing first charge on the Specfic assels procured under ATUF Schere - repayable in §
yaars on half vearly basis, commenging from Decamber 2018,
21 Tern loan availeg Fom Exim Bank of Ingia by securing first charge on the specific assels procured under ATUF Scheme - repayable in §
years on half vearly basis, commenting from September 2018,
3 Term loan availed from HDFC Bank by securing first charge on the speciic assets precured under ATUF Schame - repayadle in § years 0n
gquarterly besis, commencing from December 2019, !
21 Other nongurrent financlal lahifities
Lease rent advance 285 258
285 2.68
120




Notes to Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2020

LIMIITED

(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

n

3

%4

25

2%

&7

Deferred Tax Liability
On fixed assets 70552 608,57
Remeasurament of financial assets 2473 25510
v i8035 e SO3ET
Deferred Tax Asset
Gratulty and leave encashiment 54.57 4714 ‘
Government grants 1047 s
) 64,74 IR I
Wet deferred tax liability 43851 41552
§35.51 Bi653
Qther non current lishilities
Deferred Income from government grant At -
L.ease prapayment dabifity 88.13 wmer
123,04 9682
Trade payahles ;
Totat outstanding dues of micro enlarprises and small snterprisss 642 -
Totat cutstanding dues of credifors ofher than migro enlerprises and small enterprises BT 18213
N i T, - 5

Dues to Micro and Small Enerprises have been determined o the exient such parties have been idenifed on the basis of information
collectad by the management represents the principal amount payable to these enterprises, Thare are no overdus inferest gnd outstanding

as &t the reporting date. Please refer nole 44,

Other current financial liabilities

Security Deposits 218 213
— iR N5 v
Other currem liabilities
Currant maturities of long-term debis 36064 4607
Creditor for capital goods ®i6 -
Unpaid dividends 10181 77.45
Siatulory dues payable 1425 11258
Employee payables 5543 72,24
Advance from Customers 61.20 .
Remunaraiion payable to Chairman and MD 58.00 500
Defsrred inooms on governament grant 139 .
685.85 584.34
Provisions
Provision for gratuity 1348 12141
134,16

12147
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 ;
(All anounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

For the year gnded  For the year endes i
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2819 |

28 Revenue from operations
Sale of Products

Clath 15,468 53 1541298

Yarm and cloth waste 229 58 28023
1559421 15,7032t
Sale of Services :
Conversion Charges 38.96 -
Other Opetaling Revertie
Foreign exchange gain (nel) 102.93 0125
Dty drawback 21334 17538 {
16,053,468 13.978.84 |
i 28 Othor income
; Interast ncome 84,59 26898
; Dividend Income 93,30 4420 .
incoma on feir valuation of investment in mutual funds KRRy} 5223

Frofit on sale of fued assels 2H.30 133.37

Profit on sake of Invesiments 85,69 134 .44

Mark ta market gain on forward coatracts - 725

ingomne from government grant 55.82 -

Other non operating incoma 41,44 44,44
88355 68279
36 Cost of materials consumad - Yarn :

Cpening stock B817.28 72180

Add : Purchases 41,688 87 11,343.44

Less © Glosing Stock 933,75 B17.28

1888220 1324778

31 Changes in inventories of work-insprogress, stock in trate and finished goods ;

Qpsning stock of
Work-ineprograss
Yarn 43743 38
i Cloth i Process 87,83 85,62
Finished goads
Cloth 4,332.41 107002
Wasle .21 1.25
186344 146778
Giosing stock of
Vinthein-prograss
Yarn 500,30 432.49
Cloth in Proess 3236 497,83
Finished goods
; Ghoth 1424.81 1351
! Viaste HE30 (I
‘ 1,868.37 1583.48 |
{increasel Decrease in inveniores {10493} {305,741 j
3t Employes Densfils sipense
Salaries and wages 943,50 410,52
Cantribution 1o provident and other funas 75,35 78561
S workmen wellare crpensas 155,52 141.32
116477 113036 |




Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

{All amounts are tn lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended For the year ended

March 34, 2020 March 31, 2019
33 Finance Cost
Interest on Term Loans 88.31 8293
Oiher borrowing cost 2343 2988
108,74 113,59
34 Deprecistion and amortisation expense
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 744 69 681,85
Depraciation of ROU Asset 1544 -
78313 88165
35 Othet expenses
Power and fuel 71801 B4380 |
Consumption of stores and spare peris 594,19 62514 |
Bteaching and Processing charges - Cloth 84,32 13366
Rent ' §.81 8.15 E
Fepals o tuildings 7745 8384 !
Repairs to machinery 13663 14571 |
insurance 4877 1096 |
Rates and taxes 1273 180 §
Payment io Auditors -
- as Auditors 500 580 4
- far Certification & Other Services 225 375
- for Reimbursement of expenses . 042 |
Selling expenses 181.85 161.58 E
Brokarage expenses 22396 22142
Forward contracts cancellation charges 74 5.54
Donations 0.26 60.00
Corporate social responsibiity expenditure [refer note: 33(a) 0.50 114
Legal and Professional chargas 18.82 13.38
Directors siltings fees and Yraveliing expensas 293 156
Commission to Chairman and Managing Director 56800 96,00
Miscelfanesus expenses 147.34 9197
235035 2484 49
36 (a) Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibitity
i) Gross Amourd requbred 1o be spent on Corporate Social Responsibiity during the vear 25.30 28.45
iy Amaunt spent during ihe year on
&) Gonslryetion and! or acquisttion of any asset - .
b} Qther Purposas other than (i} above | 058 118
.50 118
it Amount unspent during the year’ 2480 28.28
*The company is in the process of identifying efigible projects and the balance amount will he
spent on those projects
4123
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 20290
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated) :

For the year endad  For the year snded
March 31,2020 March 31,2019 |
37 income tax expense

{a) Income tax expense :
Current tax |
Curtent tax on profits for the vear 304,80 370 :
Adiustments for curment tax of pror periods {1567 -
Tatal surrent tax axpense 289,23 34718 ;
Deforred tax 1
Deferred tax adustments 13743 K- B
Total deferred lax expansa! {penafit} 137.13 31.48
income tax aXpense 426,36 378.49%
b) The income tax expense for the year can be reconcited to the ateounting profit as
Profit before tax from cortinuing operations 183875 1 400,52
fneome tax expense caloulated at 20.120% (2018-19: 28.120%) 476.6¢ 407 83 i
; Efiect of expansesf (ncome) that are not treated differently for tax purposes {187.72) (8073} ;
z% Income tax expanse 850 34718 i

¢} tncome tax recognised in ather comprehensive income {

Deferrad fax
Remeasurament of defined bensfit ciligation and equity insinanents 18,14 [E
Tatal Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income 18,14 (5172}

d) Movemen of deferred tax expense during the year ended Warch 31, 2024

Deferrod tax (Habifities) Opaning Racognised in Recognised In Closing] ! :
! assels in refation to. balance profit or loss Other halance] | :
: Comprehsnsive
Incomei Enusity !
Proparty, plent, and squipment {BUBATY {46.95; - 70554 ;
Expanses aliowable on payment basis under the 4714 7.43 - 54871
fneome Tax Act {
Remeasurement of financial instrumenis {25540y {47.61) 1815 {28456}
{846.53} {13743} 18.15 935,51}
MAT Creddt eniitlement - - N - :
: Total {816.53) (13218 1815 {§35.51)




Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

{ All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

38

33

41

42

Movemant of deferred tax expense during the year ended March 31, 2019

Deforred fax (Habilites)/ assets in refation f6: Gpening§ Recognised in Recognisad in Ctosmi
balance profit or loss Other] balane
Comprehensive
Incomel Equity
Propanty, plant, and equipment {356.95) {248.62) - {608.57)
Expenses aflowable on payment basis under the 40.27 887 47.1%
Inicome Tax Act )
Rameasurerment of financial insbuments {B58.25) (.58 41257 (255,10}
{987.93) {24417 412,57 {816.53)
MAT Credit entiement - - - -
Total {887.93} {241.47) 41257 {818,53}
For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 ¢
Earnings per share :
Frofit for the year atiibutable to owners of the Company 1.210.38 102153 !
Weighted average number of orginary shares ouistanding 4,02.27.600 40227800 ¢
Basic garnings per share (Rs.} g 2.54
Diuted aamings per share {Rs.) 303 254 ‘
H
Earnings in forsign currency i
FOR value of exports 4,164.34 530739
Expenditure in foreign cutrency (net of withholding tax) i
Commission 83.30 14548 ¢
Traveting expanses . 143 |
Seling expenses 006 -
Dther sxpenses 1.58
84.94 14692
Value of imports caleulated on GUF basis
Components and spare parts 14375 134,14
Cauital goods 1,006.57 1140
115032 24554
Value of imported and indigenous Raw Materials and Stores and Spares consumad during the financial
ﬁmﬂmwmmmmmn
Particulars Year endad March 31, 2020 f g reh 31 i
Rs.inkakhs |  Percentage (%) Reintakhs|  Percontage (%)
Value of raw malenials consumed :
kmported . . . -4
indigsnous 10,982 20 100,00 14.242.75 R
10.982.20 100,00 11.447.76 100,00
Value of Stores and Spares Consumed
imporied 143.75 2418 117.58 18.81
indigenous 450 44 7581 50756 8118
584,19 100,58 625.44 10890




Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated) ?

- ——

. As athiarch 31, As atiarch 31,
Particulars 2020 " 3;
Contingent Liabilities 318858
PF Asrears under dispute £2.37 5888
Eleciricty peak hour penality dispute 380 180
Tamilnadu VAT dispute 140 1.60
Income lax demands 517 -
Bitls discounted B1142 478.35
1
Ccmm;tmems :
78594 1752

* The management befieves, based on internal assessment and |/ of legal advice, that fhe probabifity of an ultimete adverse decision and
outfons of rescuross of the company is nol probable and secordingly, no provisien for the same is considerzd necessary.

44 IDisclosures required by the Wicro, Small and Medium Enterprises B&veicpmenﬁ As gl As at
MED) Act, 2006 are as uadsr March 31, 2020t March 31, 2019

{1 The srincipal amound semalning wnpaid at the end of the year 582

() The delaved pavmends of principal amount paid beyond e appointed date during the year - .
fc) Interest actually paid under Section 18 of MSMED Act - -
(1) Normad Interest dug and payable duting the year, for delayed payments, as per the agreed - -
(2} Total interest scorved during the year and remaining unpaid . -

Tris information has been delermined to the exient such paries have been identfied on the basis of inforation avallabie with te
Company.

45 Qperating Segments
The company is engaged in the business of “Textiles” and therefore, has only one reporiable segment In accordance with Ind AS 108
"Vperating Segments’.

Information relating to gecgraphical sreas

{a} Revenue from external customers
. Yoar endedMarch] Year endedMarch]
Particulars 21, 2020 31.2@1@!
india 11,500,683 1133454
Rest of the world 4 10758 5368 67
Total 15.688.21 15,703.21
{b} Non cirent assels

The manufacturing faclities of the Company are situated in fndia and no nom-current 2ss2ts are held outside India.

J[ctinformation ahout major cistomens
A Year endedMarchi  Year endeditarch
Particulars 342020 21,201
Number of external customers sach contributing more than 10% of tofal revenae . i

Total revenus from the above cusiomers - 213102




Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

{All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

46 Leases:

As Lessor

renewed based on mytual agresment of the partiss,

The company has applied Ind AS 116 with the date of initial application of Apri 1, 2018. The company has applied Ind AS 116 using the
i madified refrospective approach, under which the cumulative effect of initiaf application is racognized in retained earmings al April 1, 2018

The Campany has entersd info operafing lease amangements for certets surplus facifiies. The feases are non canceflable and may be |

EIMITED

based on mutual agreemert of the parlies.

Yoar endecharch Year]
Particulars 31,20200 endedMarch 3,
Piiai)
Totalleass income recognised in fhe Statement of Profl and Loss 100 100
Undiscounted lease payments o be received for the
First 5 years 500 500
Later than 5 years 3068 684
As Lessee

The Company has entered into both uperating lease amangements and finance lease arrangements for certain faciities. Some leases are
non cancellable at the opfion of either party o lease and others are cancefiable af the oplion of the lease. The Lease may be renewed

Year endediarch Year|
Particulars 31,2020] endedMarch 3t
2018
Expense relafing to leases of low-value assels accounted for applying para 6 of lhd AS 116 841 815
Right of use asset as o the opening dale 12814 12844
Additions during the year . .
Dapreciation charge for the year 1844 - |
Right of use asset as on March 31, 2020 108.70 12844
ot Cash ouffiow for inance lease arangements g fi2
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&

4

Government Grants
The delails of Government Granis raceived by the Compeny are as follows .

Year endediarch Yeat
Partioutars 31,20200 endedMarch 31 |

2018

Dty Drawback on exposts 21334 175.38
interest subvention of export finance 1338 1587
ATUF - Subsidy 104,68

Thase a7 no unfulfiled condilions and ather contingencies attached to government assistance that has been recognised in the fnancial

glatements.

Tha company has opted for deferrad incame. Accordingly, government grant is credited i profit o loss on 2 straightine basis over the |

awpected Wz of the relaied asset and presented within other income

Revenue from contract with customers

a) Al sales are made ala point ib fime and revenue recognised upon satisfaction of the performance obligations which is typically upon
dispatchidelivery, The Company does nol give signifieant credi period to its cusiomers, resulfing in no significant financing component.

¢)

Change i contract lighilities

Yaar endedMarch Year|
Particulars 31,2020 endedMarch 31,
itk
Balance at the beginning of the year -
Revenue recognised -
, iring peried 81.20
‘Ciesin: Balance at the year end 61.20
Reconciliation of revenue recognised with contracted price st as follows ;
Year endedMarch Yoar
Particulars 34, 20200 endedMarch 3, |
2014
Contracled price 1605346 15,979.84
Redichion fowards varisble consideration compenents” : .
Revenue Recognised 15,083.48 1537084

* Reduction towards variable consideration comprises of discounts, servica level credits efc,




Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated) !
49 Financial instruments

Capital management

The Company managss its sapital to ensure that entities In the Company will be atla to confinue 85 going concarm, whille maximising the retum to stakeholders trough

tfig epiimisalion of the debil and equity balance.

The Company deterrines the amourt of capitel raquirad on the basis of anmual opsrafing plens and long-term product and other strategic invasiment plans, The
funding requirements are met through equily, long fem and shor-tam Larrowings.

Fer the purposas of tha Company's capilal management, capital includes issued capital and other equity reserves atiibulatie io the equily holders.
Categories of Financlal Instriments March 3%, 2026 March 34, 2048

Financial assets
a, Megsured at amortized cost

Loans {nomecuréent) 410,68 448,58
Other noncurrent financlal assefs 140,14 11,03
Trade receivalias 188175 240414
Cash and cash equivalents 71.80 TIAES
Bank batances other than above 101.84 79.26
Loars {turrent) 558.22 43435
Investments {current - 7.688.09

b. Measwred o falr value through olher
comprehensive income (FYTOCT :
investments {non-current) 208348 182242 i

¢. Mandatorily measured at fair value
through profit or loss (FYTPL} :
Investmants {cusrent) 583074 200322 %

Financial Babifities
2. Measured at amontised cost

Boreywings {non-pumrent) 84265 503.76
Other norwcirrent financial labifities 288 258
Tratle payatles 87784 18213
Cther financial kabilties 248 243

b, Mandatorily measured at fair valpe
through profit or foss {FYTPL)
Dgrivative instruments

Financial rigk managemen? ohjectives

The treasury function provides services to the business, co-ordinates accass o domestic and international financial markels. moniors and manages the fnancial risks
relating to the eperations trough intamal sigk reports which analyse exposures by degree and magnituce of risks, These risks include markel risk (ncluding currency
fisk, interest rate risk and other price risk}, credit risk and liguidily risk,

The Company sesks o minimise the effects of thesa risks by usig natural hadging fnanciat insiruments 1o edge risk expasures. The use of fnancial denvatives s
govamed by the Company's poficies approved by the baard of diraclors, which provide wiitlen principles on foreign exchange sk, the uge of fhancial derivatives. and ;
the investment of axcess liquidity, The Company does not enter inta or trads financial instrumerts, inclyding dervativa fnancial Insinimants, Tor specuiative purposes. i

Market risk

Market risk is the risk of any Inss in future earmings, in realizable fair values or in future cash flovs that may resull from a changs in theprics of 2 financial instrumant,
The Company's activiies expose it primarly to e financial risks of changes in foreign ourrancy exchange rates and interest rates, The Company actively manages i i
currency and interast rafe sxposures through & findnce division and uses derivatiee instruments such as forward contracts aad curency SWaps, wharever requited, ! :
mitigate the risks from such exposures. The use of derivalive instruments is subject 1o Bmits and regular monitoring by aporopriate levels of managesent. !

Forgign curency risk management

The Company undertakes fransactions denominated in foreign currencies, consequenty, exposures fo exchange rete fuciuations anse. The Company actively
mranages its currancy rale exposures through & centralised freasury division 2nd uses natural hedging principies U miligate the risks from such exposures. The use oft :
gertualive instriments, if any. 18 subect to limis and reqular monitoring by approprigte levels of management, |
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The carmying amaunss of the Company's freign corrency denaminated monelary assets aet monedary Habifiiies at he end of B raponing pericd ars 83 fellows:

As on March 31, 2020 (ali amounts are in equivalent Bs. in lakhs}

Particulars Liatilitles Assots Het overail
SXPOBUTe By
Bross Exposure Ret  Hability!Gross exposine iﬁxp{xsum Mot assetithe currensy -
eXpORyre hedged using{exposure  on neddgad  usingiexposure  onjnet assets/
durlvatives. . fite sugrency detivatives...—jibe surpacy. Jinet lebditiesl... !
Trade rereivables - - - 287 45 - 297.4% 267.48

A% on March 31, 2648 {ak amounts are in equivalent Hs. in Jakhs]

Particuturs Lishilities 1Assets ot pverall
erposure  of
Brogs Expnsure Mot HabilitylGross exposure [Exposure Met ansatithe currenty -

expsitre hedged usingiexposure on hedged  usingjexposure  onynet assels

Teade recevaties - - - 40328 sg2

Forpign currancy sensilivity enalysis
Moverant i the hmefionat curences of Ma varous operstions of the Company against major iarign currenties may impect the Companys revenues Fom /S
apesations, Any weakening of the Runctional cunency ey impatt e Company's sost of impords and cost af borowings and corsequenty may increase the cost of
finanging the Company's capital expenditres. The foreign exchange &le sensdivity s caioulated for eath currancy by aggregation of the nel forewgn exchange 1ol ;
anposure of & Ccurrenty and & simultenesus paraliel foraign exchanga rales shift in the forsign exchange rates of pach surtency by 3%, which represents managements i
assesament of the reasonably posside change i Toraign exchange Tetes. The sensituity analysis moludes onfy oudstanding foregn surency gannrinated monestary ;
iems and adsts el ransialion al the perfod ead for 4 2% changs ip forign curency es. The estimaled sengitvily impact will be aroung =~ Rs. .58 lakhs !
iPravious year RY. 0.1 fakha), which Is considersd to be immatenyl o e size of operalions of e Camoany. i

in management's oplnion, the sensitivily analysis is unrepresentalive of the inherent foreign exchange risk betause Ine Sxposure atthe and of the roadting period does
rol teflact ha exposure during the year.

Interost rate risk management

i The Company s sxposet 1o inferest rate sk because fLborow funds loth fixad ane Roating interest rates, The ok is managéd by the Company by maniaining an
appropriate v petween fixed and flogting rate borfowings and by e use of hierest fate swap conlracts. Hedging acivities are svalusted reguiany 0 gliga with :
terest rate views and defined nsk appetite, ensuring e most costefiectva hedging yiatagies are spphied, Further, in apotoprats cases. the Comgany aise sffects
i changes in the bomrewing armangements i sonvert Soaling interast rates 1o fixed intarast fales.

ntorast rate sensitivity anslysis
i Trg sensitvity analyses below have been determined hased on the exposure fo nterast rates for both devvatives and aoh-derivative nstruenents at the end of the

mporiing pericd. For floating rate Habilies, the analysiz is prepared assuming the amount of the Babilily cutgtanding % the and of the reporting peticd was oulstanding
i the whole year, A 25 basis poinl itrease or GaCreasd 8 used when reporting interest rete rish intermally 10 key management pergoneel aud represents i
management's assessment of the reascnably possitle change in interest rates,

The 35 basis point intersst eate changas wil impact the profitabiity by R 0.27 Lakis for the vear {Fresious vear Re, 0.28 Lakhs)

Credit risk managemant

Crodit risk anses when H cusiines of counterparly doss not meal ds obligations untier & customer contract of financial nstrumen:, jeading to A fvancial fass. The
Campany is exposed 10 tradit risk from Ks oparating aclivities primartly Fade recoivables and from s firancieg! iveating activitios, including deposits with banks,
mustual ford nvestments, investments in debt securiies and foreign exchangs traneaciions, Tha Compaay has no sigmficant oncentration of wed dsk wah any

Exposuss to credit risk
The cartying amount of Snancial assefs represents the madnuim eratit sxposure. The masimum axposure is the tutat of the carrying amount o palances with banks
short term deposils wilh banks, trage roeivables, margin monay and oiker finandsl assets gxcluding squty invesimanis.

{a} Trade Receivables
Trade receivablas are consising of 2 lange number of customens. The Company has oredt avaluation policy for each customer and, based on th svahuation, Gredi imit
of sach customer iz definad, Wheravir the Company assesses e oredit risk as high, the sxposure is backed Dy either bank, quarantssietier of credit of securly

The Company dues not have higher conceniration of credit nisks 1o 2 singls customer, As per simplified approach, the Company makes provision of expacied credit
insses on hads receivables uming & provision matix to mitigate the risk of dafult in paymants and Makes appropriate provision at gach rporiing date wheravet
sulstanding 5 for longer period and involves Woher risk,
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{b} bvestments, Derivative Insiruments, Cash end Cash Equivalants and Bank deposits
Cradit Risk on cash and cash equivalerds, deposits wih the henksfinancialinstiutions s generally low as the said deposis have baen made wih fhe banksifinancial
institutions. who have been assigned high credt sating by intemational and domasfic raling agencies.

Crei Rigk on Derivativn Insiruments & generally tow 28 he Gompany srers inio the Derivative Contracts with Ine reputed Ranks.

nvestments of swpis funds are made only welh aproved Francial Insituons/Counlerarty. Iovesiments primarly include investment in unfls of quoted Midal
Funds, quoted Bonds, Nan-Crnvertible Debiantures Jssued By Goverment/Send-Government Agencles™SY Bonde/High bnvasimen! grade Comorates ofr, These
Mutual Funds and Counferparties have low credt nsk. The Campany has standard operafing procathures and invasiment poliey for deplovmant of surglus Suicity
which aliows invesiment in debt securiies anc mluat fand scivemes of debl and ariliage tategones and resircis e exposire n equfy markess,

{ffsetting related disciosures
Offseting of cash and cashequivalents ks bormomings as per he oan agreement is avallabie onfy o te bank inthe event of a defaudl. Compan doss not have the igh
o affset in case of the counler party's banieuptey, therefore, these disciosires are notreguired.

Liguidity Ask management .
Liguidity risk sefers fo the risk dat e Company camot meel s Fnancial chigations. The obiacive of luidity sk management is fo mefnian suffciantfuigly and
ensure that s ae avallable for use: 6 per requirements, The Company Tavests s surplus funds i bank Sxed depositand muual funds, which cary minimdl mark b
market rsks. The Company also constantly monitors funding opfions avallbie v e deb! and capial markets wih a view to maintaining francial fexiolily

Uiguidity iables ‘
e Tolowing tables detalthe Company's remaining contractual matufy for s non-derivative francal Fabiives with aqreed repament peviods. The fabies have been
drawn up based on the undiscountzd cash fows of financial Fsbities bazed on the earfiest data an which the Company can be recuired fo pay.

March 31, 2029 Dueinfsfl Dueindndlo] Due after S
year 5 vear yeat
Borrowings 36084 28h .
Trade payables B84 - -
B B 1 el
March 31, 2048 Dueinfsti Dueinlndlol Dusafter Sﬁ
year Sth vest fea
Borrowings B 56376 -
Mo pavables 18213 .
20 S35 . %1%]

March 3¢, 2020 March 34, 2018
Fair value of financial assefs ang financial abities that are not il it
meastired af fair vadue {ind fair value disclosures are required),
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5 Refated party disclosure
2) List of parties having significant influence
Holding company Tha Company does not hava any holding company

Subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures The Company does ot have any subsidieries, associates anc joint veniures

i

Key Wanagement Personnel and their Relafives

84 TKannan Chalrman and Managing Direclor

Dr.{Smt) Umna Kannan Direckor

Sni. K. Thiagaraian Director

Sri ¥4 Ramanathan {riaf Financial Officer (from February 31, 2018)
84 § Paramasivam Company Sevretary

Enterprises in which Key Management Personnel and their Relatives have significant influence
Thiagarajar Kills (P) Lid.
Tamaraiselyi Finance (P} L,
Kalaithanthai Karamutfy Thiagaraia Chettiar Memorial Charitable Trust
Thiagarajar Coliege of Enginaering !
Thiagarajar College
Cofour Yams Limited
Samy Automabile ‘
Sivakami Taxtle Traders (P} Lt :
Thiagarajar Rubbers Private Limited
Sundaram Texifles
Karamuthu bweslments
Karnapan Traders Private Limited

Transactions with related parties are as follows

S0 Transactions/ Balances Enterprises  in which  Key] Koy Management Personnet and !
Managemeni Personnel and theirjthelr Relatives
Relatives have significant influence

March 31,2020 March 31, 2018]  Macch 31,20200  March 31.2018)

11Sale of goods 126,50 95.00 . - b
Z{Purchase of goods 3,462.00 378224 - -
3|Avafing of services 45.23 8. - -
4{Rendering of senvicas 4241 1.18
SiContribution . 25,00 - - ;
B{Dividend Paid 48.20 0,08 42798 17833 :

Key Management Personnel © :
&{Remuneration & Stiort term benefls . . 5690 73721
718iting fess . - .75 .38

“Post emplovament benefit comprising compensated absences Is not disclosed as these are determined for the Company as a whole,
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Balances with related parties are as follows

8510 Transactions! Batances Enterprises  In which Koyl Key Managemen! Personnel and
Management Personnel and theiritheir Relatives
Relatives have significant influence
March 31. 20201 _March 31,2048} March 31, 2020: March 31, 2019]
14Trade Payables 27463 - - .
2 [Remuneration payable . 5640 5600
WMaterlal related party transactions are follows
S0 Nature of transactions Year Year
endedMarch 31, | endedMarch 39,
2020 18
1 i8ale of goods
Thizgarajar Mills (P) Ltd, 12650 95.00
2 iPurchase of goods
Thiagarajar Mills (P) Lid. 346200 378224
3 IAvalling of services
Thingarajar Mills (P Ltd, 1.8 4ED
4 [Rendesing of services
Triagarajar Mills {P) Ltd. 2am 118
faterial related party balances are follows
Sn0 Name of the related party As afffarch 31, | As afMarch 31,
2020 7019
1 iTrade payables
Thizgarajar Mills (F) Lid, 21423
¢ {Remuneration Payable
S T, Kannan 5800 5.00

IVITED
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54

Retirement banefil plans
Defined contribution plans

In acrordance with Indian low, eligible employees of the Company are entifled tv recelve berefls in respect of provident fimd, a defined
contribution plan, in which both employess and the Company make monthly contibutions at a specified percentage of the covered amployses”
satary, The contributions, as specified under the law. o7e made to the Provident fund as well as Employee State insursnce Fund,

The totat expense recognisad in profit or Joss of Re, 55.94 lakhs {for the yesr ended March 31, 2019 is Rs. 59.36 lakhs; represents contdbution
payahie to these plans by the Company at rates specfied m the rfes of the plan )

Defined benefit pland

ia} Gratuity

Gratuity is payable a8 per Payment of Gratiity Act, 1972, in terms of the same, gralully is computed by multiphving last drawn salary basic salary
inchiting deamess Afowanca # any) by completed years of continunus service wih part thereof In excess of six months and again by 15/26. The
Aot provides for a vesting petiod of 5 years for withdrawal and retirement and & monetary cefling on gratully payable o an employeg on
suparaion, as may be prescribed under the Payment of Gratulty Act, 1972, from e fo time. Moweves, in cases whers an enterprise has more
favourable terms in this regard, tha sams has been adopted.

These plans tycally expose the Company fe acluarial risks such as: investinenl risk, interest rate risk and salary risk.

irvenstiment risk The present vatus of the cafinad beneflit plan lisbillly is calostated using 2 discount rab
idetermined by reference o the marke! vields on governiment bonds denormninated in]
Indian Rupses. if He actual relurn on plan essel is below his rafe. i will create a plas
dedicit

intorest nisk A 6%!’883" in ﬂfae b@nd anierest rate wit increass the pian ﬂai}vmy However, tis will bs

Langevily risk The p{nsemvaiue af ihe éeﬂnedbaneﬁ? plw lxabelrﬁy ssca!mlared by reference o they
best est;mafe ef the mﬁfeai ty e! pian pamc:psnts t:mh durfng and after lhes

Satary fisk The present va&e a‘ me éeﬁned benef:tpian kahu!{tyismiwime{i hy refmrce it i*ﬁ

fwme saiarées of plan paamm*& As such, an increase in the salary of the plan

Company has an indeoendent Gratsity Trusl The liabilty of sach year s valued a5 per Avctunling Standard 15-"Enployee Benefils- {Ravised-
2005 by an independent Actuary and the amoun? as per the actusrial valuation report is provided in the accounts sach year and paid lo the
Trugt.

During the year 2013-14 the following acfivities of Gratully Trust is entrusted 1o Lifs Insarance Corporation of india (LIC):

1. Managing investmant pant of Gratully Trust Fund shrough Life losurance Corporsfion of ndia®

2. Te enable the Crakaly Trusf Fund o subseribe the masler golicy with HiC in order & provide death cum relitement gratuify benefits 1o the
reqular employees of the company.

The principal asswmptions used for the purpases of the acluarial valuations were a3 folfows:

Particulars Margh 31, 2020 Harch 31, 2018
(Ciscound Bate fAT% b LEY%na

i 36 | } 80% na. 500% pa
{Altdting, Rate. 100% 0.4 100%. 5.8
Expesisd Bale of Betum oo Planassels BRI Y] LER%p.4

The estimates of fture salary intreases, considered in actuarial valuation, ke account of inflation, seslodly. prometion and ofer relevant
fagtors, such as suaply and demand in the emplovmant market.

134 ]
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Amounts recognised in total comprehensive income in respect of these March 31, 2026 Marsh 31, 2018
defingd benefit plans are as follows: : Rs. in Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs
Amount recognised under Employes Benefits Expensa in the Statement of profit and Loss:
Currant servics cost 10.64 10,16
Net Interas! expense 804 248
Returm on plan assets {excluding amounts included in netinkerest eupense) (027} {035
Components of defined benefil costs recognised in profit or loss 19.44 1281
Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive income (OC) for the Yasr
femeasirement on the nat defined benefit fability comprising:
Actuanial {gainsosses racognised during the period 828 {8.57}
Components of defined benefit costs recogrised in oliwr comprehensive §.28 {6.57)
Totat 2088 12.24

i, Currant senvice cost and the net interest expense for e year ars included in the ‘Empioyse Benafts Expense’ in profit or loss,

i The ratmeasurement of the net defined benafit liabiiity 15 included in other comprehensiva income,

The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the Company's
obiigation in respact of its defined benefit plans is as follows:

Present valug of defined benefit obligation 138.21 12354
Fair value of plan assels {5.05) {2.07}
et Eability arising from defined benefil obligation 13418 12447
Funded 134,18 12147
Unfundes - -
B SSTYEr e
The above provisions arg reflected dnder 'Provision for employee benefits’
{shori-ierm: provisions} [Refer note 28]
Movements in the present value of the deﬁneé:} benefit obiigation in the current year were ag follows:
Upaning defined bensfit ohligation 12354 HFARa]
Currard senvice cost 10.64 118
Interest cost 904 &.98
Actuarial {gains)insses a4 (8.96)
Benefts pakt (12,02 110.3Y
Closing defined benefit obligation 138.24 323,54
Movemernds in the fair value of the plan assets In the current year wese a3 follows:
Opening fair vaiue of plan asssts ' 207 6,58
{rterest Income : -
Experted relumn on pian assels {prcluding amoants included in net interast sxpense} 0.27 .33
Contribubions . 1500 £50¢
Benefits paid [12.02) {H.3%)
Actuarial gainsfiloss) {0.27; ks
Qthers .
Ghoslng falr valus of plan assets : 5,08 A
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Year ended Year endedt
March 31,2020 March 31,2019
Sensitivity analysis
A, Discount Rate + 50 P 1A7% 8.19%
Definad Benefit Obfigation (PYC} 13274 1803
Current Service Cost 1y 395
&, Discount Rate - S0BP §.A7% 739%
Defined Benaf Obigation [PV0} 146.21 12548
Corers Service Cost 13,12 141
0. Salary Escaaion Rale + 5089 550% s
Dafined Benefit Ghligation (PY0) 146,35 12088
Current Serace Cosl 1314 143
0. Salary Escalalion Rate - 50 8P 4.50% 450%
Defined Benefit Obligation PV} 13256 17,87
Curreni Service Cost 135 842
{b} Compensated absences !

As per the pelicy of the Company, compensated absences are not enttled o be caried forwerd to the subsaquent financial ysar and lapse at tnei
and of the reporting periad, Accordingly, n fiabify towards compensated absences are recognised in these financial statemsnts,

For and on behaff of the Board of Directors of VTM Limited As per our report of sven date attached
For GNGSN & Associates LLP
Charterad Accountants
{Firm: Registration No.0043155/ S200036)
T. Kannan RH, Somasundaram
Chairman & Managing Direclor Director
Chinnsamy Ganasan
Pariner
M Ramanathan §. Paramasivam Membership Ne. 027501
Chief Financig) Officer Company Secretary UDIN: 20027501 AAAABFER24

Place : Kappalur, Madurai

Date - Jine 12, 2020
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Regd. Office : Sulakarai, Virudhunagar — 626 003

Email : office@vimill.com; Website : www.vimill.com

Phone : (G4562) 234800/234801

Name of the member(s}
Registered Address
E-mail 1d

Folic / OP ID-Client ID No @

I/We being the member($) of . otivv i, shares of the above named Company hereby appoint;

{1) NBHTE st e Address
EMEH I e e SIGTEEUIE i cee s i e OF FALHAG BT
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As my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for mefus and on my/our behalf at the 73° Annual General Meeting of
the Company, to be held on Wednesday, 5% August 2020 at11.30 AM At Sulakarai, Virudhunagar and at any
adjournment thereof in respect of such rasolutions as are indicated below:-

ATPAKTIET

RESOLUTIONS Optional*
Ordinary Business : For Against
1. Adoption of Financial Staterments for the year ended 31% March 2020
2. Re-appointment of Smt Uma Kannan as Director, who retires by rotation.
Spacial Business
3. Re-appointment of Mr.T.Kannan, as Chairman & Managing Director for a period
of five yaars, _
4, Resoiution ufs. 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for ratification of fees pavable
10 Cost Auditor,
Signed this ... Day of e 2020
Signature of shareholder.. . ...,
Signature of Proxy halder(s).....con.
Note:
1. This form of proxy in order o be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered
Offica of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.
2. For the Resolutions, Explamatory Statement and Notes, please refer to the Notice of the 73 Annual
General Meeting,
i 1t iz optional to put 3 *X’ in the appropriste column against the Resolutions indicated in the Box. If you

leave the "For’ or ‘Against’ column blank against any or all Resolutions, vour Proxy will be entitled to vote
in the manner as ha/she thinks appropriate,
4, Pieaze complete all details including details of member(s} in above tox before submission,




